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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain of the statements contained in this AnRegbort on Form 10-K are forward-looking and conggtforwardlooking statements witr
the meaning of the Private Securities LitigatiorfdR@ Act of 1995. In addition, from time to time may publish forwardeoking statemen
relating to such matters as anticipated financiatfprmance, business prospects, technological dewatnts, product pipelines, clinical tri
and research and development activities, the adegoécapital reserves and anticipated operatingutes and cash expenditures, current
potential collaborations, strategic alternativesdanther aspects of our present and future busimggsations and similar matters that a
constitute such forwartboking statements. These statements involve kaodmnknown risks, uncertainties, and other factbeg may caus
our or our industrys actual results, levels of activity, performanaeachievements to be materially different from &utyre results, levels
activity, performance, or achievements expressednptied by such forwartboking statements. Such factors include, amongrattings
unforeseen changes in the course of research anela@ment activities and in clinical trials; poskilchanges in cost, timing and progres
development, preclinical studies, clinical trialsdaregulatory submissions; our or our collabora®@bility to obtain and maintain regulatc
approval of any of our product candidatgsyssible changes in capital structure, financiahdiion, future working capital needs and ot
financial items; changes in approaches to medigsdtment; introduction of new products by others;scess or failure of our current or futt
collaboration arrangements, risks and uncertain@essociated with possible acquisitions of otheht®dogies, assets or businesses; our al
to obtain additional funds for our operations; oability to obtain and maintain intellectual propgrprotection for our technologies &
product candidates and our ability to operate owsimess without infringing the intellectual properights of others; our reliance on thi
parties to conduct preclinical studies or clinidaibls; the rate and degree of market acceptancarof approved product candidates; poss
actions by customers, suppliers, strategic partnpatential strategic partners, competitors andulkedory authorities; compliance with listii
standards of The NASDAQ Capital Market; and thasted under “Risk Factors” b elow and elsewherdtirs Annual Report on Form 10- In
some cases, you can identify forward-looking statgmby terminology such as “expect,” “anticipaté@stimate,” “plan,” “believe, “could,”
“intend,” “predict,” “may,” “should,” “will,” "woul  d” and words of similar import regarding the Compes expectations. Forwartboking
statements are only predictions. Actual events esults may differ materially. Although we beliehattour expectations are based
reasonable assumptions within the bounds of ounertge of our industry, business and operationscamnot guarantee that actual resi
will not differ materially from our expectations évaluating such forwartboking statements, you should specifically consigeious factors
including the risks outlined under “Risk FactorsThe discussion of risks and uncertainties set fortthis Annual Report on Form 104is no
necessarily a complete or exhaustive list of alksi facing the Company at any particular pointime. We operate in a highly competit
highly regulated and rapidly changing environmentiaur business is in a state of evolution. Theeefih is likely that new risks will emer
and that the nature and elements of existing niglkischange, over time. It is not possible for mgament to predict all such risk factors
changes therein, or to assess either the impadllo$uch risk factors on our business or the extientvhich any individual risk factc
combination of factors, or new or altered factargy cause results to differ materially from thoeatained in any forwardeoking statemer
Except as required by law, we assume no obligatiarvise or update any forwalooking statement that may be made from time te bgnu
or on our behalf for any reason, even if new infation becomes available in the future.

Unless the context requires otherwise or unles®ratise noted, all references in this Annual Repmrt Form 10-K to “Celsion” ‘the
Company”, “we”, “us”, or “our” are to Celsion Corpaation, a Delaware corporation.
Trademarks

The Celsion Corporation (“Celsion” or “the Compahytand and product names, including but not lichite Celsion® or ThermoDox®
contained in this document are trademarks, regidtendemarks or service marks of Celsion Corpamédti the United States (U.S.) and cet
other countries. This document also contains rafse to trademarks and service marks of other coim@pahat are the property of tt
respective owners.




OVERVIEW

Celsion is an oncology drug development companyded on the development of treatments for thoderaug with difficult-totreat forms c
cancer. We are working to develop and commerciatioge efficient, effective and targeted chemotheusip oncology drugs based on
proprietary heat-activated liposomal technologye Fmomise of this drug technology is to maximizécaty while minimizing side=ffect:
common to cancer treatments.

Our lead product ThermoDox#® being evaluated in a Phase Il clinical triat fsimary liver cancer (the OPTIMA study) startimgthe firs
half of 2014 and is being evaluated in a Phasdirical trial for recurrent chest wall breast can¢ie DIGNITY Study). ThermoDox@s &
liposomal encapsulation of doxorubicin, an approaed frequently used oncology drug for the treatnoé wide range of cancers. Locali
heat at mild hyperthermia temperatures (greater 885 degrees Celsius) releases the encapsulaxedutbicin from the liposome enabli
high concentrations of doxorubicin to be deposjieaferentially in and around the targeted tumor.

On January 31, 2013, we announced that ThermoDOox@mbination with radio frequency ablation (RFdijl not meet the primary endpc
of Progression Free Survival (PFS) for the 701gmatclinical trial (the HEAT Study) in patients withepatocellular carcinoma (HCC), ¢
known as primary liver cancer. Specifically, weatetined, after conferring with the HEAT Study indaepent Data Monitoring Committ
(DMC), that the HEAT study did not meet the goaldeimonstrating persuasive evidence of clinicalatiffeness that could form the basis
regulatory approval. In the trial, ThermoDox® waslktolerated with no unexpected serious adverse evEot®wing the announcement
the HEAT study results, we continue to follow patgefor overall survival, the secondary endpointh&f HEAT study, on a quarterly basfge
have conducted a comprehensive analysis of thefidatathe HEAT study to assess the future strategioe of ThermoDox®As part of thi:
analysis, we are also evaluating our product pipeline and research aneldpment priorities. In April 2013, we announcée deferral ¢
expenses associated with the Company's Phase dy siti ThermoDox ®in combination with RFA for the treatment of colot@ livel
metastases (The ABLATE Study) until such time as @ompany finalizes its plans for the continuatainits development program w
ThermoDox® in HCC.

The data from the HEAT Study post-hoc analysis esgggthat ThermoDox®ay substantially improve overall survival, whemmared to th
control group, in patients if their tumors undeaimal RFA treatmenData from four overall survival sweeps have beamdaated since tt
top line PFS data from the HEAT Study was announicednuary 2013, with each showing progressivaavgment in statistical significan
In January 2014, we announced that the latest twarevival data from the postec analysis of results from the HEAT Study supg
continued clinical development through a prospecgiwotal Phase 11l Study. As reported in Janud¥4, posthoc data from the HEAT Stu
demonstrate that the patient subgroup in the ThBor® arm whose RFA procedure lasted longer than 45 min(R285 patients or 63%
single lesion patients), experienced a 55% imprargnn overall survival, with a Hazard Ratio of 4.05% CI 0.41 - 1.00) and avRdue =
0.0495. Median overall survival for this subgrougsmot yet been reachade may choose to end this analysis of overall satvbnce th
median is reached for either or both arms of thdyst

Emerging data from the HEAT Study pdgie analysis has been presented at three scieatificmedical conferences in 2013 by key Hl
Study investigators and leading liver cancer expdithe presentations include:

e  World Conference on Interventional Oncology in Mefi13
° European Conference on Interventional Oncologuime013
° International Liver Cancer Association Annual Coefece in September 2013

The Company also completed computational modelintp wupplementary preclinical animal studies suppgrthe relationship betwe
heating duration and clinical outcomes.

On February 24, 2014, we announced that the FDX&r &6 customary 30 day review period, has pravided allowed, subject to complial
with regulatory standards, clearance for the Comiaslanned pivotal, double-blind, placebontrolled Phase Il trial (the OPTIMA Study)
ThermoDox®, its proprietary heattivated liposomal encapsulation of doxorubicincombination with RFA in primary liver cancer, ¢
known as hepatocellular carcinoma (HCC). The OPTIBtAdy trial design is based on the comprehengamnadysis of data from the HE/
study, which, as described above, demonstratectrématiment with ThermoDox resulted in a 55 perdéamgrovement in overall survival in
substantial number of HCC patients that receivedtimized RFA treatment. The Company expects tmdh the study in the first half
2014. The OPTIMA Study is designed with extensiveut from globally recognized HCC researchers dimic@ns and after formal writte
consultation with FDA. The OPTIMA Study is expectecenroll approximately 550 patients globally,witp to 100 sites in the United Sta
Europe, China and Asia Pacific, and will evaluateefmoDox®in combination with RFA, which will be standardizéal a minimum of 4
minutes across all investigators and sites fortingdesions 3 to 7 centimeters, versus standaddizeA alone. The primary endpoint for
trial is overall survival, and the secondary endpdor the trial is PFS and Safety. The statistiah calls for two interim efficacy analyses
an independent Data Monitoring Committee.






In addition, the Company recently met with the GhBtate Food and Drug Administration (CHINA FDA)discuss the OPTIMA Phase
trial including minimum patient enrollment requirents supporting ThermoDasregistration in China. Based on those discussiamsar:
submitting an application for accelerated appr@fahe study in China. The Company plans to expendlinical site footprint in Europe a
will meet with the European Medicines Agency (EMAY}he first half of 2014.

In April 2013, we engaged Cantor Fitzgerald & Goconduct a comprehensive review of merger andisitigm opportunities with the goal
identifying novel products with high potential, companies, to acquire. Strategic alternativesCthmpany may pursue could include, but
not limited to, continuing its current operatingupl partnering or other collaboration agreemerguiaition of another comparg/business 1
assets, or a merger or other strategic transacfiblere can be no assurance that the exploraticstrafegic alternatives will result in €
agreements or transactions, or that, if compledegl,agreements or transactions will be successfahattractive terms. To the extent we
unable to maintain a broad range of product catelijaur dependence on the success of one or priuct candidates would increase
results such as those announced in relation taHBAT study on January 31, 2013 will have a moreni§icant impact on our financi
prospects, financial condition and market value. damonstrated by the HEAT Study results in JanRaiB, drug research and developme
an inherently uncertain process and there is a fhisgghof failure at every stage prior to approvite timing and the outcome of clinical res
is extremely difficult to predict. Clinical develognt successes and failures can have a dispropateigoositive or negative impact on
scientific and medical prospects, financial prospe®sults of operations, financial condition amarket value.

In 2007, the Company sold its medical device fraseho Boston Scientific Corporation for net aggtegpayments of $43 million, receiv
$13 million in 2007 and $15 million in each of 20@8d 2009. Since this divesture, we have dedicatedefforts and resources to
development and commercialization of cancer draghiding tumor-targeting treatments using focusedt kenergy in combination with heat-
activated drug delivery systems. To support oveaesh and development, we have raised gross preoéegproximately $95 million in equ
financings and warrant and option exercises inytfers 2009 through 2013. In January 2014, the Coynpaised net proceeds of $14 mill
through an equity financing and, including its gaskiestments and interest receivable totaling B43illion at the end 2013, has $57 millior
fund its operations in 2014 and beyond. During 284& 2013, the Company secured two credit fagliti¢aling $20 million collectively, ol
of which has been fully repaid, and currently hagai$15 million remaining under the surviving fégi

On December 5, 2008, we entered into a developnpeatiuct supply and commercialization agreemenk wiakult Honsha Co., Ltd. (tl
Yakult Agreement) under which we granted Yakultexlusive right to commercialize and market Therrog® for the Japanese market.
received a $2.5 million upfront licensing fee andynreceive additional payments from Yakult uponeigt of marketing approval by t
Japanese Ministry of Health, Labor and Welfare afi as upon the achievement of certain levels tdssand approval for new indicatio
Under the Yakult Agreement, we will receive doutligit escalating royalties on the sale of Thermo®adx Japan, when and if any such s
occur and we also will be the exclusive supplieTbérmoDox®to Yakult. In January 2011, we amended the Yakgite&ment to provide f
up to $4.0 million in an accelerated partial paytrtenus of a future drug approval milestone whictluded $2.0 million paid to us upon
closing of the preferred equity financing and aditdnal $2.0 million conditioned upon the resuroptiof enrollment of Japanese patient
the Japan cohort of the HEAT study. In consideratib these accelerated milestone payments from I¥,ake agreed to reduce future d
approval milestone payments by approximately fpaycent (40%). All other milestone payments ardfented.

On May 6, 2012, we entered into a lotegm commercial supply agreement with Zhejiang Hiftharmaceutical Co. Ltd. (Hisun) for
production of ThermoDox@n mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau (the Cheratbry). Hisun will be responsible for providirai of the
technical and regulatory support services for trenufiacture of ThermoDox@h the China territory and we will repay Hisun thelatec
development costs and fees, which we expect toppeogimately $2.0 million in total, commencing dmetsuccessful completion of th
registrational batches of ThermoDox®&n January 18, 2013, we broadened our relationglhiip Hisun by entering into a technolc
development contract, pursuant to which Hisun pasda norrefundable research and development fee of $5.0omito support ot
development of ThermoDox@&nd we will provide research data and other tearsigpport in relation to a regulatory filing bysdin in Chin
for approval of ThermoDox®Following our announcement of the HEAT study resolt January 31, 2013, we and Hisun have agreédht
technology development contract entered into omdanl8, 2013 will remain in effect while the pasgicontinue to collaborate the next ste|
relation to ThermoDox®which include the continued subgroup analysis ef@inese cohort of patients in the HEAT Studypgiomary livel
cancer and other activities to further the develepnof ThermoDox® for the China territory.




On July 19, 2013, the Company and Hisun enteram anMemorandum of Understanding to pursue ongoaliglworations for the continu
clinical development of ThermoDox® as well as teehinology transfer relating to the commercial maotufre of ThermoDox®&or the Chini
territory. This expanded collaboration includeselepment of the next generation liposomal formolatiith the goal of creating safer, m
efficacious versions of marketed cancer chemotleertags.

As a result of the risks and uncertainties disali$sehis Annual Report on Form ¥J-among others, we are unable to estimate thetidn
and completion costs of our research and developprejects or when, if ever, and to what extent wit receive cash inflows from ti
commercialization and sale of a product. Our inbib complete any of our research and developraetitities, preclinical studies or clini
trials in a timely manner or our failure to entetoi collaborative agreements when appropriate caiddificantly increase our capi
requirements and could adversely impact our liguidiVhile our estimated future capital requiremeats uncertain and could increas:
decrease as a result of many factors, includingxent to which we choose to advance our resedssfelopment activities, preclinical stuc
and clinical trials, or if we are in a positiongarsue manufacturing or commercialization actigit\e will need significant additional capita
develop our product candidates through developnagit clinical trials, obtain regulatory approvalsdamanufacture and commercia
approved products, if any. We do not know whethemwill be able to access additional capital wheedeel or on terms favorable to us or
stockholders. Our inability to raise additional italp or to do so on terms reasonably acceptablestovould jeopardize the future success o
business.

As a clinical stage biopharmaceutical company,buginess and our ability to execute our strateggctieve our corporate goals are subje
numerous risks and uncertainties. Material riskd @mcertainties relating to our business and adustry are described in "Part I, Item 1A. F
Factors" in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

THERMODOX® (DOXORUBICIN ENCAPSULATED IN HEAT-ACTIVA TED LIPOSOME)

Liposomes are manufactured submicroscopic vesgdasisting of a discrete aqueous central compattswnounded by a membrane bile
composed of naturally occurring lipids. Conventioligosomes have been designed and manufacturedrty drugs and increase reside
time, thus allowing the drugs to remain in the blistoeam for extended periods of time before theyramoved from the body. However,
current existing liposomal formulations of canceugs and liposomal cancer drugs under developm@nbtiprovide for the immediate rele
of the drug and the direct targeting of organ dpetiimors, two important characteristics that erquired for improving the efficacy of can
drugs such as doxorubicin. A team of research #sterat Duke University developed a heatsitive liposome which rapidly changes
structure when heated to a threshold minimum teatper of 39.5° to 42Celsius. Heating creates channels in the liposbitager that alloy
an encapsulated drug to rapidly disperse into theosnding tissue. Through a perpetual, warvide, exclusive development ¢
commercialization license from Duke University, §leh has licensed novel, heattivated liposomal technology that is differergatromn
other liposomes through its unique low heat-actisatlease of encapsulated chemotherapeutic agents.

We intend to use several available focubedt technologies, such as radio frequency ablg&bA), microwave energy and high inten
focused ultrasound (HIFU), to activate the releafsgrugs from our novel heat-sensitive liposomes.

THERMODOX® IN RELATION TO PRIMARY LIVER CANCER
Liver Cancer Overview

Primary liver cancer (hepatocellular carcinoma @G is one of the most common and deadliest forfmsancer worldwide. It ranks as
fifth most common solid tumor cancer. It is estieththat up to 90% of liver cancer patients wik dvithin five years of diagnosis. T
incidence of primary liver cancer is approximat28;000 cases per year in the United States, appatgly 40,000 cases per year in Europe
is rapidly growing worldwide at approximately 75000cases per year. HCC has the fastest rate wftlyraf all cancers and is projected tc
the most prevalent form of cancer by 2020. HCCommmonly diagnosed in patients with longstandingatiepdisease and cirrhosis (prima
due to hepatitis C in the U.S. and Europe and itepBtin Asia).




At an early stage, the standard first line treatnfenliver cancer is surgical resection of the trmUp to 80% of patients are ineligible
surgery or transplantation at time of diagnosisady stage liver cancer generally has few symptant when finally detected the tur
frequently is too large for surgery. There are faternative treatments, since radiation therapy @memotherapy are largely ineffective.
tumors generally up to 5 centimeters in diameté&/ARas emerged as the standard of care treatmeah wlirectly destroys the tumor tis
through the application of high temperatures byabe inserted into the core of the tumor. Localireence rates after RFA directly correl:
to the size of the tumor. For tumors 3 cm or smaliediameter the recurrence rate has been reptotéd 10 —20%; however, for tumo
greater than 3 cm, local recurrence rates of 40%girer have been observed.

Celsion’s Approach

While RFA uses extremely high temperatures (grettzn 80° Celsius) to ablate the tumor, it may taitreat micrometastases in the ou
margins of the ablation zone because temperatarggiperiphery may not be high enough to destieycancer cells. Celsion’s Thermo[R®x
treatment approach is designed to utilize the tghilf RFA devices to ablate the center of the tumbile simultaneously thermally activati
the ThermoDox@®liposome to release its encapsulated doxorubickilteemaining viable cancer cells throughout theated region, includi
the tumor ablation margins. This novel treatmermtraach is intended to deliver the drug directhytitose cancer cells that survive RFA. ~
approach will also increase the delivery of theatakicin at the desired tumor site while potenyiaiducing drug exposure distant to the tu
site.

The data from the Company’'s 701-patient HEAT Styagt-hoc analysis suggests that ThermoDar@y substantially improve over
survival, when compared to the control group, itigrds if their tumors undergo optimal RFA treatméte continue to follow patients in t
HEAT Study to the secondary endpoint, overall stak{OS). Data from four overall survival sweepwvédeen conducted since the top
PFS data from the HEAT Study was announced in Jgni2@13, with each showing progressive improveniandtatistical significance.

January 2014, we announced that the latest ovarallval data from its pogtec analysis of results from the HEAT Study suppaegntinue
clinical development through a prospective pivdRabse Il Study. As reported in January 2014, postdata from the ComparsyHEAT
Study demonstrate that the patient subgroup iTtleemoDox arm whose RFA procedure lasted longer #flaminutes (285 patients or 63%
single lesion patients), experienced a 55% impra@rdnm overall survival, with a Hazard Ratio of 4.805% CI 0.41 - 1.00) and avRdue =
0.0495.

Phase | Clinical Trial - Primary Liver Cancer

In the second quarter of 2007, we completed ost Rhase | single dose escalation clinical triat thvestigated ThermoDox@® combinatiol
with RFA for the treatment of primary and metastditier cancer. The study was carried out at théddal Cancer Institute (NCI), which
part of the National Institutes of Health (NIH) a@deen Mary Hospital in Hong Kong.

In 2007 we initiated a second Phase | dose eswalatudy designed to investigate simplificationtted current RFA/ThermoDox®&eatmer
regimen including a single vial formulation of TheyDox® designed for commercial distribution. The studyglermitted multiple dosing
liver cancer patients. This clinical trial was cdetpd in 2008.

701 Patient Global Clinical Trial - Primary Liver C ancer (The HEAT Study)

The HEAT Study for ThermoDox@®n combination with RFA, was conducted in patiewith primary liver cancer under a Special Prot
Assessment agreed to with the FDA. The SpecialoBobtAssessment (SPA) agreed to with the FDA spetiPFS as the HEAT Study’
primary endpoint. We scheduled a meeting with tligAR Study independent DMC on January 30, 2013 depto conduct an analysis of
HEAT Study’s PFS endpoint. Following review by A& C, on January 31, 2013, we announced that Thepr@Dn combination with RF,
did not meet the HEAT Study’primary endpoint of PFS. Specifically, we deterad, after conferring with the DMC, that the HEATu&y dic
not meet the goal of demonstrating persuasive eeilef clinical effectiveness that could form thasils for regulatory approval in 1
population chosen for the HEAT Study. The HEAT $tudhs designed to show a 33 percent improvemeRE® with 80 percent power an
p-value = 0.05. In the trial, ThermoDox® was wellerated with no unexpected serious adverse events.




As provided for in the SPA, we continue to folloetpatients enrolled in the HEAT study to the sdeoy endpoint of Overall Survival (O:
We have evaluated data from four reviews of ovesailival since the announcement of the HEAT stsigyimary endpoint result. We a
completed computational modeling with supplementamgclinical animal studies supporting the relagltip between heating duration
clinical outcomes.

In January 2014, we announced that the latest b@eraival data from the pogtec analysis of results from the HEAT study suppgorttinues
clinical development of ThermoDox® through a pradpe pivotal Phase Il study, subject to regulgtoeview and agreement. The pbsie
data demonstrated that the patient subgroup iiftlieemoDox®arm whose RFA procedure lasted longer than 45 ménuthich represents 2
patients or 63 percent of single lesion patientpegenced a 55 percent improvement in overallisatywith a Hazard Ratio of 0.64 (95%
0.41 - 1.00) and a P-value = 0.0495. Median ovesallival for this subgroup has not yet been redchde postioc data suggest tl
ThermoDox®may substantially improve overall survival, whenmaared to the control group, in patients if thembrs undergo optimal RF
treatment.

In January 2014, the Company announced that tlestlaverall survival data from its pdsdc analysis of results from the HEAT St
supports continued clinical development throughrasppective pivotal Phase Il Study. The data frdra HEAT Study poshoc analysi
suggests that ThermoDox®ay substantially improve overall survival, whemared to the control group, in patients if thaimbrs underg
optimal RFA treatment. The Company continues ttofolpatients in the HEAT Study to the secondarypanot of OS. Data from four C
sweeps have been conducted since the top line BfaSrdm the HEAT Study was announced in JanuatB 2@ith each showing progress
improvement in statistical significance. We may a$® to end the analysis of OS once the medianaishesl for either or both arms of
HEAT Study.

We will continue with partnerships, such as ouaagement with Zhejiang Hisun Pharmaceutical Co. [ltisun) described below, to 1
extent feasible. In addition, we have assesseg@muguct pipeline and research and developmentipeierAs we evaluate strategic alternati
we will need to consider a number of factors, idalg investment in, or acquisition of, complementhusinesses, technologies or prodi
possible capital raising transactions, partneripgootunities and working capital requirements. \Wpegt that the strength of our balance s
will afford us the opportunity to evaluate our freudevelopment plans. However, as demonstratecheyHEAT Study results on P
announced on January 31, 2013, drug research amdogenent is an inherently uncertain process amdetiis a high risk of failure at ew
stage prior to approval. The timing and the outcahelinical results is extremely difficult to prietl Clinical development successes
failures can have a disproportionate positive ayatige impact on our scientific and medical prospefinancial prospects, financial condit
and market value.

Phase 1l Global Clinical Trial - Primary Liver Can cer (The OPTIMA Study)

Based on the overall survival data from the gust-analysis of results from HEAT Study, we subeditour proposed pivotal Phase Il clin
protocol for the FDA review in the fourth quartdra®13. On February 24, 2014, we announced thaEbw, after its customary 30 day revi
period, has provided and allowed, subject to commgle with regulatory standards, clearance for the@any's planned pivotal, doulidind,
placebo-controlled Phase llI trial (the OPTIMA Sgidf ThermoDox®, its proprietary heattivated liposomal encapsulation of doxorubici
combination with radio frequency ablation (RFA)anmary liver cancer. The OPTIMA Study trial desigrbased on a comprehensive ana
of data from the Company's Phase Il HEAT Studyjciwhdemonstrated that treatment with ThermoDox Itedun a 55% improvement
overall survival in a substantial number of HCCiguats that received an optimized RFA treatmente Toampany expects to launch the stuc
the first half of 2014.

The Phase Il OPTIMA Study is designed with exteasinput from globally recognized HCC researcherd alinicians, and after forr
consultation with FDA. The OPTIMA Study is expectecenroll 550 patients globally, with up to 10€esiin the United States, Europe, Cl
and Asia Pacific and will evaluate ThermoDox in dmnation with RFA, which will be standardized taranimum of 45 minutes across
investigators and sites for treating lesions 3 teftimeters, versus standardized RFA alone. Asrteg in January 2014, pdsoc data fror
the Company's HEAT Study demonstrate that theepasubgroup in the ThermoDox&m whose RFA procedure lasted longer tha
minutes (285 patients or 63% of single lesion pése experienced a 55% improvement in overall igafywith a Hazard Ratio of 0.64 (9¢
C10.41 - 1.00) and a falue = 0.0495. The primary endpoint for the tisabverall survival, and the secondary endpointlfiertrial is PFS ar
Safety. The statistical plan calls for two integfficacy analyses by an independent Data Monitgp@ommittee (iDMC).
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In addition, the Company recently met with the GhiFDA to discuss, among other items, the Phas®RITIMA Study, including minimui
patient enrollment requirements supporting ThermdBaegistration in China. Based on those discussithies Company is submitting
application for accelerated approval of the stud¥hina. The Company plans to expand its clinid¢el feotprint in Europe for the OPTIV
Study and will meet with the EMA in the first half 2014.

THERMODOX® IN RELATION TO CANCERS OTHER THAN PRIMARY LIVER CANCER

In June 2012, we announced a collaboration withuthiwersity of Oxford to begin an early phase dalistudy of ThermoDox®lus HIFU ir
the treatment of metastatic liver cancer. The,tuidilich is supported by the National Institute ftgalth Research Oxford Biomedical Rese
Centre, will be carried out as a multidisciplinagllaboration between us, the Oxford Universitytibage of Biomedical Engineering and

Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust. This earljhgse clinical study is being finalized and will veg approval from a local eth
committee. Enroliment of the first patient in thifical study is targeted for 2014.

In collaboration with the Focused Ultrasound Fouiatia we are sponsoring preclinical studies degigioeexplore the use of ThermoDox®
combination with MRguided HIFU for the treatment of pancreatic candére studies are being conducted at the Univedditvashingto
(UW) School of Medicine. The UW research includesral models to confirm the ability of HIFU to tagconcentrations of doxorubicin
proprietary pancreatic cancer cell lines and iro\studies to assess the response to these turaatedrusing ThermoDox@ith and withou
HIFU-induced hyperthermia. We believe that these cotktinms are providing important new device techg@se such as HIFU to activate
low heat sensitive liposomal technology in diffictd-treat cancers.

Recurrent Chest Wall (RCW) Breast Cancer Overview

Breast cancer is the most common malignancy in woiméoth the United States and the world. Despiariety of therapeutic approaches
to 40% of the estimated 95,000 patients in the adhtates undergoing a mastectomy as their pritn@agment will develop locally recurre
RCW breast cancer. There is currently no effectivemotherapeutic standard of care for RCW breastar and as a result, many of tt
patients will die within two years of the recurrendatients with RCW breast cancer suffer fromiglising tumors and other sympto
including pain, foul-smelling wounds, and a vergual reminder of tumor progression.

Celsion’s Approach

We have been actively seeking a targeted localimstment for breast cancer using ThermoDar®&onjunction with localized microwa
hyperthermia to treat RCW breast cancer. Studid3ue University and other centers have indicated heat may improve the therape
action of non-temperature sensitive liposomal dokimin formulations in advanced locegional breast cancer. Our liposomal encapst
doxorubicin is released by heat generated fromxdearmal microwave tissue hyperthermia device tlsaplaced on a womas’'chest. Th
microwave hyperthermia heats the target to a teatper adequate to activate ThermoDdx® not to ablate the tissue like RFA. Upon het
to 39.5° to 42%C, a significant concentration of doxorubicin idessed directly to the tumor. As in our liver canpeogram, we use
commercially available thermotherapy device to lieattarget tissue and activate ThermoDox® at #ereld target site.

Microwave hyperthermia as a separate standaloatntesnt has been found to have the ability to kildst cancer cells. Because breast ¢
cells have higher water content than surroundimgnabcells, the tumor is heated to a greater exteart normal breast tissue and is select
destroyed. Thus heating cancer cells with a mien@wvdevice for sixty minutes at 43°C has been fdonibe tumoricidal. We expect that
combination of microwave hyperthermia and ThermoPaxill be more efficacious than microwave hyperthexralone or treatment w
existing non-heat activated liposomal formulations.

Breast Cancer Clinical Phase /1l Clinical Trial - The DIGNITY Study
In 2009, the Company commenced an open label, essmating ThermoDox®hase I/Phase 1l clinical trial for patients witlC® breas
cancer —the DIGNITY study). The DIGNITY study is designea eéstablish a safe therapeutic dose in Phase linaRHase Il to demonstri

local control, including complete and partial respes, and stable disease as its primary endp®i@. DIGNITY study is also planned
evaluate kinetics in ThermoDox® produced from ntbgn one manufacturing site.

11




The Company completed enrollment of the Phase tiggoof the study in 2010 and an independent Dati@t$ Monitoring Board declar
50mg/m2 to be the Phase Il dose. The Phase tlopoof the DIGNITY study protocol has been revieliy the FDA and enrollme
commenced in the first quarter of 2013. The tridl @nroll 20 patients at five clinical sites inglUnited States and is evaluating Thermo®ox
in combination with mild hyperthermia.

Duke University conducted a Phase | dose escaldtirgmoDox®study in patients with RCW breast cancer and hasemted prelimina
results from the 16 enrolled patients that charaeté¢he safety of the drug in RCW patients andfé@sibility of ThermoDox®administratiol
in these patientsin December 2013, we announced combined clinici ftfam our DIGNITY study and the Duke Universifyansored Pha
| trial of ThermoDox®plus hyperthermia in RCW breast cancer. The twalaity designed Phase | studies enrolled patierite Wighly
resistant tumors found on the chest wall and whib gragressed on previous therapy including chemafiye radiation therapy and hormi
therapy. ThermoDox®n combination with mild hyperthermia was evaluatedhese patients in up to six cycles. Both stsidieployed &
open label 3+3 dose escalation study design torrdete the Maximum Tolerated Dose, evaluate safety determine early effects
ThermoDox®in combination with mild hyperthermia. There we@ [2atients treated in the two trials, including ddtients in the DIGNIT
study and 18 patients in the Duke study. Of th@&@ents, 23 were eligible for evaluation of effigaA local response rate of over 60 per
was reported in 14 of the 23 evaluable patientk five complete responses and nine partial response

In February 2014, we announced positive interiradedm the ongoing opelabel Phase Il DIGNITY study. Based on the datailalbke tc
date, a local response rate of approximately 8@guetrhas been observed in the five evaluable patigith refractory disease, notably 1
complete responses, two partial responses and atienpwith stable disease. These data are consisith the previously reported posit
Phase | data in RCW breast cancer.

PRODUCT FEASIBILITY

We developed a stable heat activated liposomal dtation of docetaxel and evaluated the liposomaletixel formulation in animal stud
that demonstrated a statistically significant tunmdnibition effect when compared both to free daget and a nomfeat sensitive formulatic
We will continue to evaluate this formulation folling a successful clinical program utilizing Theldwx®. In addition, the Company h
developed a third stable heat activated liposoroahfilation. This drug encapsulates carboplatin iandarly studies has shown favor:
release characteristics and formulation stability.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

An element of our business strategy has been ®upuas resources permit, the research and devethdmha range of product candidates 1
variety of indications. We may also evaluate liGegscancer products from third parties for canceatiments to expand our current pro
pipeline. This is intended to allow us to diversifie risks associated with our research and dereap expenditures. To the extent we
unable to maintain a broad range of product catelijaur dependence on the success of one or priuct candidates would increase
results such as those announced in relation taHBAT study on January 31, 2013 will have a moreni§icant impact on our financi
prospects, financial condition and market value. &y also consider and evaluate strategic alteremtincluding investment in, or acquisit
of, complementary businesses, technologies or ptedés demonstrated by the HEAT Study resultsgdmsearch and development is
inherently uncertain process and there is a higihaf failure at every stage prior to approval. Tineng and the outcome of clinical result
extremely difficult to predict. The success ordad of any preclinical development and clinicahltican have a disproportionately positivi
negative impact on our results of operations, fa@rcondition, prospects and market value.

As a result of the risks and uncertainties disali$sehis Annual Report on Form ¥J-among others, we are unable to estimate thetidn
and completion costs of our research and developprjects or when, if ever, and to what extent wit receive cash inflows from ti
commercialization and sale of a product if one wf product candidates receives regulatory apprforammarketing, if at all. Our inability -
complete any of our research and development esyipreclinical studies or clinical trials in ianely manner or our failure to enter i
collaborative agreements when appropriate couldifisgntly increase our capital requirements andl@¢@dversely impact our liquidity. Wh
our estimated future capital requirements are daiceand could increase or decrease as a resaoiany factors, including the extent to wt
we choose to advance our research and developrotvities, preclinical studies and clinical trials; whether we are in a position to put
manufacturing or commercialization activities, wall wieed significant additional capital to develaur product candidates throt
development and clinical trials, obtain regulatapprovals and manufacture and commercialize apdrpveducts, if anyWe do not kno\
whether we will be able to access additional capiteen needed or aerms favorable to us or our stockholders. Ourilitaho raise addition:
capital, or to do so on terms reasonably acceptahls, would jeopardize the future success oboginess.
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURES

We are engaged in a limited amount of researchdamdlopment in our own facilities and have sporgdoesearch programs in partnership '
various research institutions, including the Nadilo@ancer Institute and Duke University. We arerently, with minimal cash expenditur
sponsoring clinical and pre-clinical research &t thiversity of Utrecht, Brigham and Womert{ospital and the University of Washingt
The majority of the spending in research and dearakmt is for the funding of ThermoDoxd@lnical trials. Research and development expe
were approximately $9.4 million, $15.8 million a$d9.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2@032 and 2011, respectively.
Iltem 7 — Management’'s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€ahdition and Results of Operatidor additional information regardi
expenditures related to our research and developpnegrams.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION
Regulation in the United State
Research and Development

Our research and development activities, @ireical tests and clinical trials are subject ttemsive regulation by the FDA as would
manufacturing, marketing and labeling of our praduif any. The Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic et Public Health Service Act and
regulations promulgated by the FDA govern, amorgothings, the testing, manufacture, safety, &€fyc labeling, storage, record keep
approval, advertising, promotion, import and exmdrour products.

Under these statutes, our heativated liposomes will be regulated as a new diing steps ordinarily required before such prosleein b
marketed in the U.S. include (a) prinical and clinical studies; (b) the submissianthe FDA of an application for, or approval, as
Investigational New Drug application (IND), whichust become effective before human clinical trialyracommence; (c) adequate and wel
controlled human clinical trials to establish ttadesy and efficacy of the product; (d) the subnassio the FDA of a New Drug Applicati
(NDA); and (e) FDA approval of the application, linding approval of all product labeling.

Pre<linical tests include laboratory evaluation of gwot chemistry, formulation and stability, as wadl animal studies, to assess the pote
safety and efficacy of the product. Rileical safety tests must be conducted by laboiegahat comply with FDA regulations regarding d
laboratory practice. The results of minical tests are submitted to the FDA as paraofIND and are reviewed by the FDA before
commencement of human clinical trials. SubmissibarnIND will not necessarily result in FDA authoation to commence clinical trials, ¢
the absence of FDA objection to an IND does noessarily mean that the FDA will ultimately apprcue NDA or that a product candid
otherwise will come to market.

Clinical trials involve the administration of th@sato humans under the supervision of a qualifisdgipal investigator. Clinical trials must
conducted in accordance with good clinical prastiseder protocols submitted to the FDA as partrofND. Also, each clinical trial must
approved and conducted under the auspices of amaltreview board (IRB), and with patient informmshsent. An IRB will consider, ama
other things, ethical factors and the safety of anrsubjects and the possible liability of the tusibn conducting the clinical trials.

Clinical trials are typically conducted in two drée sequential phases, but the phases may ovetiage | clinical trials involve the init
introduction of the therapy to a small number dfjeats. Phase Il trials are generally larger tr@aducted in the target population. Pha
studies may serve as the pivotal trials, providimg demonstration of safety and effectiveness reduior approval. However, the FDA n
require additional, postiarket trials as a condition of approval. In theecaf drugs and biological products, Phase Il cihirials generally a
conducted in a target patient population to gatividlence about the pharmacokinetics, safety anddiaal or clinical efficacy of the drug f
specific indications, to determine dosage toleraam optimal dosage and to identify possible agveffects and safety risks. When a dru
biological compound has shown evidence of efficaog an acceptable safety profile in Phase |l evialns, Phase Il clinical trials &
undertaken to serve as the pivotal trials to demnatesclinical efficacy and safety in an expandatigmt population.
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There can be no assurance that any of our clibied$ will be completed successfully within anyesfied time period or at all. On January
2013, we announced that ThermoDox® combination with RFA did not meet the primarydpoint of the HEAT study in patients w
hepatocellular carcinoma (HCC), also known as pryniaver cancer. Specifically, we determined, aftenferring with the DMC, that tl
HEAT study did not meet the goal of demonstratirgspasive evidence of clinical effectiveness thatlat form the basis for regulatc
approval in the population chosen for the HEAT gtud

On February 24, 2014, we announced that the FDX&r &6 customary 30 day review period, has pravided allowed, subject to complial
with regulatory standards, clearance for the Comapianned pivotal, double-blind, placebontrolled Phase Il trial (the OPTIMA Study)
ThermoDox®, its proprietary heattivated liposomal encapsulation of doxorubicincombination with RFA in primary liver cancer, €
known as hepatocellular carcinoma (HCC). The OPTIBtAdy trial design is based on a comprehensiviysinaf data from the Compan
Phase Ill HEAT Study, which demonstrated that tresadt with ThermoDox resulted in a 55% improvemanbverall survival in a substant
number of HCC patients that received an optimized& Reatment. Celsion expects to launch the stadle first half of 2014.

The Phase Il OPTIMA Study is designed with exteasinput from globally recognized HCC researcherd alinicians, and after forr
consultation with FDA. The OPTIMA Study is expectecenroll 550 patients globally, with up to 10€esiin the United States, Europe, Cl
and Asia Pacific and will evaluate ThermoDox in ddnation with RFA, which will be standardized taranimum of 45 minutes across
investigators and sites for treating lesions 3 toertimeters, versus standardized RFA alone. Timeapy endpoint for the trial is OS. T
statistical plan calls for two interim efficacy dyses by an independent Data Monitoring CommitiBdC).

In addition, the Company recently met with the CAINDA to discuss the Phase Il OPTIMA Study, indhgd minimum patient enrollme
requirements supporting ThermoDextegistration in China. Based on those discussitmes Company is submitting an application
accelerated approval of the study in China. The gam plans to expand its clinical site footprintHorope for the OPTIMA Study and v
meet with the EMA in the first half of 2014.

Either the FDA or we may suspend clinical trialaay time, if the FDA, our iDMC, or we conclude tledinical subjects are being expose
an unacceptable health risk or for other reasohs.ADA inspects and reviews clinical trial sitesprmed consent forms, data from the clin
trial sites (including case report forms and reckegping procedures) and the performance of théogots by clinical trial personnel
determine compliance with good clinical practicElse FDA also examines whether there was bias icdneuct of clinical trials. The condi
of clinical trials is complex and difficult, espatly in pivotal Phase Il or Phase Ill trials. Theran be no assurance that the design ¢
performance of the pivotal clinical trial protocasany of our current or future product candidatésbe successful.

The results of prelinical studies and clinical trials, if successfate submitted in an application for FDA approt@lmarket the drug
biological product for a specified use. The testimgl approval process requires substantial timeeffiodt, and there can be no assurance
any approval will be granted for any product at éinye, according to any schedule, or at all. TheARBay refuse to accept or approve
application if it believes that applicable regutatoriteria are not satisfied. The FDA may alsouiegj additional testing for safety and effice
Moreover, if regulatory approval is granted, thprpal will be limited to specific indications. Tieecan be no assurance that any of our ct
product candidates will receive regulatory appreval marketing or, if approved, that approval v for any or all of the indications that
request.

In 2009, the FDA granted orphan drug designationfeermoDox®for the treatment of HCC. Orphan drug designatiatities the Company
seven years of market exclusivity following FDA apyal, if any, FDA assistance in clinical trial g a reduction in FDA user fees, U.S.
credits related to development expenses as wéitleaspportunity to apply for funding from the Uglivernment to defray the costs of clin
trial expenses.
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Post-Approval Requirements

After receipt of necessary regulatory approvalgny, for initial manufacturing and sale of our ¢wot candidates, our contract manufactc
facilities and products are subject to ongoingeevand periodic inspection. Each U.S. drug manufagy establishment must be registe
with the FDA. Manufacturing establishments in th&Uand abroad are subject to inspections by th& &fd must comply with current ga
manufacturing practices. In order to ensure futhtécal compliance with such practices, manufactuneust expend funds, time and effol
the areas of production and quality control. Inigdd, the FDA may impose posipproval requirements on us, including the requémintha
we conduct specified post-marketing studies.

Inspections

We are subject to the periodic inspection of oinic4l trials, facilities, procedures and operasi@md/or the testing of our products by the |
to determine whether our systems and processes arempliance with FDA regulations. Following suitspections, the FDA may iss
notices on Form 483 and warning letters that cealdse us to modify certain activities identifiedidg the inspection. A Form 483 notice
generally issued at the conclusion of an FDA inSpecand lists conditions the FDA inspectors bedieway violate FDA regulations. FL
guidelines specify that a warning letter only isb® issued for violations of “regulatory signifieai for which the failure to adequately ¢
promptly achieve correction may be expected tolt@san enforcement action.

Recalls

The FDA has the authority to require the recalborf products in the event of material deficien@eslefects in manufacture. A government
mandated recall, or a voluntary recall by us, coakiilt from a number of events or factors, inaigdiomponent failures, manufacturing ert
instability of product or defects in labeling.

Other FDA Regulations

We are also subject to recordkeeping and reporiégulations. These regulations require, among dtfiegs, the reporting to the FDA
adverse events alleged to have been associatedhwitise of a product or in connection with cerfaimduct failures.

Labeling and promotional activities are also retpdaby the FDA. We must also comply with recorceiag requirements as well
requirements to report certain adverse events winglour products. The FDA can impose other poatketing controls on us as well as
products including, but not limited to, restricttoan sale and use, through the approval procegdatens and otherwise.

Regulation Outside of the U.$

In addition to regulations in the U.S., we will bgbject to regulations of other countries goverrang clinical trials and commercial sales
distribution of our product candidates. Whethemot we obtain FDA approval for a product, we mulsta;m approval by the compara
regulatory authorities of countries outside of th&. before we can commence clinical trials in scohntries and approval of the regulator
such countries or economic areas, such as the &amopnion and China, before we may market prodimcthose countries or areas. -
approval process and requirements governing théumrof clinical trials, product licensing, pricimgnd reimbursement vary greatly from pl
to place, and the time may be longer or shortear that required for FDA approval.

Under European Union regulatory systems, a compaay submit marketing authorization applicationsheit under a centralized
decentralized procedure. The centralized procedunigh is compulsory for medicines produced by édbinology or those medicines inten
to treat AIDS, cancer, neurodegenerative disordediabetes and is optional for those medicinesiwiare highly innovative, provides for
grant of a single marketing authorization thatadid/for all European Union member states. The digakzed procedure provides for mul
recognition of national approval decisions. Undes procedure, the holder of a national marketiatherization may submit an applicatior
the remaining member states. Within 90 days ofivewg the applications and assessments report, eeghber state must decide whethe
recognize approval. If a member state does nogréze the marketing authorization, the disputechisoare eventually referred to the Eurog
Commission, whose decision is binding on all mendbates.




In 2011, the European Commission granted orphag designation for ThermoDox®r the treatment of HCC in Europe. As establishg
the EMA, orphan drug designation provides for siifieradvice and regulatory assistance from the EMitect access to centralized marke
authorization and certain financial incentives,tsas reduction of fees associated with augiorization inspections and marketing authordm
application fees. The orphan drug designation iroge also provides 10 years of market exclusivitysequent to product approval.

PRODUCT LIABILITY AND INSURANCE

Our business exposes us to potential product itiglisks that are inherent in the testing, mantuifeing and marketing of human therape
products. We presently have product liability imnge limited to $10 million per incident, and if weere to be subject to a claim in exces
this coverage or to a claim not covered by ourraisce and the claim succeeded, we would be reqtorpdy the claim out of our own limit
resources.

COMPETITION

Competition in the discovery and development of mesthods for treating and preventing disease ensd. We face, and will continue to fi
intense competition from pharmaceutical and biatetdgy companies, as well as academic and res@astitutions and government agent
both in the U.S. and abroad. We face significamhmetition from organizations pursuing the sameiwilar technologies used by us in
drug discovery efforts and from organizations depilg pharmaceuticals that are competitive withaduct candidates.

Most of our competitors, either alone or togethdthvtheir collaborative partners, have substantigiteater financial resources and la
research and development staffs than we do. Intiaddimost of these organizations, either alon¢ogether with their collaborators, hi
significantly greater experience than we do in digpieg products, undertaking preclinical testingl alinical trials, obtaining FDA and ott
regulatory approvals of products, and manufactuaind marketing products. Mergers and acquisitiorteé pharmaceutical industry may re
in even more resources being concentrated amongarpetitors. These companies, as well as acadestitutions, governmental agenc
and private research organizations, also compete wg in recruiting and retaining highly qualifiedientific personnel and consultants.
ability to compete successfully with other companie the pharmaceutical and biotechnology fieldo atlepends on the status of
collaborations and on the continuing availabilifycapital to us.

ThermoDox®

Although there are many drugs and devices markatddunder development for the treatment of cankerCompany is not aware of any o
heat activated drug delivery product either beiragkated or in human clinical development.

LICENSES, PATENTS AND TRADEMARKS

In 1999, the Company entered into a license agreemigh Duke University under which we received lesive rights, subject to cert:
exceptions, to commercialize and use Duke’s thdipasome technology. In relation to these lipos@atents licensed from Duke Univers
we have filed two additional patents related to firenulation and use of liposomes. We have alsenbed from Valentis, CA certain glo
rights covering the use of pegylation for tempem@tensitive liposomes.

In 2003, our obligations under the license agreeameétlhh Duke University with respect to the testingd regulatory milestones and o
licensed technology performance deadlines wereirgditad in exchange for a payment of shares of oarmngon stock. The license agreen
continues to be subject to agreements to pay dtydyased upon future sales. In conjunction with platent holder, we have filed internatic
applications for a certain number of the United&tgatents.

Our rights under the license agreement with Dukevéisity extend for the longer of 20 years or timel ®f any term for which any relevi
patents are issued by the United States Patentrag@mark Office. Currently, the Company has rightBuke’s patent for its thernmgosome
technology in the United States, which expires0t& and to future patents received by Duke in @anBurope, Japan and Australia, whe
has patent applications have been granted. ThepBamgrant provides coverage in the European Corntynufor this technology, tt
Company’s license rights are worldwide, includihg United States, Canada, certain European cosinfisstralia, Hong Kong, and Japan.
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On February 5, 2013, Celsion announced that itpr@tary patent application, "Method of Storing Mparticle Formulations," had be
allowed in China and granted in South Korea andtralia. Celsion holds an exclusive license agragnwath Duke University for it
temperature-sensitive liposome technology that otiee ThermoDox@formulation. Celsion's newly issued patents pertpecifically tc
methods of storing stabilized, temperatsemsitive liposomal formulations and will assisthie protection of global rights. These patents
extend the overall term of the ThermoDox®&tent portfolio to 2026. The patents in thesedhreuntries are the first in this family, wh
includes pending applications in the U.S., Europé additional key commercial geographies in Asldis extended patent runway to 2!
allows for the evaluation of future developmenities for ThermoDox® and Celsion's heat-sensitipesome technology platform.

In addition to the rights available to us under ptated or pending license agreements, we rely erpmprietary knowhow and experience
the development and use of heat for medical thesapivhich we seek to protect, in part, through pedary information agreements w
employees, consultants and others. There can lsswance that these proprietary information ageeésrwill not be breached, that we
have adequate remedies for any breach, or that thgseements, even if fully enforced, will be adagquto prevent thirgharty use of th
Company’s proprietary technology. Please refetamI1A, Risk Factors, including, but not limited t®e rely on trade secret protection
other unpatented proprietary rights for importamtppietary technologies, and any loss of such siglduld harm our business, result
operations and financial conditionSimilarly, we cannot guarantee that technology tagicensed to us by others will not be succesg
challenged or circumvented by third parties, ot the rights granted will provide us with adequptetection. Please refer to Item 1A, F
Factors, including, but not limited to,Our business depends on licensing agreements Wit parties to permit us to use patel
technologies. The loss of any of our rights urtiese agreements could impair our ability to dgveled market our products.”

EMPLOYEES

As of March 12, 2014, we employed 13 ftiilhe employees. We also maintain active independentractor relationships with varic
individuals, most of whom have month4teenth or annual consulting agreements. None of euployees are covered by a collec
bargaining agreement, and we consider our relatigthsour employees to be good.

COMPANY INFORMATION

Celsion was founded in 1982 and is a Delaware catijpm. Our principal executive offices are lochtt 997 Lenox Drive, Suite 1(
Lawrenceville, NJ 08648. Our telephone numbe6@9] 896-9100. The Company’s website is www.celsiom. The information containi
in, or that can be accessed through, our websitetipart of, and is not incorporated in, this AahReport on Form 10-K.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We make available free of charge through our websgivw.celsion.com, our Annual Report on Form 10Xarterly Reports on Form 1D-
Current Reports on FormI8; and all amendments to those reports as soosaa®mably practicable after such material is edaatally filec
with or furnished to the Securities and Exchangenf@ission (the “SEC”).In addition, our website includes other items edato corporal
governance matters, including, among other thirgs, corporate governance principles, charters efoua committees of the Board
Directors, and our code of business conduct ands#pplicable to all employees, officers and doex We intend to disclose on our inte
website any amendments to or waivers from our addeusiness conduct and ethics as well as any amemtd to its corporate governa
principles or the charters of various committeethefBoard of Directors. Copies of these documereg be obtained, free of charge, from
website. In addition, copies of these documentshgi made available free of charge upon writtequesst. The public may read and copy
materials filed with the SEC at the SECPublic Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Wgstin DC 20549. The public may obt
information on the operation of the Public RefeeRoom by calling the SEC at 1-800-SB830. The SEC also maintains an internet site
contains reports, proxy and information statemants other information regarding issuers that féeiqdic and other reports electronically v
the Securities and Exchange Commission. The addfabsat site is www.sec.gov. The information aable on or through our website is n
part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and shauwdtl be relied upon.

17




LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

During 2013, we issued a total of 5.3 million sksand common stock, including shares of common stesked upon conversion of
15,000.00422 shares of Series A 0% convertibleepredl stock, in the following equity transactions &n aggregate $31.6 million in gr
proceeds. On October 28, 2013, we effected a 415rverse split of our common stock. Unless otheevexpressly stated, the share ani
share data in this section and elsewhere in thimuAhReport on Form 10-K have been adjusted tectthe reverse stock split.

e On February 1, 2013, we entered into a Contrdiigdity OfferingSM Sales Agreement with Cantor Fitzgerald & Co., dessagen
pursuant to which we may offer and sell, from titodime through “at-the-marketifferings, shares of our common stock havin
aggregate offering price of up to $25.0 millionoffr February 1, 2013 through February 25, 2013, ol &nd issued an aggregat
1,195,923 shares of common stock under such agrédoreapproximately $6.8 million in aggregate gr@soceeds.

e On February 22, 2013, we entered into a Securtigshase Agreement with certain institutional inees pursuant to which the
sold, in a registered direct offering, an aggre@ite5,000.00422 shares of our Series A 0% corblerpreferred stock and warrant:
purchase up to 1,341,382 shares of common stoclgnf@ggregate purchase price of approximatelyOdbllion in gross proceec
All of the shares of Series A 0% convertible preddrstock have been converted into 2,682,764 slodu@smmon stock.

e On May 30, 2013, we entered into a Securities RagebAgreement with certain institutional invest@u,suant to which we sold, i
registered direct offering, an aggregate of 1,392 dhares of our common stock for an aggregaténpaecprice of approximately $
million in gross proceeds.

During 2013, we received gross proceeds of appratdiym $0.4 million from the exercise of warrantslamommon stock options to purch
30,499 shares of common stock.

In addition, the Company entered into a loan agesgron November 25, 2013 with Hercules Technologgwgh Capital, Inc. (Hercule:
pursuant to which the Company may borrow a sectaed loan of up to $20 million in multiple tranch@lse Hercules Credit Agreement).
Company drew the first tranche of $5 million at ttiesing under the Hercules Credit Agreement oneé¥ayer 25, 2013 and may requ
subject to Herculestonsent in its sole discretion, an additional $illion in up to three advances with each advanca minimum amount «
$5 million, unless otherwise agreed upon by the gamy and Hercules, before June 30, 2014 unlessidedeupon Herculegonsent. Th
Company used approximately $4 million of the firsinche to repay the outstanding obligations urdieran agreement with Oxford Fina
LLC and Horizon Technology Finance Corporation. Tb@mpany anticipates that it will use any additiofuading up to $15 million ¢
provided under the agreement for working capitahasupport of its previously announced strategigussition initiative, which is designed
identify new technologies and clinical stage praddor its development pipeline. The loan bearsrigdt at a floating per annum rate equ
the greater of (i) 11.25 percent and (ii) the sdrilo25 per cent plus the prime rate minus 3.25cpat. Payments under the loan agreeme!
interest only for the first twelve months after oelosing, followed by a 3@&onth amortization period of principal and interdsibugh th
scheduled maturity date.

We believe that our cash and investment resouric$431 million on hand at December 31, 2013, ab agethe $13.8 million of net procet
the Company received in the first quarter of 20t the January 15, 2014 common stock offering,saféicient to fund operations throu
2016. However, our future capital requirements wépend upon numerous unpredictable factors, diety without limitation, the cos
timing, progress and outcomes of clinical studied aegulatory reviews of our proprietary drug caladiés, our efforts to implement n
collaborations, licenses and strategic transactigeseral and administrative expenses, capitalredipges and other unforeseen uses of
To complete the development and commercializatioouo products, we will need to raise substantmbants of additional capital to fund «
operations. We do not have any committed sourcémaficing and cannot give assurance that alterfusiging will be available in a time
manner, on acceptable terms or at all. We may mequursue dilutive equity financings, such as tbguance of shares of common st
preferred stock, convertible debt or other contitor exercisable securities, which financingsldalilute the percentage ownership of
current common stockholders and could significalatlyer the market value of our common stock.
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RECENT EVENTS

January 2014 Registered Direct Offeri

On January 15, 2014, the Company entered into arfies Purchase Agreement with certain institutloimvestors, pursuant to which
Company sold, in a registered offering, an aggeegdt3,603,604 shares of its common stock, parev®@.01 per share, and warrant
purchase up to 1,801,802 shares of Common Stocknfaggregate purchase price of approximatelyn§ill®n.

On February 24, 2014, we announced that the FDX&r &6 customary 30 day review period, has pravided allowed, subject to complial
with regulatory standards, clearance for our pldnipévotal, double-blind, placebmentrolled Phase Il trial (the OPTIMA Study)
ThermoDox®in combination with RFA in primary liver cancer (€% The OPTIMA Study trial design is based on tbmprehensive analy:
of data from the Phase Ill HEAT study, which demuated that treatment with ThermoDox@sulted in a 55 percent improvement in ow:
survival in a substantial number of HCC patientst tleceived an optimized RFA treatment. The Compapects to launch the study in
first half of 2014. The OPTIMA study is designedtiwextensive input from globally recognized HCCeashers and clinicians and a
formal consultation with FDA. The OPTIMA study ispected to enroll 550 patients globally, with upl@0 sites in the United States, Eur:
China and Asia Pacific, and will evaluate Thermo®ar combination with RFA, which will be standardizésl a minimum of 45 minut
across all investigators and sites for treatingples 3 to 7 centimeters, versus standardized RiBAealThe primary endpoint for the tria
overall survival, and the secondary endpoint fa tial is PFS and Safety. The statistical platscar two interim efficacy analyses by
independent Data Monitoring Committee.

In addition, the Company recently met with the GhBtate Food and Drug Administration (CHINA FDA)discuss the OPTIMA Phase
trial, including minimum patient enrollment requitents supporting ThermoDax'registration in China. Based on those discussithe
Company is submitting an application for accelatapproval of the study in China. The Company ptansxpand its clinical site footprint
Europe and meet with the European Medicines Ag€BEBA) in the first half of 2014.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

We are providing the following cautionary discussad risk factors, uncertainties and assumptiorat the believe are relevant to our busin
These are factors that, individually or in the aggate, we think could cause our actual resultsifferdsignificantly from expected or histori
results and our forwardeoking statements. We note these factors for tov@ss permitted by Section 21E of the Securlieshange Act
1934, as amended (Exchange Act), and Section 2#t#e Becurities Act of 1933, as amended (Secudids You should understand that |
not possible to predict or identify all such fagoConsequently, you should not consider the faligwwto be a complete discussion of
potential risks or uncertainties that may impact tusiness. Moreover, we operate in a competitive gpidly changing environmerNew
factors emerge from time to time and it is not filwedo predict the impact of all of these factorsour business, financial condition or res
of operations. We undertake no obligation to pupligpdate forwardeoking statements, whether as a result of newrnmdgion, future event
or otherwise.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS
We have a history of significant losses from oper#ins and expect to continue to incur significant Isses for the foreseeable future.

Since our inception, our expenses have substgngatieeded our revenues, resulting in continuirsgde and an accumulated deficit of 4
million at December 31, 2013. For the year endedeler 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013, we incurred aosstdf $23.2 million, $26.6 million a
$8.3 million, respectively. We currently have noguct revenue and do not expect to generate amduproevenue for the foreseeable fut
Because we are committed to continuing our prodesgarch, development, clinical trial and commdimziion programs, we will continue
incur significant operating losses unless and wwéilcomplete the development of ThermoDoa®d other new products and these proc
have been clinically tested, approved by the Udddrand Drug Administration (FDA) and successfuatigrketed. The amount of future los
is uncertain. Our ability to achieve profitabilitif,ever, will depend on, among other things, usoor collaborators successfully develog
product candidates, obtaining regulatory approt@isarket and commercialize product candidates,ufia@turing any approved products
commercially reasonable terms, establishing a saldsmarketing organization or suitable third pattgrnatives for any approved product
raising sufficient funds to finance business atitgi If we or our collaborators are unable to dgyeand commercialize one or more of
product candidates or if sales revenue from angymbcandidate that receives approval is insuffigiave will not achieve profitability, whic
could have a material adverse effect on our busjfemncial condition, results of operations anospects.

Drug development is an inherently uncertain proceswith a high risk of failure at every stage of deviepment. Our lead drug candidate
failed to meets its primary endpoint in the Phasell HEAT study.

On January 31, 2013, we announced that our leadlptdhermoDox®@n combination with radiofrequency ablation (RFA)Iéd to meet tt
primary endpoint of the Phase Il clinical triakfprimary liver cancer, known as the HEAT study. Wéae not completed our final analysi:
the data and do not know the extent to which, ¥, dine failure of ThermoDox&o meet its primary endpoint in the Phase Il tdauld impac
our other ongoing studies of ThermoDox®. We expgedaunch a pivotal, double-blind, placebo-congdiPhase Il trial of ThermoDox®&
combination with RFA in primary liver cancer, knowas the OPTIMA study, in the first half of 2014.€eTtrial design of the OPTIMA study
based on the overall survival data from the postdmalysis of results from the HEAT study. Therma®as also being evaluated in a Pha
clinical trial for recurrent chest wall breast canand other preclinical studies.

Preclinical testing and clinical trials are longpensive and highly uncertain processes and faitare unexpectedly occur at any stag
clinical development, as evidenced by the failur@llermoDox®to meet its primary endpoint in the HEAT study. Brdevelopment is ve
risky. It will take us several years to completaichl trials. The start or end of a clinical trial often delayed or halted due to chan
regulatory requirements, manufacturing challengeguired clinical trial administrative actions, wkr than anticipated patient enrollmi
changing standards of care, availability or prewedeof use of a comparator drug or required pri@rapy, clinical outcomes includi
insufficient efficacy, safety concerns, or our ofimancial constraints. The results from preclinitadting or early clinical trials of a prod
candidate may not predict the results that wilbbé&ined in later phase clinical trials of the prodcandidate. We, the FDA or other applic
regulatory authorities may suspend clinical triafsa product candidate at any time for various @aas including a belief that subje
participating in such trials are being exposednaogeptable health risks or adverse side effecesm&y not have the financial resource
continue development of, or to enter into collatiores for, a product candidate if we experience proplems or other unforeseen events
delay or prevent regulatory approval of, or outlipbio commercialize, product candidates. Theufalof one or more of our drug candidate
development programs could have a material adeffset on our business, financial condition andiltssof operations.
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If we do not obtain or maintain FDA and foreign regulatory approvals for our drug candidates on a timéy basis, or at all, or if the terms
of any approval impose significant restrictions ofimitations on use, we will be unable to sell thosproducts and our business, results
operations and financial condition will be negativly affected.

To obtain regulatory approvals from the FDA andefgn regulatory agencies, we must conduct clinigals demonstrating that our prodt
are safe and effective. We may need to amend oggdoais or the FDA and/or foreign regulatory agesanay require us to perform additic
trials beyond those we planned. This process gépeakes a number of years and requires the aipee of substantial resources. The 1
required for completing testing and obtaining appi® is uncertain, and the FDA and foreign regujatmencies have substantial discretio
any phase of development, to terminate clinicadlistsl require additional clinical development dnesttesting, delay or withhold registrat
and marketing approval and mandate product withdigvincluding recalls. In addition, undesirabléeseffects caused by our drug candic
could cause us or regulatory authorities to infggrdelay or halt clinical trials and could resunlia more restricted label or the delay or deni
regulatory approval by regulatory authorities. Evfeme receive regulatory approval of a producg &pproval may limit the indicated uses
which the drug may be marketed. The failure to ioltianely regulatory approval of product candidatasy product marketing limitations o
product withdrawal would negatively impact our mesis, results of operations and financial condition

We do not expect to generate revenue for the foresable future.

We have devoted our resources to developing a revergtion of products and will not be able to matkese products until we he
completed clinical trials and obtain all necessgoyernmental approvals. Our lead product candiddtermoDox®iis still in various stages

development and trials and cannot be marketed weilhave completed clinical testing and obtainedessary governmental appro
Following our announcement on January 31, 2013 theatHEAT study failed to meet its primary endpadfitprogression free survival,
continue to follow the patients enrolled in the Hetdy to the secondary endpoint, overall surviBalsed on the overall survival data from
post-hoc analysis of results from the HEAT studg, plan to launch a pivotal, double-blind, placebotomolled Phase 11l trial of ThermoD@x
in combination with RFA in primary liver cancer,dsun as the OPTIMA study, in the first half of 20IhermoDox®is currently also beir
evaluated in Phase Il clinical trials and othercfinécal studies. We do not expect to realize amyenue from product sales in the next se
years, if at all. Accordingly, our revenue sourees, and will remain, extremely limited until ouropguct candidates are clinically tes
approved by the FDA or foreign regulatory ageneaieg successfully marketed. We cannot guaranteattyadf our product candidates will

successfully tested, approved by the FDA or forggulatory agency or marketed, successfully oemtise, at any time in the foresee:
future or at all.

We will need to raise substantial additional capithto fund our planned future operations, and we maybe unable to secure such capit
without dilutive financing transactions. If we are not able to raise additional capital, we may not bable to complete the developmer
testing and commercialization of our product candichtes.

As of December 31, 2013, we had approximately $ 48llion in cash, cash equivalents and shertn investments. We have substantial ft
capital requirements to continue our research aweldpment activities and advance our drug cane&dtitrough various development sta
For example, ThermoDox® is being evaluated in asBHBclinical trial for recurrent chest wall bréasncer and other preclinical studiesg
we expect to launch the OPTIMA study in the firatffof 2014. We will continue to conduct additioraadalyses of the data from the HE
study to assess the future strategic value of TOBOR® and are performing sudroup analysis of the Chinese cohort of patienthénHEAT
study and other activities for further developmehfThermoDox®for mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau. To congptee developme
and commercialization of our product candidates,wileneed to raise substantial amounts of addélorapital to fund our operations. (
future capital requirements will depend upon nurasranpredictable factors, including, without liniba, the cost, timing, progress ¢
outcomes of clinical studies and regulatory reviefveur proprietary drug candidates, our effortantiplement new collaborations, licenses
strategic transactions, general and administratixgenses, capital expenditures and other unforesses of cash. We do not have
committed sources of financing and cannot assuvetlyat alternate funding will be available in adijnmanner, on acceptable terms or a
We may need to pursue dilutive equity financingghsas the issuance of shares of common stockectilole debt or other convertible
exercisable securities. Such dilutive equity firiags could dilute the percentage ownership of auremt common stockholders and cc
significantly lower the market value of our commstock. In addition, a financing could result in isuance of new securities that may |
rights, preferences or privileges senior to thdssuo existing stockholders.
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If we are unable to obtain additional capital otinaely basis or on acceptable terms, we may beimredjio delay, reduce or terminate
research and development programs and preclinicalies or clinical trials, if any, limit strategiopportunities or undergo corpor
restructuring activities. We also could be requitedseek funds through arrangements with collabosabr others that may require us
relinquish rights to some of our technologies, piciccandidates or potential markets or that cooddase onerous financial or other tet
Furthermore, if we cannot fund our ongoing develephand other operating requirements, particuldryge associated with our obligation
conduct clinical trials under our licensing agreatsewe will be in breach of these licensing agreets and could therefore lose our lice
rights, which could have material adverse effeat®ar business.

We may not successfully engage in strategic trangamns, which could adversely affect our ability todevelop and commercialize produc
candidates, impact our cash position, increase o@xpense and present significant distractions to ounanagement.

We may consider strategic alternatives intendedutther the development of our business, which nragtude acquiring business
technologies or products, out- orlinensing product candidates or technologies oerarg into a business combination with another camy
Any strategic transaction may require us to incan-recurring or other charges, increase our nead- langterm expenditures and p¢
significant integration or implementation challesger disrupt our management or business. Thesaatdians would entail numerc
operational and financial risks, including expostoaunknown liabilities, disruption of our businessd diversion of our managementime
and attention in order to manage a collaboratiodemelop acquired products, product candidatesamologies, incurrence of substantial
or dilutive issuances of equity securities to payns$action consideration or costs, higher than eepecollaboration, acquisition or integrat
costs, writedowns of assets or goodwill or impairment chargasreased amortization expenses, difficulty andt dosfacilitating the
collaboration or combining the operations and pemsbof any acquired business, impairment of retesihips with key suppliers, manufactu
or customers of any acquired business due to cBangmanagement and ownership and the inabiliteetain key employees of any acqu
business. Accordingly, although there can be narasse that we will undertake or successfully catelany transactions of the na
described above, any transactions that we do caenpiay be subject to the foregoing or other riskd lhave a material adverse effect on
business, results of operations, financial conditamd prospects. Conversely, any failure to entgr strategic transaction that would
beneficial to us could delay the development antmt@l commercialization of our product candidasesl have a negative impact on
competitiveness of any product candidate that remomarket.

Our business depends on license agreements withrthiparties to permit us to use patented technologge The loss of any of our right
under these agreements could impair our ability talevelop and market our products.

Our success will depend, in a substantial partpunability to maintain our rights under licenseemments granting us rights to use pate
technologies. We have entered into license agretsmweth Duke University, under which we have exslasrights to commercialize medi
treatment products and procedures based on Dukermbsensitive liposome technology. The Duke Univer§itgnse agreement contain
license fee, royalty and/or research support pionss testing and regulatory milestones, and gbeefiormance requirements that we must |
by certain deadlines. Additionally, we have a joiesearch agreement with Philips Healthcare, asidini of Royal Philips Electronics,
evaluate the combination of Philips’ high intenditgused ultrasound (HIFU) with ThermoDox® determine the potential of this combina
to treat a broad range of cancers. If we breachpaiayisions of the license and research agreememgsnay our ability to use the subj
technology, as well as compensation for our effortdeveloping or exploiting the technology. Anychuoss of rights and access to technao
could have a material adverse effect on our busines

Further, we cannot guarantee that any patent cgrddchnology rights licensed to us by others wit be challenged or circumven
successfully by third parties, or that the rightanged will provide adequate protection. We mayréguired to alter any of our poten
products or processes, or enter into a licensgpagdicensing fees to a third party or cease aedativities. There can be no assurance thi
can obtain a license to any technology that werdete we need on reasonable terms, if at all, at ¥e could develop or otherwise ob
alternate technology. If a license is not availadmlecommercially reasonable terms or at all, owsilmss, results of operations, and finat
condition could be significantly harmed and we nb@yprevented from developing and commercializirgy ghoduct. Litigation, which cou
result in substantial costs, may also be necessagyforce any patents issued to or licensed byrus determine the scope and validit
others’ claimed proprietary rights.
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We rely on trade secret protection and other unpateted proprietary rights for important proprietary t echnologies, and any loss of su
rights could harm our business, results of operatias and financial condition.

We rely on trade secrets and confidential infororathat we seek to protect, in part, by confiddityiagreements with our corporate partn
collaborators, employees and consultants. We caastaire you that these agreements are adequatgtdotpur trade secrets and confide
information or will not be breached or, if breachede will have adequate remedies. Furthermore, retimay independently deve
substantially equivalent confidential and propmigt@mformation or otherwise gain access to ouréradcrets or disclose such technology.

loss of trade secret protection or other unpateptedrietary rights could harm our business, resnfltoperations and financial condition.

Our products may infringe patent rights of others,which may require costly litigation and, if we arenot successful, could cause us
pay substantial damages or limit our ability to conrmercialize our products.

Our commercial success depends on our ability &raip without infringing the patents and other pedpry rights of third parties. There n
be third party patents that relate to our prodwmtsl technology. We may unintentionally infringe opwalid patent rights of thi
parties. Although we currently are not involvedainy material litigation involving patents, a thipdrty patent holder may assert a clair
patent infringement against us in the future. Alggively, we may initiate litigation against therthparty patent holder to request that a ¢
declare that we are not infringing the third pastypatent and/or that the third pastypatent is invalid or unenforceable. If a clain
infringement is asserted against us and is suades®id therefore we are found to infringe, we dobk required to pay damages
infringement, including treble damages if it iselatined that we knew or became aware of such afpatel we failed to exercise due car
determining whether or not we infringed the patdéhtve have supplied infringing products to thirdrpes or have licensed third partie:
manufacture, use or market infringing productsmay be obligated to indemnify these third part@sdamages they may be required to pi
the patent holder and for any losses they may isustée can also be prevented from selling or coneiaézing any of our products that use
infringing technology in the future, unless we abta license from such third party. A license may be available from such third party
commercially reasonable terms, or may not be abvlailat all. Any modification to include a namfringing technology may not be possible ¢
possible may be difficult or timeensuming to develop, and require revalidation,cividould delay our ability to commercialize our guots
Any infringement action asserted against us, e¥emei are ultimately successful in defending agagsth action, would likely delay t
regulatory approval process of our products, hatm apmpetitive position, be expensive and requive time and attention of our k
management and technical personnel.

We rely on third parties to conduct all of our clinical trials. If these third parties are unable tocarry out their contractual duties in a
manner that is consistent with our expectations, ¢oply with budgets and other financial obligations © meet expected deadlines, v
may not receive certain development milestone paymts or be able to obtain regulatory approval for orcommercialize our produc
candidates in a timely or cost-effective manner.

We rely, and expect to continue to rely, on ttpatty clinical investigators, clinical research amgations (CROSs), clinical data manager
organizations and consultants to design, condugiersise and monitor our clinical trials. Because do not have the ability to conduct

own clinical trials, we must rely on the effortsathers and have limited control over, and cannedlist accurately, the timing of such trials,
costs associated with such trials or the procedimagsare followed for such trials. We do not expecsignificantly increase our personne
the foreseeable future and may continue to relyhod parties to conduct all of our future clinidakls. If we cannot contract with accepte
third parties on commercially reasonable termstallaif these third parties are unable to carmy their contractual duties or obligations

manner that is consistent with our expectationsneet expected deadlines, if they do not carry batttials in accordance with budge
amounts, if the quality or accuracy of the clinidata they obtain is compromised due to their failio adhere to our clinical protocols or
other reasons, or if they fail to maintain comptiarwith applicable government regulations and steds] our clinical trials may be extenc
delayed or terminated or may become significantbrarexpensive, we may not receive development toitespayments when expected ¢
all, and we may not be able to obtain regulatogyrayel for or successfully commercialize our pradtendidates.
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In all events, we are responsible for ensuring ¢&a&h of our clinical trials is conducted in ac@rce with the general investigational plan
protocols for the trial. The FDA requires clinidalals to be conducted in accordance with goodiadinpractices, including for conductii
recording and reporting the results of clinicalgito assure that data and reported results adébbe and accurate and that the rights, inte
and confidentiality of clinical trial participantere protected. Our reliance on third parties thatde not control does not relieve us of ti
responsibilities and requirements. Any such eventcchave a material adverse effect on our busjrigsmcial condition, results of operatic
and prospects.

Because we rely on third party manufacturing and spply partners, our supply of research and developmd, preclinical and clinical
development materials may become limited or interrpted or may not be of satisfactory quantity or quaity.

We rely on third party supply and manufacturingtpars to supply the materials and components fod, manufacture, our research

development, preclinical and clinical trial drugpplies. We do not own manufacturing facilities apgly sources for such components
materials. There can be no assurance that ourysopptsearch and development, preclinical andadirdevelopment drugs and other mate
will not be limited, interrupted, restricted in t&n geographic regions or of satisfactory quatiticontinue to be available at acceptable pr
Suppliers and manufacturers must meet applicableufaaturing requirements and undergo rigorous ifgcdnd process validation te
required by FDA and foreign regulatory authoritie®rder to comply with regulatory standards, sastturrent Good Manufacturing Practi
In the event that any of our suppliers or manufigrtufails to comply with such requirements or éfprm its obligations to us in relation
quality, timing or otherwise, or if our supply obmponents or other materials becomes limited arinpted for other reasons, we may
forced to manufacture the materials ourselveswiuch we currently do not have the capabilitiesesources, or enter into an agreement
another third party, which we may not be able tmdgeasonable terms, if at all.

Our business is subject to numerous and evolving ate, federal and foreign regulations and we may nobe able to secure th
government approvals needed to develop and marketio products.

Our research and development activities, glirgical tests and clinical trials, and ultimatehye manufacturing, marketing and labeling of
products, are all subject to extensive regulatiprinie FDA and foreign regulatory agencies. Blieical testing and clinical trial requireme
and the regulatory approval process typically tad@rs and require the expenditure of substantsuees. Additional government regula
may be established that could prevent or delaylatgy approval of our product candidates. Delaygegjections in obtaining regulatc
approvals would adversely affect our ability to enercialize any product candidates and our abititge¢nerate product revenues or royalties.

The FDA and foreign regulatory agencies requird tha safety and efficacy of product candidatesiggported through adequate and wel
controlled clinical trials. If the results of piaitclinical trials do not establish the safety a&fificacy of our product candidates to the satiéfa
of the FDA and other foreign regulatory agencies, will not receive the approvals necessary to ntaskeh product candidates. Eve
regulatory approval of a product candidate is grdnthe approval may include significant limitasoan the indicated uses for which
product may be marketed.

We are subject to the periodic inspection of oimic4l trials, facilities, procedures and operasi@md/or the testing of our products by the |
to determine whether our systems and processéiso®se of our vendors and suppliers, are in compdéiamth FDA regulations. Following su
inspections, the FDA may issue notices on Form &&8 warning letters that could cause us to modifyain activities identified during t
inspection. A Form 483 notice is generally issuetha conclusion of an FDA inspection and listsditons the FDA inspectors believe n
violate FDA regulations. FDA guidelines specify tteiawarning letter is issued only for violations “eégulatory significancefor which the
failure to adequately and promptly achieve corogctnay be expected to result in an enforcementracti

Failure to comply with the FDA and other governna¢émégulations can result in fines, unanticipatethpliance expenditures, recall or sei:
of products, total or partial suspension of progucend/or distribution, suspension of the FBAéview of product applications, enforcen
actions, injunctions and criminal prosecution. Unckertain circumstances, the FDA also has the aityhio revoke previously granted prod
approvals. Although we have internal compliancegprms, if these programs do not meet regulatorp@gstandards or if our compliance
deemed deficient in any significant way, it coult/a a material adverse effect on the Company.
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We are also subject to recordkeeping and reporiégulations. These regulations require, among dtfiegs, the reporting to the FDA
adverse events alleged to have been associatedhwitise of a product or in connection with cerfaimduct failures.

Labeling and promotional activities also are retpdaby the FDA. We must also comply with recorceiag requirements as well
requirements to report certain adverse events wnwplour products. The FDA can impose other poatketing controls on us as well as
products including, but not limited to, restricttoan sale and use, through the approval procegdatens and otherwise.

Many states in which we do or may do businessnowtiich our products may be sold, if at all, impdisensing, labeling or certificatic
requirements that are in addition to those impdsethe FDA. There can be no assurance that oneooe states will not impose regulation:
requirements that have a material adverse effeouombility to sell our products.

In many of the foreign countries in which we mayldesiness or in which our products may be soldwillebe subject to regulation by natiol
governments and supranational agencies as well &xchl agencies affecting, among other thingsdpod standards, packaging requirem
labeling requirements, import restrictions, taréfulations, duties and tax requirements. Therebeamo assurance that one or more countri
agencies will not impose regulations or requireraéinat could have a material adverse effect orability to sell our products.

Legislative and regulatory changes affecting the tathcare industry could adversely affect our businss.

Political, economic and regulatory influences anbjescting the healthcare industry to potential fuméntal changes that could substant
affect our results of operations. There have ke@&umber of government and private sector initegtiduring the last few years to limit
growth of healthcare costs, including price redafat competitive pricing, coverage and payment gied, comparative effectiveness
therapies, technology assessments and maragedarrangements. It is uncertain whether or vemgnlegislative proposals will be adopte:
what actions federal, state, or private payorshimalth care treatment and services may take ironsgpto any healthcare reform proposa
legislation. We cannot predict the effect healthamforms may have on our business and we can mdf@ssurances that any of these ref
will not have a material adverse effect on our beiss. These actual and potential changes are gatsimarketplace to put increased empl
on the delivery of more cosffective treatments. In addition, uncertainty remmaegarding proposed significant reforms to th8.Uealth ca
system.

The success of our products may be harmed if the gernment, private health insurers and other thirdparty payers do not provide
sufficient coverage or reimbursement.

Our ability to commercialize our new cancer treattngy/stems successfully will depend in part oneaktent to which reimbursement for
costs of such products and related treatmentsbailavailable from government health administratothorities, private health insurers
other thirdparty payors. The reimbursement status of newlyrama medical products is subject to significantenmainty. We cann
guarantee that adequate thparty insurance coverage will be available foraggtablish and maintain price levels sufficiemtus to realize ¢
appropriate return on our investment in developirgyv therapies. Government, private health insuegrd other thirdparty payors ai
increasingly attempting to contain healthcare cbstdimiting both coverage and the level of reimgmment for new therapeutic prodt
approved for marketing by the FDA. Accordingly, evecoverage and reimbursement are provided byegowuent, private health insurers
third-party payors for uses of our products, market decee of these products would be adversely affeiftéte reimbursement availal
proves to be unprofitable for health care providers

Our products may not achieve sufficient acceptancey the medical community to sustain our business.

The commercial success of our products will depgoah their acceptance by the medical communitythind-party payers as clinically uset
cost effective and safe. Any or our drug candidatey prove not to be effective in practice. If iegtand clinical practice do not confirm
safety and efficacy of our product candidates @neif further testing and clinical practice prodyssitive results but the medical commu
does not view these new forms of treatment as @fee@nd desirable, our efforts to market our neadpcts may fail, which would have
adverse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.
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The commercial potential of a drug candidate in deslopment is difficult to predict. If the market size for a new drug is significantly
smaller than we anticipate, it could significantlyand negatively impact our revenue, results of opetens and financial condition.

It is very difficult to predict the commercial pot#al of product candidates due to important facteuch as safety and efficacy compare
other available treatments, including potentialegendrug alternatives with similar efficacy prefil, changing standards of care, third
payor reimbursement standards, patient and physprieaferences, the availability of competitive alaives that may emerge either during
long drug development process or after commeraotabduction, and the availability of generic versicof our successful product candid
following approval by government health authoritiesed on the expiration of regulatory exclusieityour inability to prevent generic versi
from coming to market by asserting our patentslué to one or more of these risks the market piaiefior a drug candidate is lower than
anticipated, it could significantly and negativétypact the revenue potential for such drug candidaid would adversely affect our busin
financial condition and results of operations.

We have no internal sales or marketing capabilitylf we are unable to create sales, marketing and disbution capabilities or enter into
alliances with others possessing such capabilitige perform these functions, we will not be able tocommercialize our product:
successfully.

We currently have no sales, marketing or distrimutapabilities. We intend to market our produiétand when such products are approves
commercialization by the FDA and foreign regulatagencies, either directly or through other striatadiances and distribution arrangems
with third parties. If we decide to market our puots directly, we will need to commit significamdncial and managerial resources to dev
a marketing and sales force with technical expemisd with supporting distribution, administratismd compliance capabilities. If we rely
third parties with such capabilities to market puwducts, we will need to establish and maintairingaiship arrangements, and there can |
assurance that we will be able to enter into tpimdty marketing or distribution arrangements oreptable terms or at all. To the extent tha
do enter into such arrangements, we will be depande our marketing and distribution partners. ieeing into thirdparty marketing ¢
distribution arrangements, we expect to incur $igant additional expense and there can be no assearthat such third parties will estab
adequate sales and distribution capabilities suseessful in gaining market acceptance for outlyicts and services.

Technologies for the treatment of cancer are subjédo rapid change, and the development of treatmenstrategies that are mor
effective than our technologies could render our ®hnologies obsolete.

Various methods for treating cancer currently argl in the future are expected to be, the subfeextensive research and development. N
possible treatments that are being researchedicdessfully developed, may not require, or may Eugpthe use of our technologies.
successful development and acceptance of any onmug of these alternative forms of treatment coglter our technology obsolete ¢
cancer treatment method.

We may not be able to hire or retain key officers oemployees that we need to implement our businestrategy and develop ou
products and business.

Our success depends significantly on the contiragedributions of our executive officers, scientifiad technical personnel and consult:
and on our ability to attract additional personaelwe seek to implement our business strategy ewelap our products and businesses. Di
our operating history, we have assigned many @sseesponsibilities to a relatively small numbéiradividuals. However, as our business
the demands on our key employees expand, we haae bed will continue to be, required to recruititidnal qualified employees. T
competition for such qualified personnel is intenaed the loss of services of certain key persownebur inability to attract additior
personnel to fill critical positions could advesselffect our business. Further, we do not carryy“k&n” insurance on any of our person
Therefore, loss of the services of key personnelldvaoot be ameliorated by the receipt of the prdesdeom such insurance.

Our success will depend in part on our ability to gow and diversify, which in turn will require that we manage and control our growtl
effectively.

Our business strategy contemplates growth and sifieation. Our ability to manage growth effectiyetill require that we continue to expe
funds to improve our operational, financial and agement controls, reporting systems and procedimeaddition, we must effective
expand, train and manage our employees. We willieble to manage our business effectively if we warable to alleviate the strain
resources caused by growth in a timely and suagessinner. There can be no assurance that we willlile to manage our growth ar
failure to do so could have a material adversecefia our business.
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We face intense competition and the failure to congie effectively could adversely affect our abilityo develop and market our products

There are many companies and other institutionaged)in research and development of various teogred for cancer treatment products
seek treatment outcomes similar to those that weparsuing. We believe that the level of intergsbothers in investigating the potential
possible competitive treatments and alternativlrtelogies will continue and may increase. Potemtmhpetitors engaged in all areas of ca
treatment research in the United States and othertdes include, among others, major pharmacduspacialized technology companies,
universities and other research institutions. Msbur current and potential competitors have safiglly greater financial, technical, hun
and other resources, and may also have far gregperience than do we, both in mi@ical testing and human clinical trials of nevwoguct:
and in obtaining FDA and other regulatory approv@ee or more of these companies or institutiondcceucceed in developing product:
other technologies that are more effective thanptfoelucts and technologies that we have been odereloping, or which would render «
technology and products obsolete and nompetitive. Furthermore, if we are permitted tonooence commercial sales of any of our prod
we will also be competing, with respect to manuféaog efficiency and marketing, with companies mgvsubstantially greater resources
experience in these areas.

We may be subject to significant product liabilityclaims and litigation.

Our business exposes us to potential product ifighilsks inherent in the testing, manufacturingdamarketing of human therapel
products. We presently have product liability irssice limited to $10 million per incident and $10lion annually. If we were to be subjeci
a claim in excess of this coverage or to a claimaovered by our insurance and the claim succeagledyould be required to pay the cl:
with our own limited resources, which could havseaere adverse effect on our business. Whetheotova are ultimately successful in i
product liability litigation, such litigation woultharm the business by diverting the attention awburces of our management, consul
substantial amounts of our financial resources landlamaging our reputation. Additionally, we mayt he able to maintain our prod
liability insurance at an acceptable cost, if &t al

Our internal computer systems, or those of our CRO®r other contractors or consultants, may fail or sffer security breaches, whicl
could result in a material disruption of our product development programs.

Despite the implementation of security measuresjrdarnal computer systems and those of our CR@sosher contractors and consultants
vulnerable to damage from computer viruses, unaiza access, natural disasters, terrorism, war taletommunication and electri
failures. Such events could cause interruptiorsuofoperations. For instance, the loss of predini@ta or data from any clinical trial involvi
our product candidates could result in delays indmyelopment and regulatory filing efforts andnsfigantly increase our costs. To the ex
that any disruption or security breach were toltéswa loss of, or damage to, our data, or inappede disclosure of confidential or propriet
information, we could incur liability and the despment of our product candidates could be delayed.
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RISKS RELATED TO OUR SECURITIES

The market price of our common stock has been, anthay continue to be volatile and fluctuate significatly, which could result in
substantial losses for investors and subject us &ecurities class action litigation.

The trading price for our common stock has beed, @@ expect it to continue to be, volatile. Ouruly 31, 2013 announcement that
HEAT study failed to meet its primary endpoint hasulted in significant volatility and a steep deelin the price of our common stock, a l¢
of decline that could result in securities litigati Plaintiffs’ securities litigation firms have publicly announcttht they are investigati
potential securities fraud claims that they maytwis make against us. The price at which our comstock trades depends upon a numb
factors, including our historical and anticipatgaemting results, our financial situation, annouments of technological innovations or r
products by us or our competitors, our ability wability to raise the additional capital we may shemd the terms on which we raise it,
general market and economic conditions. Some &ktfi@ctors are beyond our control. Broad marketdlations may lower the market price
our common stock and affect the volume of tradingour stock, regardless of our financial conditioesults of operations, business
prospect. The closing price of our common stockeg®rted on The NASDAQ Capital Market had a higicgpof $42.12 and a low price
$3.47 in the 52-week period ended December 31, 284 3&djusted to reflect the 4.54aeverse split of our common stock effected ¢
October 28, 2013, and a high price of $4.57 arahagrice of $3.54 from January 2, 2014 through Mak2, 2014. Among the factors that r
cause the market price of our common stock todlatet are the risks described in this “Risk Fact@ection and other factors, including:
° results of preclinical and clinical studies of uoduct candidates or those of our competitors;

° regulatory or legal developments in the U.S. artiotountries, especially changes in laws and atignis applicable to o
product candidates;

e  actions taken by regulatory agencies with respeout product candidates, clinical studies, martufémy process or sales ¢
marketing terms;

° introductions and announcements of new productsudyor our competitors, and the timing of theseouhtictions ¢
announcements;

° announcements by us or our competitors of sicguifi acquisitions or other strategic transactioreapital commitments;
° fluctuations in our quarterly operating resultghe operating results of our competitors;

° variance in our financial performance from theeotations of investors;

° changes in the estimation of the future sizegogvth rate of our markets;

° changes in accounting principles or changestarfpmnetations of existing principles, which coufteat our financial results;
° failure of our products to achieve or maintairrkeaacceptance or commercial success;

° conditions and trends in the markets we serve;

° changes in general economic, industry and maxdeditions;

° success of competitive products and services;

° changes in market valuations or earnings of ounpetitors;

° changes in our pricing policies or the pricindigies of our competitors;

° changes in legislation or regulatory policieggbices or actions;

° the commencement or outcome of litigation invedyour company, our general industry or both;

° recruitment or departure of key personnel;

° changes in our capital structure, such as fusances of securities or the incurrence of aatwitidebt;



actual or anticipated changes in earnings estinatebanges in stock market analyst recommendat&garding our comm
stock, other comparable companies or our indusnetally;

actual or expected sales of our common stockupystwckholders; and

the trading volume of our common stock.
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In addition, the stock markets, in general, The WA® Capital Market and the market for pharmacelitaampanies in particular, m
experience a loss of investor confidence. Such déssvestor confidence may result in extreme peaoe volume fluctuations in our comn
stock that are unrelated or disproportionate todperating performance of our business, finanodaldition or results of operations. Th
broad market and industry factors may materiallyvhthe market price of our common stock and exp@s® securities class action litigati
Such litigation, even if unsuccessful, could betlga® defend and divert managemeandttention and resources, which could further riadhg
harm our financial condition and results of openadi

Future sales of our common stock in the public mar&t could cause our stock price to fall.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our comstock in the public market, or the percepticat these sales might occur, could def
the market price of our common stock and could impar ability to raise capital through the saleagiditional equity securities. As of Ma
12, 2014, we had 17,215,475 shares of common siatitanding, all of which shares, other than shamdd by our directors and cert
officers, were eligible for sale in the public merksubject in some cases to compliance with theirements of Rule 144, including the volt
limitations and manner of sale requirements. Initamd all of the shares of common stock issualperuexercise of warrants will be fre
tradable without restriction or further registratiopon issuance.

Our stockholders may experience significant dilutio as a result of future equity offerings or issuanes and exercise of outstandir
options and warrants.

In order to raise additional capital or pursueteg transactions, we may in the future offeryéser sell additional shares of our common ¢
or other securities convertible into or exchangedbl our common stock. Our stockholders may expee significant dilution as a result
future equity offerings or issuance. Investors pasing shares or other securities in the futureldctuave rights superior to existi
stockholders. As of March 12, 2014, we have a figant number of securities convertible into, doaling the purchase of, our common st
including 5,069,814 shares of common stock issuablen exercise of warrants outstanding, 1,186,68@0s to purchase shares of
common stock and restricted stock awards outstgndimd 4,450 shares of common stock reserved forgussuance under our stock incer
plans. Under the Controlled Equity Offerify  Salegeement entered into with Cantor Fitzgerald & 6n.February 1, 2013, we may o
and sell, from time to time through “at-the-marketferings, up to an aggregate of $25 million ofr&seof our common stock and we only ¢
$6.8 million under the agreement as of March 12420

We may be unable to maintain compliance with NASDAarketplace Rules which could cause our common stk to be delisted fron
The NASDAQ Capital Market. This could result in the lack of a market for our common stock, cause a degase in the value of a
investment in us, and adversely affect our businesBnancial condition and results of operations.

Our common stock is currently listed on The NASDE&@pital Market. To maintain the listing of our commstock on The NASDAQ Capi
Market, we are required to meet certain listingursgments, including, among others, either: (i)inimum closing bid price of $1.00 per shi
a market value of publicly held shares (excludihgres held by our executive officers, directors 28% or more stockholders) of at leas
million and stockholders2quity of at least $2.5 million; or (ii) a minimuohosing bid price of $1.00 per share, a marketeafipublicly heli
shares (excluding shares held by our executiveai directors and 10% or more stockholders) téagt $1 million and a total market ve
of listed securities of at least $35 million. AsMérch 12, 2014, the closing sale price of our camrstock was $3.94, the total market valt
our publicly held shares of our common stock (editlg shares held by our executive officers, dinectind 10% or more stockholders)
approximately $67 million and the total market \ahf our listed securities was approximately $68ioni. There is no assurance that we
continue to meet the minimum closing price requigatrand other listing requirements. As of Decen#ier2013, we had stockholdeesjuity
of $31.5 million.

On October 28, 2013, we effected a 4.5ktreverse stock split of our common stock primaidllypurposes of increasing the market price o
common stock, among others, and our common staectedtto trade on the pasplit basis on October 29, 2013. Other companigs faunc
that the increased stock prices resulting from n&vesplits tend to diminish over time unless sufgbby positive developments in the busir
The closing price of our common stock as reportedloe NASDAQ Capital Market has declined from $5ab4October 29, 2013 to $3.94
March 12, 2014.
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If the closing bid price of our common stock isd»el$1.00 per share or the total market value ofpulicly held shares of common stoc
below $35 million for 30 consecutive business dayes,could be subject to delisting from The NASDA@p&al Market. If our common sto
is delisted, trading of the stock will most likeigke place on an over-the-counter market estaldifdreunlisted securities, such as the |
Sheets or the OTC Bulletin Board. An investor kglly to find it less convenient to sell, or to dhtaccurate quotations in seeking to buy,
common stock on an over-the-counter market, andyrimsestors may not buy or sell our common stoc& thudifficulty in accessing over-the-
counter markets, or due to policies preventing tfremm trading in securities not listed on a natiogechange or other reasons. In addition,
delisted security, our common stock would be sultji@ SEC rules regarding “penny stockyhich impose additional disclosure requirem
on brokerdealers. The regulations relating to penny stockapled with the typically higher cost per tradérteestors in penny stocks due
factors such as broker commissions generally reptegy a higher percentage of the price of a petogk than of a higher priced stock, wc
further limit the ability and willingness of invess to trade in our common stock. For these reaandothers, delisting would adversely af
the liquidity, trading volume and price of our commmstock, causing the value of an investment itoudecrease and having an adverse ¢
on our business, financial condition and resultspdrations, including our ability to attract amdain qualified executives and employees
to raise capital.

The adverse capital and credit market conditions aald affect our liquidity.

Adverse capital and credit market conditions cafféct our ability to meet liquidity needs, as wadl our access to capital and cost of ca
The capital and credit markets have experienceeme volatility and disruption in recent years. r@sults of operations, financial conditi
cash flows and capital position could be materiatlyersely affected by continued disruptions indhgital and credit markets.

Our ability to use net operating losses to offsetifure taxable income are subject to certain limitaions.

We currently have significant net operating log$¢SLs) that may be used to offset future taxab&®mime. In general, under Section 382 o
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the)Cadeprporation that undergoes an “ownership cargsubject to limitations on
ability to utilize its preechange NOLs to offset future taxable income. Dur@il3, 2012 and 2011 the Company performed analy
determine if there were changes in ownership, &isate by Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Cdud tvould limit its ability to utiliz
certain net operating loss and tax credit carrwéods. The Company determined that it experienoeglaership change, as defined by Sei
382, in connection with certain common stock offga on July 25, 2011, February 5, 2013 and on 3u213. As a result, the utilization
the Company's federal tax net operating loss damyards generated prior to the ownership changdsnited. Future changes in our st
ownership, some of which are outside of our conteoluld result in an ownership change under Se@&h of the Code, which wot
significantly limit our ability to utilize NOLs toffset future taxable income.

We have never paid cash dividends on our common sfoin the past and do not anticipate paying cash didends on our common stoc
in the foreseeable future.

We have never declared or paid cash dividends oe@mumon stock. We do not anticipate paying arshatividends on our common stocl
the foreseeable future. We currently intend toimetdl available funds and any future earningsuodf the development and growth of
business. As a result, capital appreciation, if, afyour common stock will be the sole source ahdar the foreseeable future for holder:
our common stock.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents ad Delaware law could prevent or delay a change icontrol.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws maycdisrage, delay or prevent a merger or acquisitiah & stockholder may consider favor:
by authorizing the issuance of “blank chegk&ferred stock. This preferred stock may be issdnedur board of directors on such terms
determines, without further stockholder approvaleiefore, our board of directors may issue suckeped stock on terms unfavorable 1
potential bidder in the event that our board okdiors opposes a merger or acquisition. In additiem classified board of directors n
discourage such transactions by increasing the atrmfutime necessary to obtain majority represémmadn our board of directors. Cert
other provisions of our bylaws and of Delaware taay also discourage, delay or prevent a third giaoiyn acquiring or merging with us, e\
if such action were beneficial to some, or evenagonity, of our stockholders.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

In 2011, the Company executed a lease with BranyW@iperating Partnership, L.P. (Brandywine), a @afa limited partnership for a 10,¢
square foot premises located in Lawrenceville, Newnsey. In October 2011, the Company relocatedffitses to Lawrenceville, New Jers
from Columbia, Maryland. The lease has a term&®fh®nths and provides for six months rent freehulite first monthly rent payment
approximately $23,000 due in April 2012. Also, @gjuired by the lease, the Company provided Braimywith an irrevocable ai
unconditional standby letter of credit for $250,0@tich the Company secured with an escrow degdsts banking institution of this sal
amount. The lease stipulated standby letter afitvéll be reduced by $50,000 on each of the 18itst and 43rd months from the initial te
with the remaining $100,000 amount remaining uht Lease Term has expired. In connection withb&@ 000 reduction of the standby le
of credit in April 2013, the Company reduced therew deposit by $50,000.

We believe our existing facility is suitable andegdate to conduct our business.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are not currently a party to any material lggakeedings.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not Applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT' S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Price for Our Common Stock
Our common stock trades on The NASDAQ Capital Madgeler the symbol “CLSN”The following table sets forth the high and lowagpc

closing sale prices for the periods indicated gasheld to reflect the 4.5-tb-reverse split of our common stock effected ono®et 28, 201.
The quotations set forth below do not include teterkups, markdowns or commissions.

High Low

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
First Quarter (January 1 — March 31, 2013) $ 42.17 $ 4.3
Second Quarter (April 1 — June 30, 2013) $ 8.4z $ 3.47
Third Quarter (July 1 — September 30, 2013) $ 6.3¢ $ 4.91]
Fourth Quarter (October 1 — December 31, 2013) $ 5.72 $ 3.5¢

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
First Quarter (January 1 — March 31, 2012) $ 9.9¢ $ 7.3¢
Second Quarter (April 1 — June 30, 2012) $ 14.0¢ $ 7.9z
Third Quarter (July 1 — September 30, 2012) $ 26.5¢ $ 12.8:
Fourth Quarter (October 1 — December 31, 2012) $ 39.7¢ $ 19.3¢

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011
First Quarter (January 1 — March 31, 2011) $ 13.3i $ 9.81
Second Quarter (April 1 — June 30, 2011) $ 15.13 $ 9.72
Third Quarter (July 1 — September 30, 2011) $ 19.0¢ $ 11.2¢
Fourth Quarter (October 1 — December 31, 2011) $ 16.52 $ 7.61

On March 12, 2014, the last reported sale pricemfmrCommon Stock on the NASDAQ Capital Market ¥894. As of March 12, 2014, thi
were approximately 21,000 stockholders of recorduwfCommon Stock.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the percentage chamglee cumulative return to the stockholders of common stock during the five y«
period ended December 31, 2013 with the cumulatérern the NASDAQ Composite Index and the NASDA@tBchnology Index for tt
same periods.

Comparison of 5 Year Cumulative Total Return
Assumes Initial Investment of $100
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2150
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—— CEslon ~l—NASDAD Composite Index —k— NASDAD Biotechnoiogy index

The graph assumes that $100 was invested on Dec&hp2008 in our common stock or an index, and aiaividends were reinvested. '
have not declared nor paid any dividends on ournsom stock. Stockholder returns over the indicgtedod should not be conside
indicative of future stockholder returns.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid and have no pregention to pay cash dividends on our Common Stindke foreseeable future. We int
to retain any earnings for use in our businessatjm#s.

Securities Authorized For Issuance Under Equity Comensation Plans

See “Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Bernafi©wners and Management and Related Stockholdgteké—Equity Compensation Pl
Information.”

Unregistered Shares Of Equity Securities

All unregistered shares of equity securities hagenbpreviously reported by the Company in its QubrtReports on Form 1Q- or Currer
Reports on Form 8-K.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

None.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected financial data set forth below ismaxtessarily indicative of results of future opemasi and should be read together with Ite
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€alndition and Results of Operationgid the financial statements and related |
thereto included in Part Il, Item 8 of this AnnlRéport on Form 1@ to fully understand factors that may affect ttemparability of th
information presented below. All shares and peresidata have been adjusted to reflect the 4 B+tewerse split of our common stock effe:
as of October 28, 2013.

Year Ended December 31,
Statement of operations data: 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(in thousands, except per share data)

Licensing revenue $ 50C $ - $ 2,000 $ - $ =
Research and development expense 9,36¢ 15,77( 19,86¢ 14,71/ 13,68:
General and administrative expense 6,54 6,37 5,15¢ 4,92: 3,32
Total operating expense 15,91 22,14 25,01¢ 19,631 17,00¢
Operating loss (15,41 (22,149 (23,019 (19,63) (17,009
Other income (loss) 7,16( (4,426 (204) 81¢ 1,00¢

Net loss (8,25)) (26,569 (23,22) (18,819 (16,007)
Non-cash deemed dividend from beneficial conversi

feature on convertible preferred stock (4,602) = = = =
Net loss attributable to common shareholc $ (12,85) $ (26569 $  (2322) $ (18,819 $ (16,009

Net loss attributable to common shareholders per

common share - basic and diluted $ (0.99 s (349 % (5.00 $ (6.8 $ (6.49)

Weighted average shares used in computing net |

available to common shareholders per common s 13,54: 7,731 4,64¢ 2,7%( 2,36¢

As of December 31
Balance sheet data: 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 571¢ $ 14,99: $ 20,14¢ $ 1,13¢ % 6,92:
Investment securities, available for sale (inclgdin

interest receivable on investments) 37,36¢ 8,10¢ 10,40: 39¢ 5,69¢
Working capital (deficit) 39,09: 18,64 25,35¢ (4,769 10,36¢
Total assets 45,67 25,35¢ 32,64¢ 2,52¢ 14,80¢
Common stock warrant liability 3 4,28¢ 16€ 24¢ 822
Non current liabilities 9,47¢ 8,39: 30z 30¢E 1,01¢
Total liabilities 14,14; 13,39: 6,45¢ 7,101 4,76¢
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) 31,52: 11,96: 26,19 (4,57¢) 10,03¢
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussions should be read in confiemcwith our financial statements and related adtereto included in this Annual Reg
on Form 10-K. The following discussion containsifarddiooking statements made pursuant to the safe harbersions of Section 21E of t
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and the Privateuffiies Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These stagnts are based on our beliefs
expectations about future outcomes and are sutgjettks and uncertainties that could cause actsllts to differ materially from anticipal
results. Factors that could cause or contribututh differences include those described underlPigem 1A —Risk Factors appearing in t
Annual Report on Form 1R-and factors described in other cautionary statespecautionary language and risk factors set fortlothe
documents that we file with the Securities and Exge Commission. We undertake no obligation toligybupdate forwardeoking
statements, whether as a result of new informafigore events or otherwise.

Overview

Celsion is an oncology drug development companyded on the development of treatments for thodferaug with difficult-totreat forms c
cancer. We are working to develop and commerciatioge efficient, effective and targeted chemotheutip oncology drugs based on
proprietary heat-activated liposomal technologye Fomise of this drug technology is to maximizéicaty while minimizing sideeffect:
common to cancer treatments.

Significant Events

ThermoDo®

Our lead product ThermoDox® being evaluated in a Phase Ill clinical triat fsimary liver cancer (the OPTIMA study) startimgthe firs
half of 2014 and is being evaluated in a Phasdirical trial for recurrent chest wall breast can¢ite DIGNITY Study). ThermoDox@s &
liposomal encapsulation of doxorubicin, an approaed frequently used oncology drug for the treatnoémm wide range of cancers. Locali
heat at mild hyperthermia temperatures (greater 885 degrees Celsius) releases the encapsulaxedutbicin from the liposome enabli

high concentrations of doxorubicin to be deposjieaferentially in and around the targeted tumor.

Primary Liver Cance

On January 31, 2013, we announced that ThermoDox@®mbination with radio frequency ablation (RFdill not meet the primary endpc
of Progression Free Survival (PFS) of the 701 patddinical trial (the HEAT Study) in patients withepatocellular carcinoma (HCC), ¢
known as primary liver cancer. Specifically, weatatined, after conferring with the HEAT Study indaegent Data Monitoring Committ
(DMC), that the HEAT study did not meet the goaldeimonstrating persuasive evidence of clinicalatiffeness that could form the basis
regulatory approval. In the trial, ThermoDox® waslktolerated with no unexpected serious adverse evEot®wing the announcement
the HEAT study results, we continue to follow patgefor overall survival, the secondary endpointh&f HEAT study, on a quarterly basfge
have conducted a comprehensive analysis of thefidatathe HEAT study to assess the future strategioe of ThermoDox®As part of thi:
analysis, we are also maluating our product pipeline and research angtldpment priorities. In April 2013, we announcée deferral ¢
expenses associated with the Company’s Phase di siti ThermoDox ®in combination with RFA for the treatment of colota liver
metastases (The ABLATE Study) until such time as @ompany finalizes its plans for the continuatainits development program w
ThermoDox® in HCC.

The data from the HEAT Study post-hoc analysis esgggthat ThermoDox®ay substantially improve overall survival, whemmared to th
control group, in patients if their tumors undeaiimal RFA treatmenData from four overall survival sweeps have beamdaated since tt
top line PFS data from the HEAT Study was annouriceédinuary 2013, with each showing progressiveavgment in statistical significan:
In January 2014, we announced that the latest bwaravival data from its podtoc analysis of results from the HEAT Study supg
continued clinical development through a prospecgiiwotal Phase 11l Study. As reported in Janud¥4, posthoc data from the HEAT Stu
demonstrate that the patient subgroup in the ThBor@rm whose RFA procedure lasted longer than ibites (285 patients or 63% of sin
lesion patients), experienced a 55% improvemeatarall survival, with a Hazard Ratio of 0.64 (9%360.41 - 1.00) and a P-value = 0.0495.
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Emerging data from the HEAT Study pdgie analysis has been presented at three scieatificmedical conferences in 2013 by key Hl
Study investigators and leading liver cancer expdithe presentations include:

e World Conference on Interventional Oncology in M2HA3
e European Conference on Interventional Oncologyime201:
e International Liver Cancer Association Annual Caoefece in September 20

The Company also completed computational modeliitp wupplementary preclinical animal studies suppgrthe relationship betwe
heating duration and clinical outcomes.

On February 24, 2014, we announced that the FDXAr &6 customary 30 day review period, has pravided allowed, subject to compliai
with regulatory standards, clearance for our pldnipévotal, double-blind, placeboentrolled Phase Il trial (the OPTIMA Study)
ThermoDox®in combination with RFA in primary liver cancer (l€¢ The OPTIMA Study trial design is based on tbmprehensive analy:
of data from the HEAT study, which, as describedvah demonstrated that treatment with ThermoDoulted in a 55 percent improvemen
overall survival in a substantial number of HCCiguatls that received an optimized RFA treatment. Chenpany expects to launch the stuc
the first half of 2014. The OPTIMA study is designeith extensive input from globally recognized H@&3earchers and clinicians and ¢
formal consultation with FDA. The OPTIMA study igpeected to enroll 550 patients globally, with uplf0 sites in the United States, Eur
China and Asia Pacific, and will evaluate Thermo®ax combination with RFA, which will be standardizésl a minimum of 45 minut
across all investigators and sites for treatingphes 3 to 7 centimeters, versus standardized RiBAealThe primary endpoint for the tria
overall survival, and the secondary endpoint far ttal is PFS and Safety. The statistical plascr two interim efficacy analyses by
independent Data Monitoring Committee.

In addition, the Company recently met with the GhBtate Food and Drug Administration (CHINA FDA)discuss the OPTIMA Phase
trial including minimum patient enrollment requirents supporting ThermoDasregistration in China. Based on those discussiamsar:
submitting an application for accelerated appr@fahe study in China. The Company plans to expendlinical site footprint in Europe a
will meet with the European Medicines Agency (EMAY}he first half of 2014.

Technology Development Agreements

On May 6, 2012, we entered into a lotegm commercial supply agreement with Zhejiang Hiftharmaceutical Co. Ltd. (Hisun) for
production of ThermoDox@n mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau (the Cheratbry). Hisun will be responsible for providiradi of the
technical and regulatory support services for ttenufiacture of ThermoDox@n the China territory and we will repay Hisun thedatec
development costs and fees, which we expect toppeogimately $2.0 million in total, commencing dmetsuccessful completion of th
registrational batches of ThermoDox®&n January 18, 2013, we broadened our relationglhiip Hisun by entering into a technolc
development contract, pursuant to which Hisun pasda norrefundable research and development fee of $5.0omito support ot
development of ThermoDox@&nd we will provide research data and other tearsigpport in relation to a regulatory filing bysdn in Chin
for approval of ThermoDox®Following our announcement of the HEAT study resohl January 31, 2013, we and Hisun have agreétht
technology development contract entered into onidanl8, 2013 will remain in effect while the pagicontinue to collaborate the next ste|
relation to ThermoDox®which include the continued subgroup analysis ef@hinese cohort of patients in the HEAT Studyomary livel
cancer and other activities to further the develepnof ThermoDox® for the China territory.

On July 19, 2013, the Company and Hisun entered anemorandum of Understanding to pursue ongoaliglmorations for the continu
clinical development of ThermoDox® as well as teehinology transfer relating to the commercial maotufre of ThermoDox®&or the Chini
territory. This expanded collaboration includeselepment of the next generation liposomal formolatvith the goal of creating safer, m
efficacious versions of marketed cancer chemotleertags.
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As a result of the risks and uncertainties disalissehis Annual Report on Form ¥)-among others, we are unable to estimate thetida
and completion costs of our research and developprejects or when, if ever, and to what extent witk receive cash inflows from ti
commercialization and sale of a product. Our inghib complete any of our research and developraetivities, preclinical studies or clinic
trials in a timely manner or our failure to entetoi collaborative agreements when appropriate caiddificantly increase our capi
requirements and could adversely impact our liguidiVhile our estimated future capital requiremeats uncertain and could increas:
decrease as a result of many factors, includingxbent to which we choose to advance our resedssfelopment activities, preclinical stuc
and clinical trials, or if we are in a positiongarsue manufacturing or commercialization actigitiee will need significant additional capita
develop our product candidates through developraedt clinical trials, obtain regulatory approvalsdamanufacture and commerciali:
approved products, if any. We do not know whetherwill be able to access additional capital wheadeel or on terms favorable to us or
stockholders. Our inability to raise additional italp or to do so on terms reasonably acceptabiestovould jeopardize the future success o
business.

As a clinical stage biopharmaceutical company,baginess and our ability to execute our strateggctueve our corporate goals are subje
numerous risks and uncertainties. Material riskd @mcertainties relating to our business and adustry are described in "Part I, Item 1A. F
Factors" in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Cancers Other Than Primary Liver Cancer

In June 2012, we announced a collaboration withuthiwersity of Oxford to begin an early phase dalistudy of ThermoDox®lus HIFU ir
the treatment of metastatic liver cancer. The,tuidilich is supported by the National Institute ftgalth Research Oxford Biomedical Rese
Centre, will be carried out as a multidisciplinagllaboration between us, the Oxford Universitytibage of Biomedical Engineering and

Oxford University Hospitals NHS Trust. This earlhgse clinical study is being finalized and will uveg approval from a local eth
committee. Enroliment of the first patient in thifical study is targeted for 2014.

We are also working with the Focused Ultrasoundni@ation in preclinical studies designed to explbweuse of ThermoDox® combinatiol
with MR-guided HIFU for the treatment of pancreatic can¢ée studies are being conducted at the Univeddit}/ashington (UW) School
Medicine. The UW research is expected to includmahmodels to confirm the ability of HIFU to tatgeigh concentrations of doxorubicin
proprietary pancreatic cancer cell lines and iro\studies to assess the response to these turaatedrusing ThermoDox@ith and withou
HIFU-induced hyperthermia. We believe that these cotlimns are just the beginning for combining impattdevice technologies suct
HIFU with our low heat activated liposomal techrmpfo

We are engaged in a limited amount of researctdamdlopment in our own facilities and have spordoesearch programs in partnership
various research institutions, including the Nagilo@ancer Institute and Duke University. We arerently, with minimal cash expenditur
sponsoring clinical and pre-clinical research atltmiversity of Utrecht, Brigham and Women’s Hoapénd the Washington University.

In addition to the collaborations outlined aboves have one ongoing clinical study, a Phase Il smidfhermoDox®in combination witl
hyperthermia for the treatment of recurrent chesit (RCW) breast cancer (the DIGNITY study). In A#013, as part of our comprehens
analysis of the data from the HEAT study, we degitbedefer the Phase Il study of ThermoDaox®&ombination with RFA for the treatment
colorectal liver metastases (the ABLATE study) usttich time after we finalize our plans for the tomation of its development program w
ThermoDox® in primary liver cancer.

Cantor Fitzgerald & Co.

In April 2013, we engaged Cantor Fitzgerald & Goconduct a comprehensive review of merger andisitign opportunities with the goal
identifying novel products with high potential, @mmpanies, for Celsion to acquire. Strategic a#teves we may pursue could include, bu
not limited to, continuing its current operatingupl partnering or other collaboration agreemerguigition of another comparg/business 1
assets, or a merger or other strategic transacfiblere can be no assurance that the exploraticstrafegic alternatives will result in €
agreements or transactions, or that, if compledegl,agreements or transactions will be successfahattractive terms. To the extent we
unable to maintain a broad range of product catelijaur dependence on the success of one or priuct candidates would increase
results such as those announced in relation taHBAT study on January 31, 2013 will have a morenificant impact on our financi
prospects, financial condition and market values. deémonstrated by the HEAT Study results in JanB@t, drug research and developme
an inherently uncertain process and there is a fhisgghof failure at every stage prior to approvite timing and the outcome of clinical res
is extremely difficult to predict. Clinical develognt successes and failures can have a dispropateigoositive or negative impact on
scientific and medical prospects, financial prospefinancial condition and market value.
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Reverse Stock Sp

On October 28, 2013, the Company effected a rewvamsek split of our common stock at an exchange Kt 4.5-to41 and set the number
authorized shares of common stock outstanding inatedy after the split at 75 million shares. Aseault of the reverse stock split, every |
and a half shares of common stock outstanding inmatedg prior to the effectiveness of the reversektsplit were combined and convel
into one share of common stock immediately theeeafithout any change in the per share par valhe.Companys common stock started
trade on the posplit basis at the commencement of trading on Gut@9, 2013 under a new CUSIP number 15117N404 thétsame tick
symbol, CLSN. Unless otherwise expressly statezlsttare and per share data in this section andtedse in this Annual Report on Form KO-
have been adjusted to reflect the reverse stodk spl

Equity and Debt Financinc

During 2013, we issued 5.3 million shares of commstotk, including shares of common stock issuechugmmversion of the 15,000.00¢
shares of Series A 0% convertible preferred statkhe following equity transactions for an aggregé31.6 million in gross proceeds.
October 28, 2013, we effected a 4.5-to-1 revereafpur common stock.

e On February 1, 2013, we entered into a Controllgditg Offering SM Sales Agreement with Cantor Fitzgerald & Co., dss
agent, pursuant to which we may offer and selinftome to time through “at-the-marketfferings, shares of our common st
having an aggregate offering price of up to $25illan. From February 1, 2013 through February 2513, we sold and issued
aggregate of 1,195,923 shares of common stock wuidéragreement for approximately $6.8 millionggregate gross proceeds.

e On February 22, 2013, we entered into a Secuftiigshase Agreement with certain institutional in@es pursuant to which t
we sold, in a registered direct offering, an aggtegf 15,000.00422 shares of our Series A 0% atibiee preferred stock ai
warrants to purchase up to 1,341,382 shares of amstock, for an aggregate purchase price of appaiely $15.0 million il
gross proceeds. All of the shares of Series A Obvedible preferred stock have been converted2m82,764 shares of comrr
stock.

e On May 30, 2013, we entered into a Securities RagetAgreement with certain institutional investgugrsuant to which we so
in a registered direct offering, an aggregate &92,109 shares of our common stock for an aggregatehase price
approximately $9.8 million in gross proceeds.

During 2013, we received gross proceeds of appratéim $0.4 million from the exercise of warrantsdlaommon stock options to purch
30,499 shares of common stock.

In addition, the Company entered into a loan agesgron November 25, 2013 with Hercules Technologgwgh Capital, Inc. (Hercule:
pursuant to which the Company may borrow a sectaed loan of up to $20 million in multiple tranch@lse Hercules Credit Agreement).
Company drew the first tranche of $5 million at #tiesing under the Hercules Credit Agreement oneévayer 25, 2013 and may requ
subject to Herculestonsent in its sole discretion, an additional $illion in up to three advances with each advanca minimum amount «
$5 million, unless otherwise agreed upon by the gamy and Hercules, before June 30, 2014 unlessidedeupon Herculesionsent. Th
Company used approximately $4 million of the firsinche to repay the outstanding obligations urdiran agreement with Oxford Fina
LLC and Horizon Technology Finance Corporation. T@@mpany anticipates that it will use any additiofumding up to $15 million ¢
provided under the agreement for working capitahasupport of its previously announced strategigussition initiative, which is designed
identify new technologies and clinical stage prdddor its development pipeline. The loan bearsnéerest at a floating per annum rate e
to the greater of (i) 11.25 percent and (ii) thensaf 11.25 per cent plus the prime rate minus p@&5cent. Payments under the loan agree
are interest only for the first twelve months aftwan closing, followed by a 3Gonth amortization period of principal and intergsbugh th
scheduled maturity date.

On January 15, 2014, the Company entered into arfies Purchase Agreement with certain institutloimvestors, pursuant to which

Company sold, in a registered offering, an aggeegsdt3,603,604 shares of its common stock, parev®@.01 per share, and warrant
purchase up to 1,801,802 shares of Common Stocknfaggregate purchase price of approximatelyrdil®on.
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We believe that our cash and investment resouric$431 million on hand at December 31, 2013, ab agethe $13.8 million of net procet
the Company collectively received in the first daarof 2014 from the January 15, 2014 offering, suifficient to fund operations throu
2016. However, our future capital requirements wépend upon numerous unpredictable factors, diety without limitation, the cos
timing, progress and outcomes of clinical studied aegulatory reviews of our proprietary drug caladgiés, our efforts to implement n
collaborations, licenses and strategic transactigeseral and administrative expenses, capitalredipges and other unforeseen uses of
To complete the development and commercializatioouo products, we will need to raise substantmbants of additional capital to fund «
operations. We do not have any committed sourcémaficing and cannot give assurance that alteriusiging will be available in a time
manner, on acceptable terms or at all. We may mequursue dilutive equity financings, such as tbguance of shares of common st
preferred stock, convertible debt or other conbtor exercisable securities, which financingsldalilute the percentage ownership of
current common stockholders and could significahthyer the market value of our common stock. Pleader to Item IA, Risk Factol
including, but not limited to, YWe will need to raise substantial additional capitafund our planned future operations, and we rbayunabl
to secure such capital without dilutive financimgrisactions. If we are not able to raise additiosapital, we may not be able to complete
development, testing and commercialization of aodpct candidates’

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our financial statements, which appear at Item Thts Annual Report on Form 10; have been prepared in accordance with accot
principles generally accepted in the United Statdsch require that we make certain assumptionsemtichates and, in connection therev
adopt certain accounting policies. Our significantounting policies are set forth in Note 1 to fimancial statements. Of those policies,
believe that the policies discussed below may wea higher degree of judgment and may be morialrito an accurate reflection of «
financial condition and results of operations.

Stock-Based Compensation

We follow the provisions of ASC topic 718 “Competiga”’ which requires the expense recognition over a semeriod for the fair value
share based compensation awards, such as stockgptestricted stock and performance based shatgs.standard allows us to estak
modeling assumptions as to expected stock pricatilityl, option terms, forfeiture and dividend ratevhich directly impact estimated fair va
as determined. Our practice is to utilize reastnamnd supportable assumptions which are reviewitd @ur board of directors and
appropriate committee.

Common Stock Offering

Prior to the closing of the Common Stock Offering June 3, 2013, there were an insufficient numlexuthorized shares to complete
transaction. The investors in the Common Stocle®ff also held warrants to purchase common stbtheoCompany which were issuec
connection with previous offerings. Concurrent wittle closing of the Common Stock Offering, theitnibnal investors agreed to waive tt
rights to exercise these warrants to purchase B36&hares of common stock of the Company (theiVédeWarrants”until the Company hi
obtained stockholdersipproval to increase the number of its authorizedes of common stock in conjunction with the ps®ibreverse sto
split of its outstanding shares of common stockth&t Company’s 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholdekl on July 19, 2013, the Compasy’
stockholders voted to approve the proposal to gieeretionary authority to the Board of Directtwsamend the Certificate of Incorporatior
the Company, as amended, to effect, at any timeraqmior to the date of the 2014 Annual MeetingStdckholders, a reverse stock split &
exchange ratio within the specified range and tattse number of authorized shares effective imnteliaafter the reverse stock split at
million shares. On October 28, 2013, the Compafgctdd a 4.5-to-1 reverse stock split of its comrstmtk.

The warrants described above were originally reegrds equity at the fair value on the date of issea In accordance with ASC 845
Derivative Instruments and Hedgir- Contracts in Entity’s Own Equitythe Waived Warrants were required to be liabilitgssifiec
immediately after the closing of the Common Stodkefing on June 3, 2013 because there were anficigmt number of common sha
authorized to permit the full exercise of the watsa Therefore on June 3, 2013, the Company &fild the fair value of the Waiv
Warrants totaling approximately $9.1 million fromuity to a liability. The Waived Warrants were uégd to be recorded at fair value at €
balance sheet date with changes in fair value decbin earnings until such time as there were ficgerit number of common shares author
to permit the full exercise of the warrants (segeNbl). In connection with the Reverse StocktSpdi more fully described below, th
warrants were valued as of October 28, 2013, aacCttmpany reclassified the fair value of the WaiVairrants totaling approximately $
million from a liability to equity.
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We review our financial reporting and disclosuraqtices and accounting policies on an ongoing liassisure that our financial reporting
disclosure system provides accurate and transparfarmation relative to the current economic andgibess environment. As part of
process, the Company reviews the selection, apjgitaand communication of critical accounting p@i and financial disclosures. 1
preparation of our financial statements in conféymwith accounting principles generally acceptedthe United States requires that
management make estimates and assumptions thet #ifeereported amounts of assets and liabilitiess disclosure of contingent assets
liabilities at the date of the financial statemeatsl the reported amounts of revenues and expensieg the reporting period. We review
estimates and the methods by which they are detedron an ongoing basis. However, actual resutikiatiffer from our estimates.

Results of Operations
Comparison of Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2008 &iscal Year Ended December 31, 2012.

Licensing RevenL

On January 18, 2013, we entered into a technoleggldpment contract with Hisun, pursuant to whigbud paid us a norefundable resear
and development fee of $5 million to support ouvedepment of ThermoDox® in the China territory. TH&.0 million received as a non-
refundable payment from Hisun in the first qua6d3 has been recorded to deferred revenue andantinue to be amortized over the
year term of the agreement, therefore we recorééeretd revenue of $500,000 in 2013. We had nasicg revenue in 2012 and we do
expect to generate any licensing revenue in 20bérothen deferred revenue of $500,000 to be redomerelation to the technolo
development contract with Hisun.

Research and Development Exper

Research and development (R&D) expenses decregs#f.4 million from $15.8 million in 2012 to $9.4ilfion in 2013. Costs associal
with the HEAT Study decreased to $3.7 million inlaCcompared to $7.7 million in 2012 primarily dweréduced costs associated with
HEAT Study after the data results were announcedasmary 31, 2013. Costs associated with our mecuchest wall breast cancer clin
trial (the DIGNITY Study) remained relatively unctged at $0.4 million in 2013 compared to 2012. Aesult of our decision to delay «
colorectal liver metastases trial (the ABLATE Studgllowing the announcement of the HEAT Study tesuthe related costs we
insignificant in 2013 compared to $0.2 million iA12. Other R&D costs related to preclinical operst and regulatory operations decrei
to $1.0 million in 2013 compared to $2.0 million2012. Costs associated with the production ofrfle®ox® decreased to $2.8 million
2013 compared to $4.0 million the same period df20

In April 2013, the Company has implemented a restiing program to lower its operating costs tossyne capital to ensure that our cost:
adequately aligned with our resources and busis&sdéegy. The program included elimination of axmately one-third of Celsior’
workforce and the deferral of expenses associatrtiae ABLATE Study.

As we expect to initiate the OPTIMA Study in thesfihalf of 2014 and as we continue to evaluatemb®ox® in the DIGNITY Study, w
expect research and development costs to increa@@li4 compared to 2013. Our expenditures on cuemedh future preclinical developm:
programs and clinical trials are subject to numsrancertainties and risks associated with timiragt @and progress of such developr
programs and clinical trials, including those umaieties and risks discussed in Part I, Item 1AstRFactors’in this Annual Report on Foi
10-K.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increasedtlgligh$6.5 million in 2013 compared to $6.4 milian 2012. This increase is largely
result of an increase in professional fees in 28@ severance costs ($0.2 million in 2013) relétethe April 2013 restructuring program
discussed above compared to the same period of 2012
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Change in Common Stock Warrant Liability

A warrant liability was incurred as a result of vearts we issued in a public offering in Septemb@® The liability associated with the
warrants is calculated at its fair market valuengghe Black-Scholes optiguricing model and is adjusted at the end of eaelrtqu For 201.
we recorded a non-cash benefit of $4.3 million Hase the change in the fair value of the warramisgared to a nonash charge of $4
million in the same period of 2012.

In connection with the Common Stock Offering in thecond quarter of 2013, the investors in the iffeagreed to waive their rights
exercise the warrants to purchase 1,398,816 sbamsmmon stock of the Company until the Company éfiected a reverse stock split
increased the number of its authorized shares mihon stock. During the second quarter of 2013,Gbmpany reclassified the fair value
these warrants totaling $9.1 million from equityatdiability on the date of the closing of the offg on June 3, 2013. Prior to the offering
warrants described above were originally recorde@quity at the fair value on the date of theiudge. In accordance with ASC 846-
Derivative Instruments and Hedgil- Contracts in Entity’s Own Equityhese warrants were required to be classifiedaddlities immediatel
after the closing of the common stock offering ame) 3, 2013 because there were an insufficient rarabcommon shares authorizec
permit the full exercise of the warrants if theyravexercised. Therefore, these warrants are iedjtir be recorded at fair value at each ba
sheet date with changes in fair value recordedinirgs. In connection with the reverse stock $hétCompany effected on October 28, 2
these warrants were valued as of October 28, 20@Bthe Company reclassified the fair value ofWeived Warrants totaling approximat
$5.3 million from a liability to equity. The changethe fair value of the warrants which were waifeom the time they were liability classifi
to the time they were equity reclassified resulted non-cash benefit of $3.8 million in 2013.

Collectively, the Company recorded a non-cash bietoealing $8.1 million in 2013 compared to recoigla noneash charge of $4.1 million
2012.

Investment income and interest expe

Interest expense in 2013 was $0.9 million comp#oe®D.4 million in 2012. The Company entered inth5amillion loan facility in June 201
The Company repaid this loan facility in full on Wanber 25, 2013 by using proceeds from the fimtdhe of $5 million the Compa
withdrew under the Hercules Credit Agreement extém® on November 25, 2013. Investment income massignificant in 2013 and 2012.

Other (expense) income

Other (expense) income for 2013 and 2012 was gatfigant.
Comparison of Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 20h? &iscal Year Ended December 31, 2011.

Licensing Revent

We had no licensing revenue for the year ended mbee 31, 2012. In the first quarter of 2011, weommized $2 million in licensing rever
after amending our development, product supply @rmmercialization agreement for ThermoDox@h Yakult Honsha Co. to provide 1
accelerated payments of up to $4 million in futamdestone payments, including $2 million that wasdpto us on January 12, 2011
exchange for a reduction in product approval miless that we may receive in the future under thaut@greement.

Research and Development Exper

Research and Development (R&D) expenses decreasktbt8 million in 2012 compared to $19.9 million2011. Costs associated with
Phase Il HEAT study decreased to $7.7 million @12 compared to $12.1 million in 2011. This deseess primarily the result of reach
enrolliment targets for this pivotal study in themed quarter of 2012. Costs associated with czurrent chest wall breast cancer clinical
(RCW) remained relatively unchanged at $0.4 miliior2012 and 2011. Costs associated with the CaogpdCRLM trial were $0.2 million i
2012 compared to $0.3 million in 2011. Other claticelated expenses decreased slightly to $1.5omilh 2012 compared to $1.6 million
2011. Preclinical costs increased slightly to $®iBion in 2012 compared to $0.8 million in 201Costs associated with regulatory activi
increased to $1.1 million in 2012 compared to $®iflion in 2011 as the Company prepared for a pigérsubmission of a New Dri
Application (NDA) in the event of positive data fncthe HEAT Study. Costs associated with the pradoatf ThermoDox®decreased to $4
million in 2012 compared to $4.3 million in 201lirparily due to the timing of registration batcheslangoing development of manufactu
capabilities for ThermoDox®.

41




General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased.dor$iflion in 2012 compared to $5.2 million in 201This increase is largely the result o
increase in professional fees related to producketanalysis, business development activities,@ardonnel costs in 2012 compared to 2011

Change in common stock warrant liability

A common stock warrant liability was incurred aseault of warrants issued in a public offering Ep&mber 2009. This liability is calcula

at its fair market value using the Black-Scholesavppricing model and is adjusted at the end aheguarter. During 2012 we recorded a not
cash charge of $4.1 million based on the changeisrfair value in 2012. During 2011 we recordeaba<cash benefit of $0.1 million based
the change in this fair value during 2011.

Investment income and interest expe

Investment income was $0.1 million in 2012 compae0.2 million in 2011. Interest expense in 20d&s $0.4 million mostly as a resulf
interest charges the Company incurred in conneetiinthe Companys $5.0 million Venture Debt Loan facility. In coration with the share
of preferred stock we issued in our January 20&iepred stock offering, we incurred dividend chargéapproximately $0.5 million in 2011.

Other (expense) income

Other (expense) income for 2012 and 2011 was gatfigant.
Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since inception, excluding the net aggregate paysneteived from Boston Scientific of $43 millionrdugh the divestiture of our medi
device business in 2007 (which we received in Imsents of $13 million in 2007 and $15 million iaeh of 2008 and 2009), we have incu
significant losses and negative cash flows fronrajiens. We have financed our operations primahhpugh the net proceeds we receive
this divesture, subsequent sales of equity, cfeditities and amounts received under our prodisginking agreement with Yakult and
technology agreement with Hisun. The process oéldging and commercializing ThermoDox@quires significant research and developi
work and clinical trial studies, as well as sigedfint manufacturing and process development effékts.expect these activities, together
our general and administrative expenses to resudignificant operating losses for the foreseeéltiere. Our expenses have significantly
regularly exceeded our revenues, and we had ammatated deficit of $169 million at December 31, 201

At December 31, 2013 we had total current asse®48f8 million (including cash, cash equivalentsl ahort term investments and relz
interest receivable on short term investments 8t B4nillion) and current liabilities of $4.7 millip resulting in net working capital of $3'
million. At December 31, 2012, we had total currassets of $23.6 million (including cash and shentn investments and related acci
interest on the short term investments of $23.lionjl and current liabilities of $5.0 million, reéng in working capital of $18.6 million.

Net cash used in operating activities for the 208 $9.5 million. Our 2013 net loss included $in#llion in nor-cash stoclkbase:
compensation expense and $8.1 million in non-casletit based on the change in the common stoclawglinbility.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $2dlion during 2013 which consisted primarily oproximately $6.7 million of n
proceeds from sale of 1,195,923 shares of the Coy'®@ommon stock in connection with the ATM Agreemapproximately $13.6 millic
of net proceeds from sale of approximately 15,00@res of the Comparg’Series A 0% convertible preferred stock and tlagramts t
purchase shares of its common stock in the PrefeSteck Offering, approximately $8.9 million of ngtoceeds from the sale of 1,392,
shares of its common stock and approximately $0iHiom of gross proceeds from the exercise of amicand warrants to purchi
approximately 28,000 shares of the Company’s comstiook, each as adjusted to reflect the 4.5-teverse stock split made effective
October 2013
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On January 18, 2013, we entered into a technoleggldpment contract with Hisun, pursuant to whidbud paid us a norefundable resear
and development fee of $5.0 million to support development of ThermoDox® in the China territory.

The $9.5 million net cash used in operating adéigitvas mostly funded from cash and short termsiments. At December 31, 2013, we
cash, cash equivalents and short term investmedtsedated interest receivable on short term imaests of $43.1 million.

On November 25, 2013, the Company entered intddttreules Credit Agreement, pursuant to which then@any may borrow a secured t
loan of up to $20 million in multiple tranches. TBempany drew the first tranche of $5 million & ttlosing on November 25, 2013 and t
approximately $4 million of the proceeds to repag butstanding obligations under a loan agreeméht @xford Finance LLC and Horiz:
Technology Finance Corporation. The Company mayesgan additional $15 million in up to three acdemwith each advance in a minirr
amount of $5 million, unless otherwise agreed upgrthe Company and Hercules, before June 30, 20less extended upon Hercules
consent. The loan bears an interest at a floa@mgpnum rate equal to the greater of (i) 11.28qm@rand (ii) the sum of 11.25 per cent plus
prime rate minus 3.25 per cent. Payments unddoptreagreement are interest only for the first Weehonths after loan closing, followed k
30-month amortization period of principal and ietgrthrough the scheduled maturity date.

In January 2014, the Company sold in a registenmegttdoffering, an aggregate of 3,603,604 sharesbafmon stock and warrants to purct
up to 1,801,802 shares of Common Stock, for aneagde purchase price of approximately $15 millibime net proceeds from this offering
the Company were approximately $13.8 million.

We believe that our cash and investment resourfc§431 million on hand at December 31, 2013, ab asethe $13.8 million of net proces
the Company collectively received in the first geaof 2014 from the January 2014 registered dioffetring are sufficient to fund operatic
through 2016. However, our future capital requieais will depend upon numerous unpredictable factoicluding, without limitation, tt
cost, timing, progress and outcomes of clinicatligtsi and regulatory reviews of our proprietary deagdidates, our efforts to implement 1
collaborations, licenses and strategic transactigeiseral and administrative expenses, capitalredipges and other unforeseen uses of cash.

We may seek additional capital through further pubk private equity offerings, debt financing, &duhal strategic alliance and licens
arrangements, collaborative arrangements, or sambioation of these financing alternatives. If vaese additional funds through the issuz
of equity securities, the percentage ownershipuofstockholders could be significantly diluted ahd newly issued equity securities may |
rights, preferences, or privileges senior to thokthe holders of our common stock. If we raised&ithrough the issuance of debt secur
those securities may have rights, preferences pantdeges senior to those of our common stockwéf seek strategic alliances, license:
other alternative arrangements, such as arrangemgtit collaborative partners or others, we maydnierelinquish rights to certain of ¢
existing or future technologies, product candidategproducts we would otherwise seek to developomnmercialize on our own, or to licel
the rights to our technologies, product candidateproducts on terms that are not favorable to Uife overall status of the economic clin
could also result in the terms of any equity offgridebt financing, or alliance, license, or otagangement being even less favorable to u
our stockholders than if the overall economic ctienavere stronger. We also will continue to loak fjovernment sponsored rese:
collaborations and grants to help offset futurécpdated losses from operations and, to a lesgengxnterest income.

If adequate funds are not available through eithercapital markets, strategic alliances, or caltators, we may be required to delay or, re
the scope of, or terminate our research, developgnmainical programs, manufacturing, or commeraiation efforts, or effect additior
changes to our facilities or personnel, or obtaimds through other arrangements that may requite tedinquish some of our assets or righ
certain of our existing or future technologies,durct candidates, or products on terms not favoriables.

Contractual Obligations

In July 2011, the Company executed a lease (thsd)eaith Brandywine Operating Partnership, L.P.afRRlywine), a Delaware limit
partnership for a 10,870 square foot premises éacat Lawrenceville, New Jersey. In October 20the, Company relocated its offices
Lawrenceville, New Jersey from Columbia, Marylarithe Lease has a term of 66 months and provide6 fapnths rent free, with the fi
monthly rent payment of approximately $23,000 doeé paid in April 2012. Also, as required by theake, the Company provided Brandyv
with an irrevocable and unconditional standby fettecredit for $250,000, which the Company secusgéith an escrow deposit at its bank
institution of this same amount. The standby tettfecredit will be reduced by $50,000 on eachhsf 19th , 31st and 43rd months from
initial term, with the remaining $100,000 amouninening until the Lease Term has expired. In cotioeavith the $50,000 reduction of |
standby letter of credit in April 2013, the Comparyuced the escrow deposit by $50,000.
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Following is a summary of the future minimum paytserequired under leases that have initial or remgilease terms of one year or mor
of December 31, 2013:

Capital Operating
For the year ending December 31: Lease: Lease!
2014 $ 11,30¢ $ 286,24:
2015 — 291,67!
2016 — 297,11
2017 — 99,64
2018 and beyond — —
Total minimum lease payments 11,30: $ 974,67t
Less amounts of lease payments that represengstter 412
Present value of future minimum capital lease payme 10,85!
Less current obligations under capital leases 10,85!
$ —
Following is a schedule of future principle paynseander the Hercules Credit Agreement:
Hercules
Credit
Agreement
For the year ending December 31:
2014 $ —
2015 1,827,11!
2016 2,045,79
2017 1,127,08
$ 5,000,001

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not utilize off-balance sheet financing agements as a source of liquidity or financing.
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DI SCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

The primary objective of our cash investment atiigiis to preserve principal while at the samestimaximizing the income we receive fr
our investments without significantly increasingkri Some of the securities that we invest in maguigect to market risk. This means th
change in prevailing interest rates may cause timeipal amount of the investment to fluctuate. Eeample, if we hold a security that \
issued with a fixed interest rate at the tipeavailing rate and the interest rate later rigies,principal amount of our investment will probg
decline. A hypothetical 50 basis point increasimiarest rates reduces the fair value of our alukEléor-sale securities at December 31, 201
an immaterial amount. To minimize this risk in fiaéure, we intend to maintain our portfolio of casfjuivalents and marketable securities
variety of securities, including commercial papgovernment and nogevernment debt securities and/or money marketsuhdt invest i
such securities. We have no holdings of derivafivancial or commodity instruments. As of DecemB#&y 2013, our investments consiste
investments in corporate notes and obligationsnomoney market accounts and checking funds witlalslr market rates of interest. '
believe our credit risk is immaterial.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements, supplementary data goatrtref independent registered public accounting fare filed as part of this report on pe
F-1 through F-32 and incorporated herein by refezen

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

€) Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have conducted an evaluation of the effectiveroéshe design and operation of our disclosurgrotmand procedures (as such ter
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 158(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934nasnded (the Exchange Act)) under the superv
and with the participation, of our management,tdaig our principal executive officer and princifi@ancial officer. Based on that evaluati
our principal executive officer and principal fir@al officer concluded that as of December 31, 2@tdch is the end of the period coverec
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, our disclosuretoals and procedures are effective.

(b) Management's Report on Internal Coln@ver Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaititaining adequate internal control over finahm@porting as defined in Rules 13&(f)
and 15d15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934ur fdternal control over financial reporting is eopess designed by, or under
supervision of, our chief executive officer andefhiinancial officer, or persons performing simifamctions, and effected by our boarc
directors, management and other personnel, to gea@asonable assurance regarding the reliabfliipancial reporting and the preparatior
financial statements for external purposes in a@muce with accounting principles generally acceptedhe United States of Ameri
(GAAP). Our internal control over financial repog includes those policies and procedures thapd(itain to the maintenance of records
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflbet transactions and disposition of the assetieoCompany; (ii) provide reasonable assur
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgreparation of financial statements in accorgaméth GAAP and that receipts ¢
expenditures of the Company are being made onpcgordance with authorization of management anecttirs of the Company; and (
provide reasonable assurance regarding preventiimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, ,usedisposition of the Compars/asse
that could have a material effect on the finansiatements.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cghspaternal control over financial reporting as oéd@mber 31, 2013. In making 1
assessment, management used the criteria setbfprthe Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of Tneadway Commission in Inter
Control-Integrated Framework of 1992 (COSO FraméyvoBased on its evaluation, management has cdedlthat the Comparg/interna
control over financial reporting is effective asiécember 31, 2013.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes an attgmtareport of the Compang’independent registered public accounting firreg8tan an
Company, regarding internal control over financegorting.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtsver financial reporting may not prevent or detamisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgject to the risk that controls may become inadegjbecause of changes in conditions ol
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdures may deteriorate. A control system, no mattev well designed and operated
provide only reasonable, but not absolute, assartrat the control systembbjectives will be met. The design of a consyddtem must refle
the fact that there are resource constraints, lemtiénefits of controls must be considered reldtuwbeir cost.

(c) Changes in Internal Control Over Ficial Reporting
There have been no changes in our internal coote financial reporting in the fiscal quarter edd#ecember 31, 2013, which were identi

in connection with our management’s evaluation ieguby paragraph (d) of rules 13a-15 and 15dunder the Exchange Act, that h
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenally affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.
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(d) Inherent Limitations on the Effectiess of Controls

Our management, including the chief executive effiand chief financial officer, does not expect thar disclosure controls and proced:
and our internal control over financial reportingllvprevent all error and all fraud. A control sget, no matter how well conceived
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absohgeurance that the objectives of the controlesysare met. Because of the inhe
limitations in all control systems, no evaluatidncontrols can provide absolute assurance thataaitrol issues and instances of fraud, if
within the company have been detected. These inhéngitations include the realities that judgmeimtsiecision making can be faulty and -
breakdowns can occur because of simple error daka@s Additionally, controls can be circumventedthg individual acts of some persons
collusion of two or more people or by managemerdroge of the control. The design of any systentaftrols also is based in part y
certain assumptions about the likelihood of futewents, and there can be no assurance that argndeli succeed in achieving its stated g
under all potential future conditions. Over timentols may become inadequate because of changesditions, or the degree of complia
with the policies or procedures may deterioratecadee of the inherent limitations in a ceffiective control system, misstatements due tor
or fraud may occur and not be detected.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes an attgmtareport of the Compang’independent registered public accounting firreg8tan an
Company, regarding internal control over financegorting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The information required by this Item 10 is herigicorporated by reference to the definitive Proxgt&ment to be filed with the Securities
Exchange Commission (SEC) pursuant to Regulatioh Within 120 days after the end of the fiscal yeawered by this Annual Report
Form 10-K.
ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 11 is herigicorporated by reference to the definitive Proxgt&ment to be filed with the SEC purst
to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the endhef fiscal year covered by this Annual Report omi@0-K.

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item 12 is hergicorporated by reference to the definitive Proxgt&@ment to be filed with the SEC purst
to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the endhef fiscal year covered by this Annual Report omi@0-K.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELA TED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 13 is herigicorporated by reference to the definitive Proxgt&ment to be filed with the SEC purst
to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the endhef fiscal year covered by this Annual Report omi@0-K.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 14 is hergicorporated by reference to the definitive Proxgt&@ment to be filed with the SEC purst
to Regulation 14A within 120 days after the endhef fiscal year covered by this Annual Report omi@0-K.
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ITEM 15.

PART IV

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEM ENT SCHEDULES

1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following

is a list of the financial statemewfsCelsion Corporation filed with this Annual Repon Form 10K, together with the repol

of our independent registered public accountands\d@nagement’s Report on Internal Control over fai@ Reporting.

Page
REPORTS
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfging F-1
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Balance Sheets F-2
Statements of Operations F-3
Statements of Comprehensive Loss F-4
Statements of Cash Flows F-5
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity (@fi F-6
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS F-9

2. FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

All financial statement schedules are omitted bseahe information is inapplicable or presentethenotes to the financial statements.

3. EXHIBITS

The following
EXHIBIT NO.
3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.1

4.2

documents are included as exhibitthts report:

DESCRIPTION
Certificate of Incorporation of Celsion, as amendedorporated herein by reference to Exhibit & 2he Quarterly Report
Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarter ended 30n2004.

Certificate of Ownership and Merger of Celsion Gogiion (a Maryland Corporation) into Celsion (De#ae) Corporatio
(inter alia, changing the Company’s name to “Celtorporation” from Celsion (Delaware) Corporation), incorporated ht

by reference to Exhibit 3.1.3 to the Annual Report-orm 10-K of the Company for the year ended &aper 30, 2000.

Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Imporation effective and filed on February 27, 20@D@orporated therein |
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report om#8-K of the Company filed on March 1, 2006.

Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Celsion Corporation, incorporated hergirréference to Exhibit 3
to the Current Report on Form 8-K of the Compaiigdfon October 29, 2013.

Bylaws of the Company, as amended and restated pmiaied herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to tlherént Report on For
8-K of the Company, filed on December 1, 2011.

Form of Common Stock Certificate, par value $0.idtprporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1the Annual Report ¢
Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended Sepszr@, 2000.

Form of Common Stock Warrant, incorporateceimeby reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Repm Form 8K of the
Company filed on September 28, 2009.
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4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

412

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

Registration Rights Agreement, dated June 17, 2B¢@&nd between Celsion Corporation and Small CapeBh Value, Ltd
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.th® Current Report on Form 8-K of the Company filedJune 18, 2010.

Form of Common Stock Warrant, incorporateceimeby reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Current Remm Form 8K of the
Company filed on January 18, 2011.

Form of Common Stock Warrant incorporated ineby reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Current Répmr Form 8K of the
Company filed on June 2, 2011.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated May 26, 20l and among Celsion Corporation and the purchasansed therei
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.theCurrent Report on Form 8-K of the Companydfitbe June 2, 2011.

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant, ingatpd herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to ther€uir Report on Form B-of
the Company filed on July 6, 2011.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated July 25, 201 and between Celsion Corporation and the pusthasamed there
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.&h@ Current Report on Form 8-K of the Companydfibm July 25, 2011.

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant, inaatpd herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to ther€uir Report on Form B-of
the Company filed on July 25, 2011.

Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stoclarparated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 toGherent Report on Form I8-
of the Company filed on July 25, 2011.

Form Warrant to Purchase Common Stock Purchaserpacated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Gherent Report ¢
Form 8-K filed on December 6, 2011.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated December 11208y and between Celsion Corporation and thehas®rs named there
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.&h®Current Report on Form 8-K of the Companydfitm December 6, 2011.

Warrant to Purchase Stock, dated June 27, 201antybetween Celsion Corporation and Oxford FinantibC, incorporate
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Quart&gport on Form 10-Q of the Company for the quagteted June 30, 2012.

Warrant to Purchase Stock, dated June 27, 2012anoly between Celsion Corporation and Horizon TedugylFinanc
Corporation, incorporated herein by reference thilik4.2 to the Quarterly Report on Form Q0sf the Company for the quar
ended June 30, 2012.

Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant, irmmatpd herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to theré€ut Report on Form B-of
the Company filed on February 26, 2013.

Form of Series A Common Stock Purchase Warrangrparated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Gherent Report ¢
Form 8-K of the Company filed on January 21, 2014.

Form of Series B Common Stock Purchase Warrangriiozated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to €herent Report ¢
Form 8-K of the Company filed on January 21, 2014.

Warrant Agreement to Purchase Shares of the Com#took dated as of November 25, 2013, by and betwaerior
Corporation and Hercules Technology Growth Capltat,, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi to the Registratic
Statement on Form S-3 (File No.: 333-193936) fied-ebruary 13, 2014.
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4.19

10.1%+*

10.2%+*

10.3***

10.4%**

10.5%**

10.6***

10.7***

10.8***

10.9%**

10.10***

10.11*

10.12*

10.13*

10.14*

Registration Agreement dated as of November 2532b% and between Celsion Corporation and Herclehnology Growt
Capital, Inc., incorporated herein by referenc&xibit 4.3 to the Registration Statement on For® &ile No.: 333193936
filed on February 13, 2014.

Celsion Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, ipocated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 toGuarterly Report on For
10-Q of the Company for the quarter ended Jun@QD4.

Celsion Corporation 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, meraded, incorporated herein by reference to ExHiBii to the Curre
Report on Form 8-K of the Company filed on Jun207,2.

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Celsion @oagion 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporatedelmeby reference
Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10f@h@ Company for the quarter ended September@5.2

Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement for Celsiorrg@wation 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporatecen by reference
Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10f@h@ Company for the quarter ended September@5.2

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Celsion @oagion 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporatedelmeby reference
Exhibit 10.1.5 to the Annual Report on Form 10-Kileé Company for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement for Celsiorrg@oation 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, incorporatedem by reference
Exhibit10.1.6 to the Annual Report on Form 10-Kteé Company for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Stock Option Agreement effective January 3, 20@fwben Celsion Corporation and Michael H. Tardugncgrporated here
by reference Exhibit 10.1 to the Current ReporfFomm 8-K of the Company filed on January 3, 2007.

Employment Agreement, effective January 3, 200Twéen Celsion Corporation and Mr. Michael H. Tandogincorporate
herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the CuriRaport on Form 8-K of the Company filed on Decenttier2006.

Employment Agreement, effective March 1, 2009, leetw the Company and Michael H. Tardugno, incorpdrdterein b
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current ReporfFormm 8-K of the Company filed on February 19, 2008.

Employment Offer Letter, entered into on June X8, between the Company and Jeffrey W. Churchorporated herein t
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current ReporEomrm 8-K of the Company filed on June 18, 2010.

Patent License Agreement between the Company ard Duniversity dated November 10, 1999, incorporabedein b
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Annual Report onnfr 10-K of the Company for the year ended Septeiddel1999.

License Agreement dated July 18, 2003, betweeiCtdmpany and Duke University, incorporated hereirrdigrence to Exhit
10.1 to the Registration Statement of the Comp&ilg No. 333-108318) filed on August 28, 2003.

Settlement and License Agreement dated Februa?2@@7, by and among Celsion Corporation, Americardibtd Systems ar
AMS Research Corporation, incorporated herein bgremce to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report Form 10Q of the
Company for the quarter ended March 31, 2(

Development, Product Supply and Commercializatigne&ment, effective December 5, 2008, by and betwee Company ai

Yakult Honsha Co., Ltd., herein by reference toibixH.0.15 to the Annual Report on Form KOef the Company for the ye
ended December 31, 20(
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10.15*

10.16

10.17%+*

10.18***

10.19%**

10.20***

10.21%**

10.22%+*

10.23*

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27*

10.28+

The 2nd Amendment To The Development, Product Suppdd Commercialization Agreement, effective Jaguar 2011, b
and between the Company and Yakult Honsha Co.,ihtdrporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.thie Current Report |
Form 8-K of the Company filed on January 18, 2011.

Lease Agreement, executed July 21, 2011, by andeleet Celsion Corporation and Brandywine Operatiagrership, L.P
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.the Current Report on Form 8-K of the Companydfibm July 25, 2011.

Offer letter, dated July 8, 2011, by and betweelsiGe Corporation and Gregory Weaver, incorpordtetein by reference
Exhibit 10.37 to the Annual Report on form 10-K/Atbe Company for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Change in control severance agreement, dated Nare2®, 2011, by and between Celsion Corporation Michael H
Tardugno, incorporated herein by reference to Ekhi.38 to the Annual Report on Form K0A of the Company for the ye
ended December 31, 2011.

Change in control severance agreement, dated Naxefth 2011, by and between Celsion Corporation Gratjory Weave
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8%he Annual Report on Form XJA of the Company for the year enc
December 31, 2011.

Change in control severance agreement, dated Narefth 2011, by and between Celsion Corporation Mictiolas Borys
M.D., incorporated herein by reference to Exhilfit4D to the Annual Report on Form K@A of the Company for the year enc
December 31, 2011.

Change in control severance agreement, dated Naed® 2011, by and between Celsion CorporationJafidley W. Churcl
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.dlhe Annual Report on Form IJA of the Company for the year enc
December 31, 2011.

Change in control severance agreement, dated Nare@fh 2011, by and between Celsion Corporation Roidert A. Ree:
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.d2he Annual Report on Form ¥JA of the Company for the year enc
December 31, 2011.

Technology Development Agreement effective as ofyMa 2012, by and between Celsion Corporation ahdjiang Hisu
Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd., incorporated herein bgrexice to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report onmnf-10Q of the Compar
for the quarter ended June 30, 2012.

Loan and Security Agreement, dated June 27, 204and among Celsion Corporation, Oxford Finance La€collateral agel
and the lenders named therein, incorporated hdrgireference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Quarterly Reépor Form 10Q of the
Company for the quarter ended June 30, 2012.

Controlled Equity OfferingM Sales Agreement, dated February 1, 2013, by andebet Celsion Corporation and Ca
Fitzgerald & Co., incorporated herein by referetwcéhe Current Report on Form 8-K of the Compatedfion February 1, 2013.

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated February@®3, by and among Celsion Corporation and the @sets named there
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.the Current Report on Form 8-K of the Companydfibe February 26, 2013.

Technology Development Contract dated as of Jan@8ry2013, by and between Celsion Corporation ahéjizng Hisu
Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd., incorporated herein bgrexfce to Exhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report omnfr 10Q of the Compar
for the quarter ended March 31, 2013.

Loan and Security Agreement dated as of NovembeR@53, by and between Celsion Corporation and idescTechnolog
Growth Capital, Inc.
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10.29

23.1+

31.1+

31.2+
32.17

32.2"

101**

*%

*k%

Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of Jan&arg014, by and between Celsion Corporation andptirehasers nam
therein, incorporated herein by reference to ExHiBil to the Current Report on FornK&f the Company filed on January
2014.

Consent of Stegman & Company, independgigtezed public accounting firm for the Company.
Certification of Chief Executive Officer mpurant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley AcD622

Certification of Chief Financial Officer want to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Ac0622
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiioBe906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pwant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted purtm&ection 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

The following materials from the Company’'snAual Report on Form 1R-for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2
formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reportinghgaage): (i) the audited Balance Sheets, (ii) thditad Statements
Operations, (iii) the audited Statements of CaglwE| and (iv) Notes to Financial Statements.

Portions of this exhibit have been omitted parsuto a request for confidential treatment undaleR4b2 of the Securitie
Exchange Act of 1934, amended, and the omitted mahthas been separately filed with the Securitgesl Exchang
Commission.

Filed herewith.

Furnished herewith.

XBRL information is filed herewith.

Management contract or compensatory plan caagement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&8{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registhas duly caused its annual repol
Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undgsil thereunto duly authorized.

CELSION CORPORATION
Registrant

March 13, 2014 By: /s/ MICHAEL H. TARDUGN(
Michael H. Tardugno
President and Chief Executive Officer

March 13, 2014 By: /s/ JEFFREY W. CHURC
Jeffrey W. Church
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer

Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities BxgdaAct of 1934, this report has been signed byfeewing persons on behalf of t
Registrant and in the capacities and on the dathsated:

Name

Position

Date

/s/ MICHAEL H. TARDUGN(

(Michael H. Tardugno)

/s/ JEFFREY W. CHURC

(Jeffrey W. Church)

/s/ TIMOTHY J. TUMMINELL(

(Timothy J. Tumminello)

/s/ MAX E. LINK

(Max E. Link, PhD.)

/s/ AUGUSTINE CHOV

(Augustine Chow, PhD.)

/s/ FREDERICK J. FRIT.

(Frederick J. Fritz)

/s ROBERT W. HOOPE

(Robert W. Hooper)

/s/ ALBERTO MARTINE

(Alberto Martinez, MD)

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive i0&r) and Director

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer (Principal FinaatDfficer)

Controller and Chief Accounting Officer

Chairman of the Board, Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Celsion Corporation
Lawrenceville, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying balance she@slsion Corporation (the “Companydp of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the r¢
statements of operations, statements of comprefeeimss, changes in stockholdeesgjuity, and cash flows for each of the years intkiree
year period ended December 31, 2013. We also hadited the Compar's internal control over financial reporting as afd@mber 31, 201
based on criteria established in 199#ternal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatinthe
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Compangianagement is responsible for these financigrsents, for maintaining effective inter
control over financial reporting, and for its assaent of the effectiveness of internal control ofieancial reporting, included in t
accompanying ManagemestReport on Internal Control Over Financial RepaytiOur responsibility is to express an opiniortteese financi:
statements and an opinion on the Company'’s intearatrol over financial reporting based on our &udi

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstaits of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBioUnited States). Those stand.
require that we plan and perform the audits to inbtaasonable assurance about whether the finastaééments are free of mate
misstatement and whether effective internal cordr@r financial reporting was maintained in all erél respects. Our audits of the finan
statements included examining, on a test basisleage supporting the amounts and disclosures irfitlaacial statements, assessing
accounting principles used and significant estisiateade by management, and evaluating the ovemnalhdial statement presentation. Our &
of internal control over financial reporting inckdl obtaining an understanding of internal contk@rdinancial reporting, assessing the risk
a material weakness exists, and testing and ewuadutite design and operating effectiveness of iralecontrol based on the assessed risk
audits also included performing such other proceslas we considered necessary in the circumstavwedelieve that our audits provid
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranaeliregthe reliability of financie
reporting and the preparation of financial statetmdor external purposes in accordance with gelyemicepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclediose policies and procedures that (1) pertatheéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet tlransactions and dispositions of the assetseotdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accorédamdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalssurance regarding prevention or timely deteatiounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgect to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of Celsion Corporatior
of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results ofpierations and its cash flows for each of thes/@ the three year period ended Dece
31, 2013 in conformity with accounting principlesngrally accepted in the United States of Amerdso in our opinion, Celsion Corporati
maintained, in all material respects, effectiveeinal control over financial reporting as of DecemB1, 2013, based on criteria establishe
1992Internal Control—Integrated Frameworgsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission (COSO).

/sl Stegman & Compat

Baltimore, Maryland
March 13, 2014
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CELSION CORPORATION
BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2013 2012
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,718,50. $ 14,991,48
Investment securities — available for sale 37,156,38 8,037,62i
Accrued interest receivable on investment secsritie 212,04¢ 65,92¢
Deposits on investigator grants 111,63! 246,35.
Vendor reimbursements receivable 161,76: 116,87:
Other current assets 401,78 190,72
43,762,11 23,648,98
Property and equipment(at cost, less accumulated depreciation of $1,8ahd $924,961,
respectively), 832,88t 1,114,62
Other assets:
Deferred financing fees 844,24 306,49!
Security deposit on letter of credit 200,00( 250,00(
Other assets 31,31¢ 38,81¢
1,075,56 595,311
Total assets $ 45,670,57 25,358,91
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' (DEFICIT) EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable- trade $ 1,452,43 2,339,76
Other accrued liabilities 2,707,65: 1,254,97
Notes payable - current portion 10,89: 1,410,45!
Deferred revenue — current portion 500,00t —
Total current liabilities 4,670,98! 5,005,20:
Common stock warrant liability 3,02¢ 4,283,93
Note payable — non-current portion 5,000,001 3,661,14
Deferred revenue — non-current portion 4,000,001 =
Other liabilities — noncurrent 472,73: 446,77!
Total liabilities 14,146,73 13,397,06
Commitments and contingencies = =
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock - $0.01 par value (75,000,000 sharé®ezed; 13,737,970 and 8,437,267
shares issued at December 31, 2013 and 2012 a#@41375 and 8,289,507 shares
outstanding at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respgti 137,38 84,37:
Preferred Stock - $0.01 par value (100,000 sharg®ezed, 20,000 and 5,000 shares issue
and zero shares outstanding at December 31, 2QIL3G2, respectively) - -
Additional paid-in capital 203,139,14 170,957,89
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (44,16¢) (126,60)
Accumulated deficit (169,287,15) (156,263,28)
33,945,19 14,652,36
Treasury stock, at cost (132,995 and 147,760 sliecember 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively) (2,421,369 (2,690,51)
Total stockholders’ equity 31,523,83 11,961,85
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 45,670,57 $ 25,358,91

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CELSION CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Licensing revenue $ 500,00( - $ 2,000,00!
Operating expenses:
Research and development 9,364,22: 15,770,16 19,863,83
General and administrative 6,547,25 6,372,55. 5,154,93:
Total operating expenses 15,911,48 22,142,71 25,018,76
Loss from operations (15,411,48) (22,142,71) (23,018,76)
Other income (expense):
Gain (loss) from valuation of common stock warrzatiility 8,090,633 (4,117,53) 81,73
Investment (loss) income, net (12,744 52,32 174,06
Interest expense (915,23) (359,41) (501,85
Other (expense) income (2,530) (1,040 42,14
Total other income (expense) 7,160,12 (4,425,66) (203,909
Net loss (8,251,35) (26,568,38) (23,222,67)
Non-cash deemed dividend from beneficial conversiotufezon convertibl
preferred stock (4,601,411 = =
Net loss attributable to common shareholders $ (12,852,76) $ (26,568,38) $ (23,222,67)
Net loss per common share — basic and diluted $ (099 $ (349 $ (5.00)
Weighted average common shares outstanding — basind diluted 13,540,56 7,730,90 4,648,37.

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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CELSION CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Year ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Net loss $ (8,251,35) $ (26,568,38) $ (23,222,67)
Changes in:
Realized loss on investment securities recogniaéaviestment income, ne 92,36« 7,58( —
Unrealized (loss) gain on investment securities (9,929 142,51 (258,33)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 82,44 150,09: (258,33)
Comprehensive loss $ (8,168,91) $ (26,418,28) $ (23,481,01)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CELSION CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss

Non-cash items included in net loss:
Depreciation and amortization
Change in fair value of common stock warrant liapil
Cash received for non-refundable research and dewveint fee
Deferred revenue
Stock based compensation - options
Stock based compensation — restricted stock
Shares issued out of treasury
Amortization of patent license fee
Shares issued in exchange for services
Deferred finance charges
Change in deferred rent liability

Net changes in:
Prepaid expenses and other
Deposits and other assets
Accounts payable
Other accrued liabilities
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investment securities
Proceeds from sale and maturity of investment $@esir
Refund (deposit) on security for letter of credit
Purchases of property and equipment

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from sale of preferred stock, net of issei@osts
Proceeds from sale of common stock equity, nessafance costs
Proceeds from exercise of common stock warrants
Proceeds from exercise of common stock options
Proceeds from note payable
Principal payments on note payable

Net cash provided by financing activities

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Cash paid for:
Interest

Income taxes

Year ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
$ (8,251,35) $  (26,568,38) $  (23,222,67)
339,22 281,48 169,35
(8,090,63) 4,117,53. (81,73)
5,000,00! — —
(500,000 - -
1,215,97 1,084,32 1,036,33
19,46¢ 59,43 171,54¢

62,54¢ 57,23¢ 60,36(

7,50( 7,50( 7,50(

35,50( 49,81( 71,55(

336,38 43,21¢ -
(18,940 55,25¢ 65,46
(121,23 585,59! (393,670)
(116,18) 18,72 4,167
(887,332) (1,344,37) (538,38))
1,497,561 (776,95)) (92,25%)
(9,471,51) (22,329,59) (22,742,43)
(66,376,81) (16,208,95) (10,659,23)
37,194,37 18,478,59 395,55
50,00( - (250,001

(57,499 (613,39() (573,40)
(29,189,93) 1,656,24 (11,087,08)
13,616,43 - 4,324,08
15,622,95 - 48,082,02
261,94 10,106,55 428,33
184,04 697,22( -
4,763,80. 4,825,49. 144,444
(5,060,71) (110,28) (142,42)
29,388,47 15,518,98 52,836,46
(9,272,98) (5,154,36)) 19,006,93
14,991,48 20,145,85 1,138,91

$ 5718,50. $ 14,991,48 $ 20,145,85
$ 637,18. $ 359,41 $ 501,85!
$ - $ - $ -

See accompanying notes to the financial statements




Balance at December 31,
2010

Net loss

Unrealized loss on
investments available fo
sale

Valuation of common stoc
warrants in connection
with issuance of 8%
Series A Redeemable,
Convertible Preferred
Stock

Conversion of 8% Series ¢

CELSION CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFI CIT)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 2011

Common Stock

Redeemable, Convertibl :

Preferred Stock

Valuation of beneficial
conversion feature
associated with the 8%
Series A Redeemable,
Convertible Preferred
Stock

Shares issued under CEF

net of issuance costs
Registered Direct and

Private Placement Priva |

Placement common sto¢
offerings
Conversion of common
stock warrants
Stock-based compensatio
expense

Issuance of restricted stoc ;

upon vesting
Issuance of common stocl
out of treasury
Balance at December 31,
2011

Outstanding Treasury Stock Accum.
Additional Other
Paid in Compr.  Accumulated
Shares Amount Capital Shares Amount Income Deficit Total
2,962,46! $ 31,31¢ $ 99,426,45 168,94¢ $(3,076,67) $ (18,367 $(100,938,26) $ (4,575,52)
- - - - - - (23,222,67) (23,222,67)
- - - - - (258,33) - (258,33))
- - 2,030,001 - - - - 2,030,001
462,96( 4,63( 2,626,71 - - - - 2,631,34
- - 5,386,51! - - - (5,386,51)) -
297,89: 2,97¢ 3,113,10: - - - - 3,116,08
|
3,584,301 35,84: 44,668,69 - - - - 44,704,53
34,85¢ 34¢ 427,98 - - - - 428,33
- - 1,207,88: - - - - 1,207,88:
21,69: 217 (217) - - - - -
10,56¢ - 24¢ (10,569 192,54! - (60,889 131,91(
7,374,73' $ 75,33 $158,887,40 158,38: $(2,884,12) $ (276,70() $(129,608,34) $ 26,193,56




C ELSION CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFI CIT) (continued)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 2011

Common Stock

Outstanding Treasury Stock Accum.
Additional Other
Paid in Compr.  Accumulated
Shares Amount Capital Shares Amount Income Deficit Total

Balance at December 31,
2011 7,374,73' $ 75,33: $158,887,40 158,38: $(2,884, 12') $ (267,700 $(129,608,34) $ 26,193,56
Net loss - - - - - (26,568,38) (26,568,38)
Unrealized gain on

investments available fo

sale - - - - - 150,09: - 150,09:
Valuation of common stoc

warrants in connection

with notes payable - - 73,65¢ - - - - 73,65¢
Conversion of common

stock warrants 845,52¢ 8,45¢ 10,156,43 - - - - 10,164,89
Stock-based compensatio

expense - - 1,143,76. - - - - 1,143,76.
Issuance of restricted stoc !

and option exercise 58,61¢ 58¢ 696,64. - - - - 697,22(
Issuance of common stocl

out of treasury 10,62« - - (10,629 193,61- - (86,565 107,04

Balance at December 31,
2012

8,289,50 $ 84,37! $170,957,89

147,760 $(2,690,51) $ (126,60) $(156,263,28) $ 11,961,85




Preferred Stock
Outstanding

CELSION CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFI CIT) (continued)

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 2011

Common Stock
Outstanding

Shares Amount

Shares Amount

Additional

Treasury Stock

Paid in

Capital Shares

Amount

Accum.
Other
Compr.
Income

Accumulated

Deficit Total

Balance at

December 31,

2012

Net loss -
Preferred stock
offering
Non-cash
dividend on
beneficial
conversion
feature associate
with the preferre:
stock offering -
Conversion of
preferred stock
Registered Direc
and ATM
common stock
offerings -
Classification of
warrants to/from
common stock

warrant liability,

net =
Conversion of

common stock

warrants -
Valuation of

common stock

warrants in

connection with

notes payable -
Unrealized gain

on investments
available for sale -
Stock-based
compensation

expense =
Issuance of

restricted stock

and option

exercise -
Issuance of

common stock

out of treasury -
Fractional share
payment -

15,00

(15,00)

15C

(150 2,682,75!

8,289,50 $ 84,37 $170,957,89 147,76( $(2,690,51) $(126,607) $(156,263,28) $11,961,85

26,82¢

2,588,03.  25,88(

18,02: 18C

12,87:

14,76: =

(981) (10)

18,217,70 =

(26,679 -

15,598,67 -

(3,809,73) ;

261,76« -

521,76: =

1,235,43 -

183,91t -

- (14,76Y

(1,595) -

269,14

(8,251,35) (8,251,35)

- 18,217,85

(4,601,41) (4,601,41)

15,624,55

- (3,809,73)

- 261,94

= 521,76«

- 82,44

1,235,43

- 184,04

(171,10 98,04¢

- (1,605)

Balance at
December 31,
2013 -

13,604,97 $137,38( $203,139,14 132,99! $(2,421,36) $ (44,16¢) $(169,287,15) $31,523,83




See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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CELSION CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 201

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of Busines

Celsion Corporation, referred to herein as “Celsiéwe”, or “the Company,’a Delaware corporation based in Lawrenceville, Nevsey, i
an oncology drug development company focused orrdwmipg treatment for those suffering with difficuth treat forms of cancer. We
working to develop and commercialize more efficjegiifective, targeted chemotherapeutic oncologygsirbased on our proprietary heat
activated liposomal technology. Our lead produntrmoDox®is being tested in human clinical trials for theatment of primary liver canc
and recurrent chest wall breast cancer.

Basis of Presentatio

The accompanying financial statements of Celsioreeeen prepared in accordance with generally é&edegrcounting principles (“GAAPTh
the United States and include the accounts of thmpgany. The preparation of financial statementxanformity with GAAP require
management to make judgments, estimates, and agsomphat affect the amount reported in the Corgjparinancial statements a
accompanying notes. Actual results could diffetarially from these estimates.

Events and conditions arising subsequent to the megent balance sheet date have been evaluatedeiorpossible impact on the finant
statements and accompanying notes. No eventc@mditions would give rise to any information thafjuired accounting recognition
disclosure in the financial statements other thwsé arising in the ordinary course of businese Sote 16 for a summary of subseq
events.

Certain items in the prior period financial statesehave been reclassified to conform to the ctipeniod presentation.
Revenue Recognitic

At the inception of each collaborative agreemerdt timcludes milestone payments, the Company ewduathether each milestone
substantive on the basis of the contingent natliteeomilestone, specifically reviewing factors Buas the scientific and other risks that mu:
overcome to achieve the milestone, as well aseel bf effort and investment required. Milestottest are not considered substantive anc
do not meet the separation criteria are accourdedd license payments and recognized on a striiighbasis over the remaining perioc
performance. Payments received or reasonably abatter performance obligations are met complededyrecognized as earned.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hantheestments purchased with an original maturityho&ée months or less. A portion of th
funds are not covered by FDIC insurance.

Fair Value of Financial Instrumen
The carrying values of financial instruments apprate their respective fair values.
Short Term Investments

The Company classifies its investments in marketaacurities with readily determinable fair valuses investments available-fegle ir
accordance with Accounting Standards Codificatid8) 320,Investments - Debt and Equity Securitigsvailable-forsale securities cons
of debt and equity securities not classified aditig securities or as securities to be held to nitgtuThe Company has classified all of
investments as available-for-sale. Unrealized mgidgains and losses on available-dafe securities are reported as a net amot
accumulated other comprehensive gain or loss itketdders’ equity until realized. Gains and losseshe sale of available-faale securitie
are determined using the specific identificationtimd. The Compang’ short term investments consist of corporate bamds governme
agency bonds.
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Property and Equipmel

Property and equipment is stated at cost less adetea depreciation. Depreciation is provided aber estimated useful lives of the rele
assets, ranging from three to seven years, usmgtthightine method. Major renewals and improvements apétalized at cost and ordine
repairs and maintenance are charged against apgetpenses as incurred. Depreciation expense pmsxamately $339,000, $281,500
$169,000 for years ended December 31, 2013, 204 2@h1, respectively.

The Company reviews property and equipment for impent whenever events or changes in circumstaincésate that the carrying amoun
an asset may not be recoverable. An asset is @yesidmpaired if its carrying amount exceeds thiar&inet undiscounted cash flows that
asset is expected to generate. If such asset &dsoad to be impaired, the impairment recognizetthé amount by which the carrying amc
of the asset, if any, exceeds its fair value deit@thusing a discounted cash flow model.

Deposits

Deposits include real property security deposits aher deposits which are contractually requined af a long-term nature.

Patent License

The Company has purchased several licenses fasrighpatented technologies. Patent license cdsi63)125 have been capitalized anc
amortized on a straighine basis over the estimated life of the relatatept. As of December 31, 2013, the total accuradlamortizatio
expense is $34,000. The weighted-average amodizagriod for these assets is 10 years.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

ASC 220,Comprehensive Incomeestablishes standards for the reporting and alispf comprehensive income and its components &
Companys consolidated financial statements. The objeafv&SC 220 is to report a measure (comprehensigenie (loss)) of all changes
equity of an enterprise that result from transaxtiand other economic events in a period otherttiagsactions with owners.

Research and Developme

Research and development costs are expensed asethddquipment and facilities acquired for reskaand development activities that h
alternative future uses are capitalized and chatgespense over their estimated useful lives.

Net Loss Per Common She

Basic and diluted net income/(loss) per commoneshgas computed by dividing net income/(loss) fer ylear by the weighted average nur
of shares of Common Stock outstanding, both basit diluted, during each period. The impact of Comn&iock equivalents has b
excluded from the computation of diluted weightegrage common shares outstanding in periods where is a net loss, as their effec
anti-dilutive.

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 ant] 2distanding equity awards of 863.462, 729,825 &,113 shares, respectively,

warrants outstanding to purchase 3,268,013, 1,84%#6d 2,577,470 shares, respectively, were camsldmtidilutive and therefore were r
included in the calculation of diluted shares.
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Income Taxe

Income taxes are accounted for under the assdtadnility method. Under this method, deferred tasets and liabilities are recognized for
future tax consequences attributable to differersta/een the financial statement carrying amouhexisting assets and liabilities and tl
respective tax bases and operating loss and taht carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liiedi are measured using enacted tax
expected to apply to taxable income in the yearatiich those temporary differences are expectedetoecovered or settled. The effec
deferred tax asset and liabilities of a changeainrates is recognized in results of operationthénperiod that the tax rate change oci
Valuation allowances are established, when necgstsareduce deferred tax assets to the amountceeghéo be realized. In accordance
ASC 740,Income Taxesa tax position is recognized as a benefit onlyt isi“more likely than notthat the tax position taken would
sustained in a tax examination, presuming thak @xamination will occur. The Company recognizdsriast and/or penalties related to inc
tax matters in the income tax expense categorg dtmpany remains subject to examination for inctemeeturns for the years ending &
2010.

Stock-Based Compensation

Compensation costs for all stobksed awards is measured at fair value on thedatee grant and recognized over the service pefdc
awards expected to vest. Such value is recogrigezkpense over the service period. The estimafistockbased awards that will ultimat:
vest requires judgment, and to the extent actiwllt®or updated estimates differ from the curestimates, such amounts will be recorde
cumulative adjustment in the period estimates evesed. We consider many factors when estimagiqmected forfeitures, including types
awards, employee class, and historical experience.

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

From time to time, new accounting pronouncemengsissued by FASB and are adopted by us as of teeifgul effective date. Unle
otherwise discussed, we believe that the impaptadntly issued accounting pronouncements willaoe a material impact on the Company’
consolidated financial position, results of opemasi, and cash flows, or do not apply to our openati

2. FINANCIAL CONDITION

Since inception, the Company has incurred substampierating losses, principally from expenses @ased with the Compang’research ai
development programs, clinical trials conducteddnnection with the Comparg/product candidates, and applications and subonsdo th
Food and Drug Administration. The Company beliehese expenditures are essential for the commizatiain of its technologies. As a res
of these expenditures, as well as general and asinaitive expenses, the Company has an accumutiédit of $169 million as ¢
December 31, 2013.

The Company expects its operating losses to comtiouthe foreseeable future as it continues itglpet development efforts, and whe
undertakes marketing and sales activities. The @miyip ability to achieve profitability is dependent npiés ability to obtain governmen
approvals, produce, and market and sell its newlymocandidates. There can be no assurance th@otin@any will be able to commercial
its technology successfully or that profitabilitylivever be achieved. The operating results of Gleenpany have fluctuated significantly in
past. The Company expects that its operating esult fluctuate significantly in the future and lilepend on a number of factors, man
which are outside the Company’s control.

The Company will need substantial additional fugdin order to complete the development, testing emmimercialization of its oncolo
product candidates and we have made a significamindtment to hea&ctivated liposome research and development peogeatl it is oL
intention at least to maintain, and possibly inseedhe pace and scope of these activities. Thenionent to these new projects will reqt
additional external funding, at least until the Gxamy is able to generate sufficient cash flow figate of one or more of its products to sug
its continued operations.

If adequate funding is not available, the Compaiy ilme required to delay, scale back or terminaticeaspects of its operations or attem
obtain funds through unfavorable arrangements wwétners or others that may force it to relinquigihts to certain of its technologi
products or potential markets or that could imposerous financial or other terms. Furthermoreh& Company cannot fund its ongc
development and other operating requirements, qudatily those associated with its obligations tmdwct clinical trials under its licensi
agreements, it will be in breach of these licensiggeements and could therefore lose its liceng#ts; which could have material adve
effects on its business. Management is continumefforts to obtain additional funds so that th@pany can meet its obligations and su:
operations.
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3. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS AVAILABLE FOR SALE

Short term investments available for sale of $36,381 and $8,037,620 as of December 31, 2013 ah#, 28spectively, consist of mor
market funds, commercial paper, corporate debtridexs) and government agency debt securities. Hreywalued at estimated fair value, \
unrealized gains and losses reported as a segaraponent of stockholders’ equity in Accumulatetié@tComprehensive Income.

Securities available for sale are evaluated perallyi to determine whether a decline in their val@ther than temporary. The termitlie
than temporaryis not intended to indicate a permanent declinealne. Rather, it means that the prospects for teem recovery of value ¢
not necessarily favorable, or that there is a latlkevidence to support fair values equal to, oratge than, the carrying value of
security. Management reviews criteria such asntiagnitude and duration of the decline, as wellhesreasons for the decline, to pre
whether the loss in value is other than tempor&@wce a decline in value is determined to be atien temporary, the value of the securi
reduced and a corresponding charge to earningsdgnized.

December 31,
Short-term investments available for sale, at faivalue 201z 2012

Bonds — corporate issuances $ 37,156,38 $ 8,037,62!

A summary of the cost, fair value and maturitiesha Company’s short-term investments is as follows

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Short-term investments
Bonds- corporate issuances $ 37,20057 $ 37,156,388 $ 8,164,22 $ 8,037,62
Bond maturities
Within 3 months $ 7,799,03 $ 7,797,68 $ 3,053,741 $ 3,002,35
Between 3-12 months 29,401,54 29,358,69 5,110,48 5,035,271
Total $ 37,20057 $ 37,156,388 $ 8,164,227 $ 8,037,62

Investment income, which includes net realizeddesm sales of available for sale securities angsiment income interest and dividends, is
summarized as follows:

201: 201z 2011

Interest and dividends accrued and paid $ 748,94 $ 712,947 % 32,28¢
Accretion of investment premium (669,349 (652,96() -
Losses on investment maturity and sales, net (92,346 (7,580) =
$ (12,749 $ 52,32: $ 32,28¢

In 2009, the Company recorded an equity investméapproximately $108,000 for stock received aflesaent of a transition agreement
Company previously entered into. The $108,000 asslee reflected the estimated net realizable vafu®@03,112 shares of Med focus Ini
the time of settlement. As of December 31, 2011k, émtire amount had been reduced to $0 and wageatas an unrealized loss in o
comprehensive loss. During the 4gmarter of 2012, the Company sold this stock f@ragpimately $138,000, thereby recording a realigaut
of approximately $30,000 in investment income awrsing the cumulative unrealized loss of $108jAaG&ther comprehensive loss.
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The following table shows the Compagyhvestment securities gross unrealized losse$a@ndalue by investment category and length o
that individual securities have been in a contirsuonrealized loss position at December 31, 2012 20id.. The Company has reviey
individual securities to determine whether a dexlmfair value below the amortizable cost basitligr than temporary.

December 31, 2013 Less than 12 months 12 months or Longer Total
Gross
Gross Gross Unrealized
Unrealized Unrealized Holding
Description of Holding Fair Holding Fair (Losses)
Securities Fair Value Losses Value Losses Value Gains
Available for Sale
Bonds — corporate issuances $37,156,38 $ (44,19) - - $37,156,38 $ (44,199
December 31, 2012 Less than 12 months 12 months or Longer Total
Gross
Gross Gross Unrealized
Unrealized Unrealized Holding
Description of Holding Fair Holding Fair (Losses)
Securities Fair Value Losses Value Losses Value Gains
Available for Sale
Bonds — corporate $ 8,037,621 $ (126,60) - - $8,037,620 $ (126,60)

4. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Sett820,Fair Value Measurements and Disclosurestablishes a three tier level hiera
for fair value measurements which requires anemtitmaximize the use of observable inputs and mize the use of unobservable ing
when measuring fair value. The standard descrhreg flevels of inputs that may be used to measiiredlue:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) or identicaless or liabilities in active markets that the #®nhias the ability to access as of
measurement date.

Level 2: Significant other observable inputs ottem Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for amaissets or liabilities; quoted pri
in markets that are not active; or other input$ #na observable or can be corroborated by obslervafrket data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reffle reporting entityg own assumptions that market participants wouddinigricing
an asset or liability.

The fair values of securities available for sake determined by obtaining quoted prices on natipmatognized exchanges (Level 1 inputs
matrix pricing, which is a mathematical techniquiglely used in the industry to value debt securitighout relying exclusively on quot
prices for the specific securities but rather HBying on the securities’ relationship to other bemark quoted securities (Level 2 inputs).

Cash and cash equivalents, other current assetsrats payable and other accrued liabilities aileatd in the balance sheet at their estin
fair values primarily due to their short-term naufhe common stock warrant liability has been edlusing the Blaclscholes option pricir
model, the inputs of which are more fully descrilieélote 11 to the financial statements. There weréransfers of assets of liabilities betw
Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers in or out efél 3 during 2013 except for the change in therfairket value of the warrant liability w
included in earnings.
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Assets and liabilities measured at fair value oacairring basis are summarized below:

Quoted Pricet

In Active
Markets For Significant
Total Fair Identical Other Significant
Value on the Assett Observable  Unobservable
Balance /Liabilities Inputs Inputs
Shee (Level 1, (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
As of December 31, 2013
Short-term investments available for sale
Bonds — corporate issuances $ 37,156,388 $ 37,156,38 - $ -
As of December 31, 2012
Short-term investments available for sale
Bonds — corporate issuances $ 8,037,620 $ 8,037,62 - $ -
Liabilities:
As of December 31, 2013
Common stock warrant liability $ 3,02¢ $ - - $ 3,02¢
As of December 31, 2012
Common stock warrant liability $ 428393 $ = - $ 4,283,93
5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:
December 31 December 31
201z 201z
Machinery and equipment (5-7 year life) $ 1,674,200 $ 1,618,67.
Furniture and fixtures (3-5 year life) 153,05: 164,55¢
Leasehold improvements (5-7 year life) 269,81¢ 256,35(
2,097,071 2,039,58;
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (1,264,19)) (924,96))
Total $ 832,88t $ 1,114,62
6. OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES
December 31 December 31
Other accrued liabilities at December 31, 2013202 include the following 201z 2012
Amounts due to Contract Research Organizationo#ret contractual agreements $ 1,711,93. $ 827,98
Accrued payroll and related benefits 900,43: 338,36!
Accrued professional fees 63,50( 37,40(
Other 31,78¢ 51,22¢
Total $ 2,707,65. $ 1,254,97!

7. NOTES PAYABLE

Hercules Credit Agreemer

On November 25, 2013, the Company entered intaa &mreement with Hercules Technology Growth Chpita. (“Hercules”)which permit
up to $20 million in capital to be distributed irultiple tranches (the “Hercules Credit Agreemerithe Company drew the first tranche of
million upon closing of the Hercules Credit Agreethen November 25, 2013 and used approximately #i#{bmof the proceeds to repay !
outstanding obligations under its loan agreemettt Wixford Finance LLC and Horizon Technology Finar@orporation as discussed furi
below. The Company anticipates that it will use additional funding up to $15 million as providedder the agreement for working capite
in support of its previously announced strategiguésition initiative, which is designed to identifiew technologies and clinical stage prod

for its development pipeline.
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The obligations under the Hercules Credit Agreenmaetin the form of secured indebtedness bearitegest at a calculated prinbase:
variable rate (11.25% per annum since inceptioaynients under the loan agreement are interestfonlghe first twelve months after lo
closing, followed by a 30-month amortization perafcgrincipal and interest through the scheduletunis date.

As a fee in connection with the Hercules Creditégnent, the Company issued Hercules a warrantisable for a total of 194,986 share:
Celsion’'s common stock (the “Hercules Warrargt)a per share exercise price of $3.59, with 50%heuliately exercisable for cash or by
exercise from November 25, 2013 and the remainid® %o be exercisable upon Hercules funding any emuent tranches. The Herct
Warrant will expire November 25, 2018. Hercules leastain rights to register the common stock uryilegl the Warrant pursuant tc
Registration Rights Agreement with Celsion dated/&ober 25, 2013. The registration rights expirdhendate when such stock may be
under Rule 144 without restriction or upon thetfirsar anniversary of the registration statemenstéch stock, whichever is earlier.

The Company valued the Hercules Warrant using thekEScholes option pricing model and recorded $521a&6deferred financing fees.
calculating the value of the warrants, the Compassumed a volatility rate of 102%, risk free ins¢mate of 1.37%, an expected life of 5 ye
a stock price of $3.55 (closing price on date &f itercules Warrant) and no expected forfeituresdinddends. In connection with the Cre
Agreement, the Company incurred cash expensess®, $88 which were recorded as deferred financieg.félhese deferred financing fees
being amortized as interest expense using theteiemterest method over the life of the loan.r Bee period since the Hercules Cr
Agreements inception through December 31, 2013, the Compaayrred $57,813 in interest expense and amort221892 in deferre
financing fees as interest expense.

The Hercules Credit Agreement contains customavgmants, including covenants that limit or rest@&lsions ability to grant liens, inc
indebtedness, make certain restricted paymentger@rconsolidate and make dispositions of asEgtsn the occurrence of an event of del
under the Hercules Credit Agreement, the lenderg oemse making loans, terminate the Hercules Creglieement, declare all amou
outstanding to be immediately due and payable aretfose on or liquidate Celsion’s assets that cmaphe lenderstollateral. The Herculs
Credit Agreement specifies a number of events tdude(some of which are subject to applicable graccure periods), including, among o
things, non-payment defaults, covenant defaulteaterial adverse effect on Celsion or its assetsselefaults to other material indebtedn
bankruptcy and insolvency defaults and materiayjjnent defaults. The Company has maintained cong®ianth these covenants.

Following is a schedule of future principle paynsedtie on the Hercules Credit Agreement;

Hercules
Credit
Agreement
For the year ending December 31:
2014 $ —
2015 1,827,11!
2016 2,045,79
2017 1,127,08
$ 5,000,001

Oxford & Horizon Credit Agreement

In June 2012, the Company entered into a Loan acdry Agreement (the “Oxford & Horizon Credit Agament”)with Oxford Finance LL(
(“Oxford™) and Horizon Technology Finance Corpooati(“Horizon”). The Oxford & Horizon Credit Agreement provided foisecured ter
loan of up to $10 million, with 50% of any loanshe funded by Oxford and 50% to be funded by HariZthe aggregate loan amount cc
have been advanced in two tranches of $5 milliathe@he first tranche (the “Term A Loani)as made available to the Company on Jun
2012 and the second tranche (the “Term B Loard} to be made available, if at all, during thaqakbeginning on the date that the Comg
achieved positive data in its Phase lll clinica@ltof RFA and ThermoDox@®tlie HEAT Study) and ending on March 31, 2013. @muary 31
2013, the Company announced it did not meet thragrsi endpoint of the HEAT Study.
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The Term A Loan was originally scheduled to matmeOctober 15, 2015. As a result of the Herculesdif Agreement discussed above,
Company terminated the Oxford & Horizon Credit Agmeent and repaid the outstanding principle, accintedest and termination fees tota
approximately $4.1 million.

The proceeds of the Oxford & Horizon Credit Agreatmeere used to fund the Compasiyvorking capital and general corporate purposke
obligations under the Oxford & Horizon Credit Agneent were secured by substantially all assets @fQbmpany other than its intellect
property and certain other agreed-upon exclusions.

The Company used approximately $4 million of thegeeds from the Hercules Credit Agreement to réjpayutstanding obligations under
Oxford & Horizon Credit Agreement in November 20T8iring 2013 through the termination of the Oxf&dHorizon Credit Agreement
November 2013, the Company paid $572,264 in interegense and amortized the remaining $248,16Cef#rcd financing fees as intel
expense. For the period from the Oxford & Horizaedit Agreemens inception in June 2012 through December 31, 20E2Company pa
$300,278 in interest expense and amortized $43rRd8&ferred financing fees as interest expense.

The Term A Loan bore interest at a fixed rate aff5%. However, for an initial period extending foe Term A Loan through May 1, 20
the Company was only required to make interest maysn The Company was also obligated to pay othstomary facility fees for a cre
facility of this size and type.

The Oxford & Horizon Credit Agreement containedtonsary covenants, including covenants that limdedestricted the Comparsyability tc
incur liens, incur indebtedness, make certainiststt payments, merge or consolidate or make dipos of assets. Upon the occurrence ¢
event of default under the Credit Agreement, timeldes could have ceased making loans, terminate@fiord & Horizon Credit Agreeme
declared all amounts outstanding to be immediadaely and payable and foreclosed on and/or liquiddtedCompanys assets that compris
the lenderstollateral. The Oxford & Horizon Credit Agreemepesified a number of events of default (some ofohlare subject to applical
grace or cure periods), including, among otherghimon-payment defaults, covenant defaults, armahi@dverse change in the Company’
business, crosdefaults to other materials indebtedness, bankyugotd insolvency defaults and material judgmenadis. The Company w
in compliance with these covenants up to and tHrdbhg time of its termination and payroll.

As a fee in connection with the Oxford & Horizone@it Agreement, the Company issued warrants tozdorand Oxford (theOxford &
Horizon Warrants”) to purchase the number of shafése Company common stock equal to 3% of each loan amountielivby the exerci:
price, which was calculated as the average NASDGIirg price of The Company common stock for threehdays prior to the funding of -
loan amount ($2.92 per share for the Term A Loan)is resulted in 11,415 warrant shares issuedimection with the Term A Loan. T
Oxford & Horizon Warrants issued in connection witle Term A Loan are exercisable for cash or byexetcise and will expire seven ye
after their issuance, which is June 27, 2019.

The Company valued the Oxford & Horizon Warrantsigishe BlackScholes option pricing model and recorded $73,85dederred financir
fees. In calculating the value of the warrante, @ompany assumed a volatility rate of 74.3%, fiisk interest rate of 1.10%, an expectec
of 3.5 years, a stock price of $2.80 (closing picedate of the Oxford & Horizon Warrant) and ngested forfeitures nor dividends.
connection with the Oxford & Horizon Credit Agreemhethe Company incurred cash expenses of $21%Hé&h were recorded as defer
financing fees in 2012. These deferred financewsfwere amortized as interest expense over ¢heflthe loan.

Capital Equipment Lease
In November 2011, the Company financed $144,448mequipment through a capital lease. This leaétigation has thirty monthly paymel

of $5,651 through February 2014. During 2013, tleen@any made principal and interest payments taja$é7,817. The outstanding le
obligation is $10,891 as of December 31, 2013.NBgte 15 to the financial statements.
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8. INCOME TAXES

A reconciliation of the Company’s statutory taxeréd the effective rate for the years ended Dece®be2013, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

201 2012 2011
Federal statutory rate 34.(% 34.(% 34.(%
State taxes, net of federal tax benefit 5.¢ 5.6 4.€
Recapture of alternative minimum tax - - -
Valuation allowance (39.9 (39.9 (38.6)
Effective tax rate % % —%

The components of the Company’s deferred tax asset December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows:
December 31,

In thousand: 201z 201z
Net operating loss carry forwar $ 53,42 $ 49,27+
Compensation expense related to employee stochrmpti 3,31( 2,815
Subtotal 56,73: 52,09
Valuation allowance (56,737) (52,09))
Total deferred tax asset $ - $ -

The evaluation of the realizability of such defértax assets in future periods is made based upaniety of factors that affect the Company’
ability to generate future taxable income, suchent and ability to sell assets and historical projected operating performance. At this ti
the Company has established a valuation resenadlfof its deferred tax assets. Such tax assetailable to be recognized and benefit ft
periods.

Following is a schedule of net operating loss céorwards and their year of expiration:

Approximate Amount

Of Unused Operating Expiration
Loss Carry Forwards During Year
(in $000s Ended
$ 4,84 202z
2,29: 202z
15,64: 202¢
8,16¢ 202¢
7,361 202¢
11,90¢ 202¢
18,54° 202¢
18,14¢ 203(
21,38t¢ 2031
20,55¢ 203z
10,39: 203z
$ 139,25(

During 2013, 2012 and 2011 the Company performadlyaas to determine if there were changes in ongras defined by Section 382 of
Internal Revenue Code that would limit its abilityutilize certain net operating loss and tax drediry forwards. The Company determi
that it experienced an ownership change, as defiiye@ection 382, in connection with certain comnsbock offerings on July 25, 20:
February 5, 2013 and on June 3, 2013. As a rahelt,tilization of the Company's federal tax neg¢raping loss carry forwards generated
to the ownership changes are limited. As of Decer8the2013, the Company has net operating losy tanwvards for U.S. federal and state
purposes of approximately $139 million, before exlahg net operating losses that have been limited gesult of Section 382 limitations. ~
annual limitation due to Section 382 for net oparptoss carry forward utilization is approximaté&.9 million per year for approximately §
million in net operating loss carry forwards existiat the ownership change occurring on July 25128pproximately $1.4 million per year
approximately $34 million o&dditional net operating losses occurring from 201 to the ownership change that occurred onuaeprs
2013 and approximately $1.5 million per year fopaximately $34 million of additional net operatifagses occurring from February 5, 2
to the ownership change that occurred on June B33.Zhhe utilization of these net operating lossycéorwards may be further limited if t
Company experiences future ownership changes aseddah Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code.
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9. STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

In August 2012, the Company filed with the Secastand Exchange Commission a $75 million shelfstegion statement on Form3Stha
allowed the Company to issue any combination of mom stock, preferred stock or warrants to purcham®@mon stock or preferr
stock. This shelf registration was declared efflecbn September 14, 2012.

During 2013, we received approximately $0.4 milliof gross proceeds from the exercise of warrantd stock options to purche
approximately 30,451 shares of the Comparmgommon stock. During 2012, we received approx@ige$10.8 million of gross proceeds fr
the exercise of warrants and stock options to @sehapproximately 904,144 shares of the Compangimmon stock. During 2011,
received approximately $0.4 million of gross prateé&om the exercise of warrants and stock opttorsurchase approximately 34,859 sh
of the Company’s common stock.

Controlled Equity Offering

On February 1, 2013, the Company entered into atrGlted Equity OfferingSM Sales Agreement (the “ATMgreement”)with Canto
Fitzgerald & Co., as sales agent (“Cantogirsuant to which Celsion may offer and sell, frime to time, through Cantor, shares of
common stock having an aggregate offering pricapfo $25.0 million (the “ATM Shares”) pursuantttee Companys previously filed an
effective Registration Statement on Form S-3. UriderATM Agreement, Cantor may sell ATM Shares hy anethod deemed to be an “at
the-market”offering as defined in Rule 415 promulgated undier $ecurities Act of 1933, as amended, includingssaade directly on T
NASDAQ Capital Market, on any other existing treglimarket for the our common stock or to or throagmarket maker. From Februan
2013 through February 25, 2013, the Company saidissued an aggregate of 1,195,927 shares of comnsitook under the ATM Agreeme
receiving approximately $6.8 million in net proceed

The Company is not obligated to sell any ATM Shaneder the ATM Agreement. Subject to the terms @dlitions of the ATM Agreeme
Cantor will use commercially reasonable effortgisistent with its normal trading and sales prastied applicable state and federal law, |
and regulations and the rules of The NASDAQ Capitatket, to sell ATM Shares from time to time basgn the Compang’instructions
including any price, time or size limits or otherstomary parameters or conditions the Company mapse. In addition, pursuant to the te
and conditions of the ATM Agreement and subjecth® instructions of the Company, Cantor may selMABhares by any other mett
permitted by law, including in privately negotiatednsactions.

The ATM Agreement will terminate upon the earliér(d the sale of ATM Shares under the ATM Agreemnbaving an aggregate offer
price of $25 million and (ii) the termination ofdbATM Agreement by Cantor or the Company. The ATlrédement may be terminated
Cantor or the Company at any time upon 10 daystexdb the other party, or by Cantor at any timeéntain circumstances, including
occurrence of a material adverse change in the @oympThe Company pays Cantor a commission of 20%e aggregate gross proce
from each sale of ATM Shares and has agreed taged@antor with customary indemnification and cimttion rights. The Company al
reimbursed Cantor for legal fees and disbursemein$50,000 in connection with entering into the ATAgreement. In connection with 1
February 2013 Preferred Stock Offering discussddwhethe Company agreed to not sell any ATM Shdoesa period of one year frc
February 26, 2013. In connection with the CommartisOffering below, the Company agreed to not eyl ATM Shares until June 3, 20
In connection with the January 2014 securitiesroféediscussed in Note 15 below, the Company agteewt sell any ATM Shares until Ji
22, 2014. The Company currently has approximat#8/ illion remaining under the ATM Agreement.
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February 2013 Preferred Stock Offeri

On February 22, 2013, the Company entered intocaries Purchase Agreement with certain institgicinvestors, pursuant to which
Company sold, in a registered offering, an aggregétl5,000.00422 shares of its Series A 0% coitkerpreferred stock and the warrant
purchase shares of its common stock, for an agtgguarchase price of approximately $15.0 milliohe(tFebruary 2013 Preferred St
Offering). The closing of the February 2013 Prefdr Stock Offering occurred on February 26, 20I8which the Company receiv
approximately $15.0 million in gross proceeds. j8cibto certain ownership limitations, shares ofi&eA 0% convertible preferred stock
convertible, at the option of the holder therenfpian aggregate of up to 2,682,764 shares of canstozk, and the warrants are exercisat
purchase an aggregate of up to 1,341,382 shamsrohon stock. Each warrant has an exercise pri§8.8fL per share, equal to the closing
price of common stock on February 21, 2013. Theavas are immediately exercisable and expire fe@ry after the date of issuance.

Upon issuance, we estimated the fair value of theramts issued in the February 2013 Preferred S@fééring to be approximately $t
million using the Black-Scholes pricing model. @|sipon issuance, we recognized approximately $dlln as a one-time, nooash deeme
dividend related to the beneficial conversion feattonnected to the preferred stock in the PraeleBteck Offering.

Assumptions used in the valuation of the warrasgaed in the February 2013 Preferred Stock Offeaiagas follows:

Risk-free interest rate 0.7¢%
Expected volatility 102.2%
Expected life (in years) 5.C

Expected forfeiture rate 0.C%
Expected dividend yield 0.C%

As of September 30, 2013, all 2,682,764 sharesmincon stock in the aggregate were issued upon csioneof all 15,000.00422 shares of
Series A 0% convertible preferred stock.

May 2013 Common Stock Offeri

On May 30, 2013, the Company entered into a SeesirPurchase Agreement with certain institutiomalestors, pursuant to which
Company sold, in a registered offering, an aggeeghtl,392,109 shares of its common stock for ajreggate purchase price of approxime
$9.8 million (the “Common Stock Offering”Y.he closing of the Common Stock Offering occurredJane 3, 2013. The issuance of com
stock in the Common Stock Offering was made purstathe Company’s previously filed and effectivedistration Statement on Form3S-
(File No. 333183286), the base prospectus dated September 12, fl8d as part of such Registration Statement #Hre prospect
supplement filed with the Securities and Exchangem@ission on June 3, 2013. The Securities Purchageement also contain
representations, warranties, indemnification at@ioprovisions customary for transactions of thatire.

Prior to the closing of the Common Stock Offeritiggre were an insufficient number of authorizedretdo complete the transaction.
investors in the Common Stock Offering also heldramts to purchase common stock of the Companyhwhviere issued in connection w
previous offerings. Concurrent with the closingled Common Stock Offering, the institutional inwstagreed to waive their rights to exer
these warrants to purchase 1,398,816 shares of oanstock of the Company (the “Waived Warrantstjtil the Company has obtair
stockholdersapproval to increase the number of its authorizetes of common stock in conjunction with the psgabreverse stock split
its outstanding shares of common stock. At the Gamgjs 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders held oty 119, 2013, the Compary/’
stockholders voted to approve the proposal to gieeretionary authority to the Board of Directtwsamend the Certificate of Incorporatior
the Company, as amended, to effect, at any timeraqmior to the date of the 2014 Annual MeetingStdckholders, a reverse stock split &
exchange ratio within the specified range and totls® number of authorized shares effective imnietlisafter the reverse stock split at
million shares. On October 28, 2013, the Compampoanced that it effected a 1-fdr5 reverse stock split of its common stock. SeecRe
Stock Split below for further information.
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Prior to the closing of the Common Stock Offerititg warrants described above were originally reedras equity at the fair value on the
of issuance. In accordance with ASC 815-B6@rivative Instruments and Hedging - Contracts imtily's Own Equity the Waived Warran
were required to be liability classified immedistelfter the closing of the Common Stock Offering ame 3, 2013 because there wer
insufficient number of common shares authorizecoéomit the full exercise of the warrants. Therefan June 3, 2013, the Comp
reclassified the fair value of the Waived Warratoisling approximately $9.1 million from equity #liability. The Waived Warrants we
required to be recorded at fair value at each loalaeet date with changes in fair value recordezhrnings until such time as there we
sufficient number of common shares authorized tonfighe full exercise of the warrants (see Notg 11n connection with the Reverse St
Split as more fully described below, these warramse valued as of October 28, 2013, and the Coynperiassified the fair value of t
Waived Warrants totaling approximately $5.3 millivam a liability to equity.

Following is a summary list of the Waived Warrants:

Shares of commo Per Share

stock Per Share Fair Value on

associated with th Expiration Date of Strike Fair Value October 28, 201
Waived Warrants Waived Warrants Price on June 3, 201:

1,323,49 2/26/201¢ $ 5.31 $ 6.6( $ 3.8¢

31,24 7/25/201¢ $ 18.9¢ $ 4.41 $ 2.1C

12,62¢ 7/6/201¢€ $ 14.0¢ $ 4.81 $ 2.4C

31,44¢ 11/25/201° $ 12.47 $ 5.5¢€ $ 3.1¢€

Assumptions used in the valuation of the Waived ffats associated with the June 3, 2013 Common Sfeking are as follows:

June 3, 201: October 28, 201z

Risk-free interest rate 05C - 1.03% 0.5¢ - 1.31%
Expected volatility 102.¢ - 110.9% 105.1 - 111.8%
Expected life (in years) 31 - 47% 27 - 4.3%
Expected forfeiture rat 0.0% 0.0%
Expected dividend yiel 0.00% 0.00%

Reverse Stock Sp

On October 28, 2013, the Company effected a Kfbrreverse stock split of its common stock whidswnade effective for trading purpc
as of the commencement of trading on October 29328s of that date, each 9 shares of issued atstiamaling common stock and equivali
will be consolidated into 2 shares of common stdeladdition, at the market open on October 29,32@e Compang common stock start
trading under a new CUSIP number 15117N404 althdhglCompany'’s ticker symbol, CLSN, remained ungeahn

The reverse stock split was previously approvedhgyCompanys stockholders at the 2013 Annual Meeting held Wy 19, 2013, and tt
Company subsequently filed a Certificate of Amendite its Certificate of Incorporation to effecetetock consolidation. The primary reas
for the reverse stock split and the amendment are:

e To increase the market price of the Compamdmmon stock making it more attractive to a beoadnge of institutional and otl
investors,

e To provide the Company with additional capital iases and flexibility sufficient to execute its mess plans including t
establishment of strategic relationships with ott@mpanies and to ensure its ability to raise amthi capital as necessary, and

e As previously announced, to facilitate expandimg Company’s business or product lines througkng@l acquisitions.

Immediately prior to the reverse stock split, thenpany had 61,226,873 shares of common stock odisg which consolidated in
13,604,975 shares of the Compangommon stock. No fractional shares were issuezbimection with the reverse stock split. Holdef
fractional shares have been paid out in cash ferfitactional portion with the Comparsybverall exposure for such payouts consisting
nominal amount. The number of outstanding optiond @&arrants were adjusted accordingly, with outdita; options being reduced fr(
approximately 3.9 million to approximately 0.9 ruh and outstanding warrants being reduced fromrayqimately 13.8 million t
approximately 3.1 million.
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January 2011 Preferred Stock Offeri

The Company has reassessed the application of A®E2@, Debt with Conversion and Other Optioas it relates to the 8% Series
Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock Offeringpleted in January 2011 (the January 2011 Prefedféeting). The Company receiv
gross proceeds from the January 2011 Preferredri@ffef approximately $5.1 million in which it solf,000 shares of 8% redeem:
convertible preferred stock with a stated valu8hD00 per share, each share convertible into 28.SBares of common stock, and warrar
purchase up to approximately 463,000 shares of camstock. All 5,000 shares of preferred stock solthe January 2011 Preferred Offel
were subsequently converted into the stated numfb@emmon stock shares as of August 2011. ASC2¥eequires the Company to value
preferred stock and common stock warrants, anytiegueneficial conversion feature(s) resultingnfr the valuation of these securities ar
determine and record the value of each of thesgries or conversion feature as debt or equityebasn the interpretation and applicatiol
ASC 470-20.

The Company allocated the proceeds of the Offdrgtgveen the redeemable preferred stock and themtarbased on fair value and corre
recorded the redeemable preferred stock as aityafdiebt), but did not consider the embedded heia¢fconversion feature (BCF) associc
with the redeemable preferred stock. ASC 200equired the Company to record a BCF of apprakéty $5 million at the time of issuance
the $5 million convertible Preferred Stock offeriagd to amortize the BCF as noash interest expense over the conversion periade &
462,960 shares were converted by August 8, 20&lentire $5 million of BCF should have been amedias interest expense during 2011
a result, the Company’interest expense and net loss were understat&b bgillion. The error had no effect on cash, clstvs or tota
shareholders’ equity during 2011 and had no effectash, cash flows, net income or total shareh®l@guity for any subsequent peric
After considering the quantitative and qualitateféects of the errors to the 2011 annual finanstatements, as well as the quarterly pe
financial statements within 2011, in the opiniomudinagement the error is not material to assesisinancial condition or operations of
Company. The Company has adjusted additional ipa@pital and a corresponding offset to retainachiags on the December 31, 2013
2012 balance sheets to reflect this adjustment.

June 2, 2011 Private Placement Offering

On June 2, 2011, the Company completed the issumrdtsale in a private placement transaction wistitutional investors, as well as cer
officers and directors of the Company, of 715,2h@res of common stock and warrants to purchase Upi%,247 shares of the Company’
common stock. The common stock and warrants itime 2, 2011 private placement offering were golghits, with each unit consisting
one share of common stock and a warrant to purahrasehare of common stock. The units sold to Uizéfd institutional investors were si
at a negotiated purchase price of $12.465 peramdtto officers and directors at $13.0275 per uh#, latter representing the consolidi
closing bid price per share of Compasyommon stock plus a warrant premium of $0.5625uymét. The warrants in this offering wi
immediately exercisable and have a term of exemfssgeventyeight months from the date of issuance and an eseeprice of $12.47 p
share. The Company received gross proceeds frerftéring of approximately $8.6 million before deting estimated offering expenses.

Concurrent with the issuance and sale of the wfitommon stock and warrants in this offering, @@mpany also entered into a registra
rights agreement with the investors that requireel Company to file a resale registration statenweitit the Securities and Exchat
Commission covering the resale by the investothimoffering of the common stock and the sharesoaimon stock issuable upon exercis
the warrants. These units were filed pursuantute R24(b)(3) under the Securities Act of 1933 lom Prospectus for Registration Stater
No. 33:-174960 and was declared effective on June 24,.2011

July 6, 2011 Reaqistered Direct Offering

On July 6, 2011, the Company completed the issuandesale in a registered offering of 715,247 shafeour common stock and warrant
purchase up to 139,704 shares of our common stoitistitutional investors. The securities wereddal units at a price of $14.25375 per L
with each unit consisting of one share of commaglstnd a warrant to purchase 0.3 shares of constoak, for an aggregate offering price
$6,637,688 (the “Offering”). Net proceeds from dftering were approximately $6 million.

Each warrant to purchase shares of common stottksroffering will have an exercise price of $146Q0%r share, for total potential additic

proceeds to the Company of up to approximately $§Rom upon exercise of these warrants. These wasrare immediately exercisable
cash or, solely in the absence of an effectivestegion statement, by net exercise and will exfire years from the date of issuance.
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The offer and sale of the common stock and warrgard the shares of common stock issuable uportiseeof the warrants) in this offeri
are registered under the Securities Act of 1938 (Becurities Act”), as amended, on a registrastatement on Form S-3 (File No. 333
158402).

July 25, 2011 Reaqistered Direct and Private Plac¢®@&erings

On July 25, 2011, the Company completed a regteffering of 677,263 shares of its common stoc#t aarrants (the “RD Warrantstp
purchase up to 203,179 shares of its common sidak.common stock and the warrants were sold irstig price of $19.159 per unit, v
each unit consisting of one share of the Compacgtamon stock and a warrant to purchase 0.30 slbétbe Companys common stock, fi
an aggregate registered offering price of $12,99%5(fhe “Registered Offering”).

The offer and sale of the Compasy'ommon stock issued in the Registered Offerirtjtha shares of common stock issuable upon exent
the warrants issued in the Registered Offering raggstered under the Securities Act of 1933, asnale@ (the “Securities Act”)pn ¢
registration statement on Form S-3 (File No. 338402), as supplemented and amended by the ptasprpplement filed with the Securi
and Exchange Commission on July 25, 2011.

On July 20, 2011, the Company entered into a Psechisgreement (the “Private Placement Purchase Agreg and, together with tt
Registered Direct Purchase Agreement, the “Agre¢si)ennder which the Company agreed to enter into aapriyplacement with oth
accredited institutional investors, a member of @wnpanys Board of Directors, and an accredited institwtlonvestor affiliated anoth
member of the Company’s Board of Directors (collegy, the “Private Offering Purchasers’Bursuant to the Private Placement Purc
Agreement, the Company issued 284,674 shares adtitgnon stock and warrants (the “Private Placeiéatrants”)to purchase up to 113,8
shares of its common stock. The Private Placemerth@se Agreement provided that the securitieshilsold in units at a price of $19,:
per unit, with each unit consisting of one sharahgf Company’s common stock and a warrant to pgecttad0 shares of the Company’
common stock, for an aggregate private offeringef $5,469,998 (the “Private Offeringgbllectively with the Registered Offering,
“Offerings”).

In the Offerings, each warrant to purchase shafékeoCompanys common stock will have an exercise price of $&8r share, for tot
potential additional proceeds to the Company ofauagpproximately $6 million upon exercise of thersaats. The warrants in the Offerings
immediately exercisable for cash or, solely in #éifsence of an effective registration statementdiyexercise and will expire five years fr
the date of issuance.

Concurrent with the issuance and sale of the Rri@dfering common stock and warrants, the Compésty entered into a Registration Ric
Agreement with the Private Offering Purchasers {Registration Rights Agreementthat requires the Company to file a registrati@iesher
within 30 days of the closing date on July 25, 2@idth the Securities and Exchange Commission cagetfie resale by the Private Offer
Purchasers of the common stock issued in the Rri@éfering and the shares of common stock issuaiibe exercise of the warrants issue
the Private Offering. These Units were filed parsuto Rule 424(b)(3) under the Securities Act 883 on the Prospectus for Registra
Statement No. 333-17648@nd was declared effective on September 22, 2011.

The purchase and issuance of securities in theri@dfe were completed on July 25, 2011. Net procéens the Registered Offering and
Private Placement Offering aggregated approximaig®/ million.

December 6, 2011 Private Placement Offering

On December 6, 2011, the Company completed tharnssuand sale in a private placement transactitin ingtitutional investors, as well
certain directors of the Company, of 1,441,442 ehaf common stock and warrants to purchase uR@¢/21 shares of common stock.
common stock and warrants were sold in units, @ébh unit consisting of one share of common stockaahalf of a warrant to purchase
share of common stock. Units sold to unaffiliatestitutional investors were sold at a negotiatectipase price of $10.406 per unit represel
the consolidated closing bid price per share ofroom stock plus a warrant premium of $0.125 per. ufiie Company received gross proct
from the offering of approximately $15.0 millionfbee deducting estimated offering expenses.
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In this offering, each warrant to purchase shafeth® Companys common stock will have an exercise price of $2(Qér share, for tot
potential additional proceeds to the Company ofougpproximately $7.7 million upon exercise of werants. The warrants in the Offering
immediately exercisable for cash or, solely in éifsence of an effective registration statementdiyexercise and will expire five years fr
the date of issuance.

Concurrent with the issuance and sale of the @ffedommon stock and warrants, the Company alsaezht@to a Registration Rigt
Agreement with the Purchasers (the “RegistratioghRi Agreement”that requires the Company to file a registratiosteshent with th
Securities and Exchange Commission covering thaledsy the Purchasers of the common stock issuabeirOffering and the shares
common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrastsed in the Offering. These units were filedspant to Rule 424(b)(3) under
Securities Act of 1933 on the Prospectus for Regfisih Statement No. 333- 178679 and was decldfedtiwe on February 8, 2012.

Committed Equity Financing Facility (CEFF)

On June 17, 2010, we entered into a Committed Edriiftancing Facility (CEFF) with Small Cap Biotedfalue Ltd. (SCBV). The CEF
provides that, upon the terms and subject to thaliions set forth therein, SCBV committed to pash up to $15.0 million worth of ¢
shares of common stock over the rdéénth term of the CEFF under certain specified @mrs and limitations, provided that in no everdy
we sell under the CEFF more than 534,319 sharesmimon stock, which is equal to one share less #8h of our outstanding shares
common stock on June 17, 2010, the closing dateeoCEFF, less the number of shares of common stecissued to SCBV on the clos
date as Commitment Shares (described below). &umtbre, in no event shall SCBV purchase any shafresir common stock which, wh
aggregated with all other shares of our commonkstioen beneficially owned by SCBV, would resulttire beneficial ownership by SCBV
more than 9.9% of the then outstanding shares otommon stock. These maximum share and benebuiakrship limitations may not
waived by the parties.

In partial consideration for SCBV's execution arelivkry of the CEFF, we issued to SCBV 8,888 share®ur common stock (tl
“Commitment Shares”)The issuance of the Commitment Shares, togethérallibther shares of common stock issuable to S@BMuant t
the terms of the CEFF, is exempt from registratimler the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (Becurities Act”),pursuant to tt
exemption for transactions by an issuer not inva\any public offering under Section 4(2) and Ragah D under the Securities Act.

During 2011, the Company completed the three davassales of 297,892 shares of the Commangmmon stock to SCBV under the ClI
resulting in approximately $3.4 million in gros®peeds.

In connection with the CEFF, the Company capitaliaad deferred approximately $332,000 of fees apereses in 2010. A portion of thi
amounts were amortized each time the Company caetpéedraw under the CEFF. During 2011, $274,806ase expenses was amortize
connection with the three draws in 2011.

The proceeds from the CEFF draws were used forrgenerporate purposes, including the funding & @ompanys clinical developme
pipeline of cancer drugs. SCBV is an accrediteeé&tor as such term is defined in Rule 501 of Reguld of the Securities Act of 1933,
amended (the “Securities Act”), and all sales & @ompanys common stock to SCBV pursuant to the CEFF weesngx from registratic
pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act Rtk 506 of Regulation D of the Securities Act. B@mpany has registered the resale @
shares of common stock issued to SCBV pursuaihigt@EFF under the Securities Act on a registrattatement on Form S-1.

Availability under the CEFF was exhausted durirggbcond quarter of 2011. Also, in connection wihity offerings in the second quarte
2011, the Company agreed to suspend the use @HRE& and expensed the unamortized deferred fingrieas of $274,806 in the 2011.

10. STOCK BASED COMPENSATION

Employee Stock Options

The Company has longrm compensation plans that permit the grantinip@éntive awards in the form of stock options. &atly, the term
of these plans require that the exercise priceé@bptions may not be less than the fair marketevaf Celsiors Common Stock on the date
options are granted. Options generally vest oveipua time frames or upon milestone accomplishme®tsne vest immediately. Others
over a period between one and five years. The npt@nerally expire ten years from the date ofjtlaat.
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2001 Stock Option Plan

In 2001, the Board of Directors adopted a stock fta directors, officers and employees (the “2B04n”) under which 148,148 shares w
reserved for future issuance. The purpose of thE Z8an was to promote lorigrm growth and profitability of Celsion by providj key
people with incentives to improve stockholder vedimel contribute to the growth and financial suca#<Selsion, and to enable the compar
attract, retain and reward the best available peréar positions of substantial responsibility.

2004 Stock Incentive Plan

In 2004, the Board of Directors adopted a stock e directors, officers and employees (the “2@04n”) under which 148,148 shares w
reserved for future issuance. The plan providestfock instruments to be issued enabling the hdlteneof to acquire Common stock of
Company at prices determined by the Company’s Bo&irectors. The purpose of the 2004 Plan wagrtonote the longerm growth an
financial success of the Company and enable thep@oyto attract, retain and reward the best aVailpbrsons for positions of substar
responsibility. The 2004 Plan permitted the graptiri awards in the form of incentive stock optiorsstricted stock, restricted stock ur
stock appreciation rights, phantom stock, and perémce awards, or in any combination of the foregoirhe 2004 Plan terminates in 2014
years from the date of the P’s adoption by the Company’s stockholders.

Any options forfeited or terminated under the 2604n and 2004 Plan are rolled into the 2007 Stockritive Plan for future issuance.
2007 Stock Incentive Plan

On June 13, 2007, the Company adopted the Celsiopo€ation 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2007Plainder which 222,222 shares \
available for issuance. The purpose of the 2001 Bato promote the lonterm growth and profitability of the Company by ypiding
incentives to improve stockholder value and enabhée Company to attract, retain and reward the beatlable persons for positions
substantial responsibility. The 2007 Plan perntiis granting of awards in the form of incentive &taptions, nonqualified stock optio
restricted stock, restricted stock units, stockragiation rights, phantom stock, and performancerds; or in any combination of i
foregoing. At the Annual Meetings of StockholdefsCelsion held on June 25, 2010 and June 7, 2b&2Xtockholders approved amendm
to the Plan. The only material difference betwtenexisting Plan and the amended Plan was the euaflshares of common stock availz
for issuance under the amended Plan which wasaseteby 222,222 to a total of 444,444 shares it© 20 by 500,000 to a total of 944,
shares in 2012.

The Company has issued stock options and warrangsnployees, directors, vendors and debt holdepsio®» and warrants are gener
granted at market value on the date of the grant.

Incentive stock options may be granted to purctemees of Common Stock at a price not less tha®616Dthe fair market value of t
underlying shares on the date of grant, providedlttie exercise price of any incentive option grdrib an eligible employee owning more 1
10% of the outstanding stock must be at least 180%e such fair market value on the date of gr@mily officers and key employees n
receive incentive stock options; all other quatifigarticipants may receive non-qualified stock @i

Option awards vest upon terms determined by thedBoBDirectors. Restricted stock awards, perforogastock awards and stock options
subject to accelerated vesting in the event ofamgh of control. The Company issues new shareatitfysits obligations from the exercise
options.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, 2012 aad, 287,888, 148,553 and 277,036 equity awardpedively, were granted under
2007 Plan. During 2013, 2012 and 2011, a total1g849, 66,019 and 57,000 equity awards, respegtivedre canceled or expired under
plans collectively. During 2013, 2012 and 2011873, 56,710 and 14,933 shares of the Comgacymmon stock were issued collectivel
a result of either options being exercised or igsnl stock awards vesting.

In 2007 an option to purchase 95,555 shares oftimpany's common stock was issued to the Compé&mjes Executive Officer. This optic

vested in equal installments over four years and separately registered with the Securities anch&@xge Commission (the "SEC") and '
not issued under any of the Employee Stock Inceriians.

F-24




As of December 31, 2013, there were a total of 8&&Bshares reserved and there were a total of 3BZfA&res available for future issus
under the option plans and incentive awards caVielgt

Total compensation cost charged related to empletaik options and novested restricted stock awards amounted to 1.2omjl1.1 millior
and $1.2 million for the years ended December 81322012 and 2011, respectively. No compensatish related to shateased paymer
arrangements was capitalized as part of the castyphsset at these same periods.

As of December 31, 2013, there was $1.2 milliortatal unrecognized compensation cost related tovested sharbased compensati
arrangements. That cost is expected to be recadjpizer a weighted-average period of 1.3 years.Wéighted average gradgte fair values

the equity awards granted during the years endegreer 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $3.40, $7.2%848, respectively.

Equity Awards Issued to Consultants for Services

The Company periodically issues equity awards twsatiants in exchange for services provided. Threvidue of options granted is meast
in accordance with ASC 718ompensation — Stock Compensatigsing the Blackscholes option pricing model and recorded as apresil
the period in which such services are received.e@Gdly, the terms of these plans require that fterase price of such awards may not be
than the fair market value of the Compa€ommon Stock on the date the equity awards amtep. Consultant equity awards generally
over various time frames or upon milestone accashplents. Some vest immediately upon issuance. qlieyeawards generally expire witt
10 years from the date of grant. There were 5,5587 and 5,000 awards issued to consultants gltin& years ended December 31, 2
2012 and 2011, respectively.

A summary of stock option awards as of DecembefB813 and changes during the three years endedrbece1, 2013, is presented below:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining
Average Contractual Aggregate
Number Exercise Term Intrinsic

Stock Options Outstanding Price (in years) Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2011 481,69¢ $ 17,8:

Granted 265,70: 16.52

Exercised - -

Canceled or expired (55,599 14.5¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2011 691,80¢ 16.8¢

Granted 145,61: 10.0¢

Exercised (47,579 14.67

Canceled or expired (64,316 29.4:
Outstanding at December 31, 2012 725,52¢ 14.6:

Granted 187,77 4.3¢

Exercised (12,429 14.67

Canceled or expired (38,97)) 16.7¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 861,90t g 12.2¢ 66 $ -
Exercisable at December 31, 2013 601,48: 3 14.2¢ 6.2 $ -
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A summary of the status of the Company’s mested restricted stock awards as of December(13 and changes during the two years e
December 31, 2013, is presented below:

Weighted
Average
Number Exercise
Restricted Stock Outstanding Price
Outstanding at January 1, 2011 17,20 $ 15.62
Granted 11,33: 12.2¢
Vested and issued (14,93 14.04
Forfeited (1,409 17.8:
Non-vested stock awards outstanding at December 31, 20 12,19: $ 14.2:
Granted 2,94 16.45
Vested and issued (9,135 15.1%
Forfeited (1,709 12.5¢
Non-vested stock awards outstanding at December 32, 20 4292 $ 14.6:
Granted 111 5.3¢€
Vested and issued (444) 8.4(C
Forfeited (2,409 15.6¢
Non-vested stock awards outstanding at December 3B 20 1551 ¢ 14.1:
A summary of stock options outstanding at Decen3ie2013 by price range is as follows:
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Remaining Weighted Remaining Weighted
Contractual Average Contractual Average
Range o Term Exercise Term Exercise
Exercise Price: Number (in years) Price Number (in years) Price
$0.50 -$8.99 189,63! 93 $ 4.4¢ 62,51! 92 $ 4.4¢
$9.00 -$13.50 477,55. 6.1 $ 11.12 356,52« 54 $ 11.4:
$13.51-$30.00 183,62 42 $ 21.3¢ 171,34: 4C $ 21.6%
Above $30.0( 11,10: 0¢ $ 57.2¢ 11,10: 0c $ 57.2¢
861,90! 601,48:

The fair values of stock options granted were estidth at the date of grant using the Black-Schopg®io pricing model. The Blackchole
model was originally developed for use in estin@tthe fair value of traded options, which have aiht characteristics from Celsien’
nonqualified stock options. The model is also gemsito changes in assumptions, which can matgrefect the fair value estimate. 1
Company used the following assumptions for deteimgithe fair value of options granted under thecBi&choles option pricing model:

Year Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Risk-free interest rate 0.8t to 1.19%1.0€ to 2.97%2.2€ to 2.97%
Expected volatility 83.4 - 97.9%80.6 - 82.3%72.z - 81.0%
Expected life (in years) 5.2E to 6.00 5.0C to 6.25 6.25
Expected forfeiture rate 5.C to 7.5% 7.5% 0.0%
Expected dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Expected volatilities utilized in the model are &don historical volatility of the Comparsystock price. The risk free interest rate is dm
from values assigned to U.S. Treasury strips adighda in the Wall Street Journal in effect at timee of grant. The model incorpora
exercise, pre-vesting and possting forfeiture assumptions based on analyshastbrical data. The expected life of the fiscal2, 2012 an
2011 grants was generated using the simplified ote#fs allowed under Securities and Exchange Coriani&taff Accounting Bulletin N
107.
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11. WARRANTS

As more fully described in Note 9, the Company ctatgal a series of equity financing transactiongdh3 and 2011 that included the issui
of warrants to purchase 1,341,382 and 2,394,39%&sheespectively, of the Compasy¢ommon stock. In connection with the Herculesd@
Agreement and the Horizon & Oxford Credit Agreemidret Company entered into in November 2013 and 2068 as more fully describec
Note 7, the Company issued warrants to purchas®864nd 11,415 shares, respectively, of the Coy’s common stock. During 2013, 2(
and 2011, the Company received gross proceedspobdmately $0.2 million, $10.2 million and $0.4 Ihwin, respectively, from the exerc
of warrants to purchase 15,833, 847,715 and 345B&88s of common stock, respectively.

Following is a summary of all warrant activity fibre three years ended December 31, 2012:

Weighted
Number of Average
Warrants Exercise
Warrants Issued Price
Warrants outstanding at January 1, 2011 224,23¢ $ 23.5¢
Warrants issued in connection with 2011 equitydeations 2,394,39: 13.2¢
Warrants exercised for common stock warrants i201 (34,859 12.2¢
Warrants outstanding at December 31, 2011 2,583,77 % 14,1¢
Warrants issued in connection with the Oxford & ion Credit Agreement as more ful
described in Note 7 11,41¢ $ 13.1¢
Warrants exercised for common stock in 2012 (847,71Y 12.11
Warrants outstanding at December 31, 2012 1,747,47 15.15
Warrants issued in connection with 2013 equitydeations 1,341,38; 5.31
Warrants issued in connection with the Herculesli€®sgreement as more fully describ
in Note 7 194,98t 3.5¢
Warrants exercised for common stock in 2013 (15,839 14.6:
3,268,01. ¢ 10.4%
Aggregate intrinsic value of outstanding warrant®ecember 31, 2013 $ 58,49¢
Weighted average remaining contractual terms (Years 3.5¢€

Common Stock Warrant Liability

In September 2009, the Company closed a registéiredt offering with a select group of institutidriavestors that raised gross proceec
$7.1 million and net proceeds of $6.3 million. lanaection with this registered direct offering, tBempany issued 484,478 shares ¢
common stock and warrants to purchase 224,239 sliireommon stock. The warrants have an exerciee pf $23.58 per share and
exercisable at any time on or after the six momthiversary of the date of issuance and on or gdd®6 months after the date of issua
Under the terms of the warrants, upon certain &etiens, including a merger, tender offer or sdlalbor substantially all of the assets of
Company, each warrant holder may elect to receieash payment in exchange for the warrant, in anuamtndetermined by application of
Black-Scholes option valuation model. Accordinglyrsuant to ASC 815.4Merivative Instruments and Hedging - Contracts imtify’'s Owr
Equity, the warrants are recorded as a liability and timanked to market each period through the Statewfe@perations in other income
expense. At the end of each subsequent quarteCdhgany will revalue the fair value of the warsaand the change in fair value will
recorded as a change to the warrant liability dweddifference will be recorded through the Statamé&@perations in other income or expense
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As more fully described in Note 9, concurrent witte closing of the Common Stock Offering, the inwes in this offering agreed
waive their rights to exercise the Waived Warraotpurchase 1,398,816 shares of common stock oCtimapany until the Company
obtained stockholdersipproval of increasing the number of its authorighdres of common stock in conjunction with theppsed rever:
stock split of its outstanding shares of commortistdn accordance with ASC 815-4Dgrivative Instruments and HedgingContracts i
Entity's Own Equity,the Waived Warrants were required to be classifiediabilities immediately after the closing of t@®mmon Stoc
Offering on June 3, 2013 because there were aiffitisnt number of common shares authorized to fiethe full exercise of the Waivi
Warrants if they were exercised. Therefore, then@any had reclassified the fair value of the WaiVedrrants totaling approximately $'
million from equity to a liability as of June 3, 2B. The Waived Warrants were required to be rembat fair value at each balance sheet
with changes in fair value recorded in earningsl goich time as there are a sufficient number ohitmn shares authorized to permit the
exercise of the warrants. In connection with Reverse Stock Split, these warrants were valuedf &ctober 28, 2013 and the Comp
reclassified the fair value of the Waived Warraotsling approximately $5.3 million from a liabifito equity.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company dedoa common stock warrant liability of $3,026 &4d3 million respectively. The fe
value of the warrants associated with the Septer2®@® registered direct offering at December 31,32@012 and 2011 was calculated u
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with thedaling assumptions:

December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Risk-free interest rate 0.12% 0.72% 0.85%
Expected volatility 64.7/% 92.02% 75.1%
Expected life (in years) 1.2¢ 1.15 1.€
Expected forfeiture rate 0.C% 0.C% 0.C%
Expected dividend yield 0.0(% 0.0(% 0.0(%

See Note 9 for the assumptions used at June 3, &0d3Dctober 28, 2013 for the Black-Scholes optinoing model calculation for tl
Waived Warrants associated with the Common Stodkridf on the dates they were waived and when theoame a sufficient number
common shares authorized to permit their full eserc

As a result of this change in the warrant liability2013, which included the change in the warliafiility associated with the Waived Warra
as discussed above, the Company recorded @asinbenefit of $8.1 million during 2013. The chaumy the warrant liability during 2012 &
2011 resulted in a non-cash loss of $4.1 millior2@12 and a nooash benefit of $0.1 million in 2011. The followirg a summary of tt
changes in the common stock warrant liability {662, 2012 and 2011:

Beginning balance, January 1, 2011 $ 248,13:
Benefit from the adjustment for the change in Yailue included in net loss for 2010 (81,739
Balance at December 31, 2011 166,39¢
Benefit from the adjustment for the change in Yailue included in net loss for 2011 4,117,53)
Balance at December 31, 2012 4,283,93;
Fair value of warrants classified as liability ($¢ate 9) 9,110,30:
Fair value of warrants classified as equity (se&NY) (5,300,57)
Gain from the adjustment for the change in faiueahcluded in net loss (8,090,63))
Ending balance, December 31, 2013 $ 3,02¢

12. CELSION EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Celsion maintains a definembntribution plan under Section 401(k) of the IntdrRevenue Code. The plan covers substantiallgraployee
over the age of 21. Participating employees magrdefportion of their pretax earnings, up to th8 Ehnual contribution limit. Commencing
the fourth quarter for 2008, the Company began ntaki matching contribution up to a maximum of 3%awofemployee annual salary and 1
Companys total contribution for the years ended Decemler2®13, 2012 and 2011 was $62,546, $57,239 anB&B0espectively. Tl
Company’s contribution was made in the form of cammon stock.
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13. LICENSES OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND PATENTS

On November 10, 1999, the Company entered intacemdie agreement with Duke University under whieh @ompany received worldwi
exclusive rights (subject to certain exceptionsydmmercialize and use Dulkethermally sensitive liposome technology. Therlg@agreeme
contains annual royalty and minimum payment provisidue on net sales. The agreement also requiiledtonebased royalty paymer
measured by various events, including product agrekent stages, FDA applications and approvals,igorenarketing approvals a
achievement of significant sales. However, in ldusuch milestone-based cash payments, Duke agoeadcept shares of the Company’
Common Stock to be issued in installments at time ach milestone payment is due, with each install of shares to be calculated at
average closing price of the Common Stock durimg2® trading days prior to issuance.

The total number of shares issuable to Duke urigeet provisions is subject to adjustment in cexdases, and Duke has piggyback registr.
rights for public offerings taking place more thame year after the effective date of the licenseement. On January 31, 2003, the Com
issued 253,691 shares of Common Stock to Duke kityevalued at $2.2 million as payment for milestdased royalties under this lice
agreement. An amendment to the Duke license agrgecmmtains certain development and regulatory stolees, and other performa
requirements that the Company has met with redpettte use of the licensed technologies. The Compalh be obligated to make roya
payments based on sales to Duke upon commerciahzaintil the last of the Duke patents expire.

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 ary #64 Company has not incurred any expense uhteagreement and will not incur &
future liabilities until commercial sales commence.

Under the November 1999 license agreement with Dthiee Company has rights to the thermally sensiijyesome technology, includii
Duke’s US patents covering the technology as well asfom#fign counter parts and related pending apptinat Foreign counterpi
applications have been issued in Europe, Hong KAngtralia and Canada and have been allowed imJdje Japanese allowed applicatic
expected to issue without hindrance in March of1200he European patent has been validated in Audelgium, France, Germany, Gi
Britain, Italy, Luxembourg, Monaco, Spain and Sweitand. In addition, the Duke license agreemenvigdes the Company with rights
multiple issued and pending US patents relatedeéddrmulation, method of making and use of heasis@e liposomes. The Compasyfight:
under the license agreement with Duke Universitgrd for the life of the last-to-expire of the lised patents.

The Company has licensed from Valentis, CA cemgitval rights covering the use of pegylation fonperature sensitive liposomes.

In addition to the rights available to the Compamgder completed or pending license agreementsCtimepany is actively pursuing pat
protection for technologies developed by the Comgpatimong these patents is a family of pending W8 mternational patent applicatic
which seek to protect the Company’s proprietaryhrmetof storing ThermoDox® which is critical for wdwide distribution channels.

ThermoDox®is a registered trademark in the United StateseAtiga, Australia, Canada, China, Columbia, theogean Communitie
(Austria, Belgium, Bulgaria, Cyprus, Czech Repubbenmark, Estonia, Finland, France, Germany, &eBangary, Ireland, Italy, Kore
Latvia, Lithuania, Luxembourg, Malta, NetherlanB®sland, Portugal, Romania, Slovakia, Slovenia, igpaweden, UK), Hong Kong, Isre
Japan, New Zealand, Peru, Philippines, Russia, apmmg@, South Korea and Taiwan. The Company hasteegd transliterations
ThermoDox®in China, Hong Kong, Japan, Singapore, South Kamea Taiwan. The Company has an additional 14 trademrotectio
applications pending for ThermoDox® in countriesldevide.

Finally, through proprietary information agreemewith employees, consultants and others, the Cognpagks to protect its own propriet
know-how and trade secrets. The Company cannot offerasses that these confidentiality agreementsnatillbe breached, that the Comp
will have adequate remedies for any breach, orttiege agreements, even if fully enforced, willddequate to prevent thipghrty use of th
Companys proprietary technology. Similarly, the Companymmat guarantee that technology rights licensedt tbyi others will not b
successfully challenged or circumvented by thirdips, or that the rights granted will provide thempany with adequate protection.
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14. TECHNOLOGY DEVELOPMENT AND LICENSING AGREEMENTS

On May 7, 2012 the Company entered into a long mymmercial supply agreement with Zhejiang HisuarRtaceutical Co. Ltd. (Hisun) 1
the production of ThermoDox® the China territory. In accordance with thartsrof the agreement, Hisun will be responsiblepiamviding
all of the technical and regulatory support sersjdecluding the costs of all technical transfegistration and bioequivalence studies, tech
transfer costs, Celsion consultative support caststhe purchase of any necessary equipment ariibadtfacility costs necessary to supj
capacity requirements for the manufacture of Th&m®. Celsion will repay Hisun for the aggregate amourthese development costs |
fees commencing on the successful completion @fetlegistration batches of ThermoDox®Bisun is also obligated to certain performe
requirements under the agreement. The agreemérihivally be limited to a percentage of the pradion requirements of ThermoDox®
the China territory with Hisun retaining an optifun additional global supply after local regulat@gproval in the China territory. In additi
Hisun will collaborate with Celsion around the rkgary approval activities for ThermoDox@ith the China State Food and D
Administration (CHINA FDA). As of September 30, 13) the Company has incurred approximately $371j80€osts to be reimbursed
Hisun.

On January 18, 2013, we entered into a technoleggldpment contract with Hisun, pursuant to whidbud paid us a norefundable resear
and development fee of $5 million to support ouredepment of ThermoDox®n mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau (the C
territory). Following our announcement on Januaty 2013 that the HEAT study failed to meet itsrary endpoint, Celsion and Hisun h
agreed that the Technology Development Contractredtinto on January 18, 2013 will remain in effediile the parties continue
collaborate and are evaluating the next stepslatioa to ThermoDox®, which include the sgbeup analysis of patients in the Phase 11l Hi
Study for the hepatocellular carcinoma clinicalidgadion and other activities to further the devaelgmt of ThermoDox®&or the Greater Chir
market. The $5.0 million received as a mefundable payment from Hisun in the first qua&8i3 has been recorded to deferred revenu
will continue to be amortized over the 10 year tefthe agreement, until such time as the parties & mutually acceptable path forwarc
the development of Thermodox based on findingbefangoing post-study analysis of the HEAT Studwpda

On July 19, 2013, the Company and Hisun enteram anMemorandum of Understanding to pursue ongoaliglworations for the continu
clinical development of ThermoDox® as well as teehinology transfer relating to the commercial maotufre of ThermoDox®&or the Chini
territory. This expanded collaboration includeselepment of the next generation liposomal formolatiith the goal of creating safer, m
efficacious versions of marketed cancer chemotleertags.

Among the key provisions of the Celsion-Hisun Mearmtum of Understanding are:

e Hisun will provide the Company with naitutive financing and the investment necessargamplete the technoloy
transfer of its proprietary manufacturing process e production of registration batches for tién@ territory;

e Hisun will collaborate with the Company around thimical and regulatory approval activities for Th®mDox® as
well as other liposomal formations with the CHINB®A; and

e Hisun will be granted a right of first offer for@mmercial license to ThermoDoxf®r the sale and distribution
ThermoDox® in the China territory.

In the fourth quarter of 2008, the Company entéméala Development, Product Supply and Commer@tbn Agreement with Yakult Hons
under which Yakult was granted the exclusive rightommercialize and market ThermoDof® the Japanese market. We were paid a
million up-front licensing fee and we have the potential teihee additional payments from Yakult upon receptmarketing approval by tl
Japanese Ministry of Health, Labor and Welfare a as upon the achievement of certain levels tE#fssand approval for new indications.
will receive double digit escalating royalties & tsale ThermoDox®& Japan, when and if any such sales occur. Wewvglsbe the exclusiv
supplier of ThermoDox® to Yakult.

Concurrent with the January 2011 Preferred Equitamicing as discussed in Note 9 to the Financiate®tents, the Company amende:
Development, Product Supply and Commercializatigne&ment with Yakult to provide for up to $4.0 moill in an accelerated partial payrr
to the Company of a future drug approval milestonaich included $2.0 million paid to the Companyunpghe closing of the preferred eq;
financing and an additional $2.0 million conditionepon the resumption of enroliment of Japanesergatin the Japan cohort of the HE
study. In consideration of these accelerated toites payments from Yakult, the Company agreed doige future drug approval milestc
payments by approximately forty percent (40%).
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15. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

In July 2011, the Company executed a lease (thas&®with Brandywine Operating Partnership, L.P. (Bramthe), a Delaware limite
partnership for a 10,870 square foot premises dacat Lawrenceville, New Jersey. In October 20the, Company relocated its offices
Lawrenceville, New Jersey from Columbia, Marylarithe lease has a term of 66 months and provides foonths rent free, with the fi
monthly rent payment of approximately $23,000 doeé paid in April 2012. Also, as required by theake, the Company provided Brandyv
with an irrevocable and unconditional standby fettecredit for $250,000, which the Company secusgéith an escrow deposit at its bank
institution of this same amount. The standby tettfecredit will be reduced by $50,000 on eachhsf 19th , 31st and 43rd months from
initial term, with the remaining $100,000 amouninening until the Lease Term has expired. In cotioeavith the $50,000 reduction of |
standby letter of credit in April 2013, the Compaeyuced the escrow deposit by $50,000.

Following is a summary of the future minimum paytserequired under leases that have initial or remgilease terms of one year or mor
of December 31, 2013:

Capital Operating
For the year ending December 31: Leases Leases
2014 $ 11,30 $ 286,24
2015 — 291,67¢
2016 — 297,11
2017 — 99,64:
2018 and beyond — —
Total minimum lease payments 11,30: $ 974,67t
Less amounts of lease payments that represen¢ster 412
Present value of future minimum capital lease paytme 10,89:
Less current obligations under capital leases 10,89:

$ —

16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On January 15, 2014, the Company entered into arfiies Purchase Agreement with certain institudldnvestors, pursuant to which Cels
agreed to sell, in a registered offering, an agapegf 3,603,604 shares of its common stock, plaevg0.01 per share, and warrants to purc
up to 1,801,802 shares of Common Stock, for anezgde purchase price of approximately $15 millibhe shares of common stock .
warrants were sold in units, with each unit comsisbf one share of common stock, a Series A watmpurchase 0.25 share of common s
and a Series B warrant to purchase 0.25 sharensfmom stock. Each unit was sold at a purchase pfi¢.1625. Each Series A warrant
be exercisable at any time on or after its issuatate and until the fivgear anniversary of the issuance date. Each SBrigarrant will bt
exercisable at any time on or after its issuan¢e dad until the ongear anniversary of the issuance date. Each waneman exercise price
$4.10 per share. Under the purchase agreemenip&sprohibited, for a period of nine months affee closing, from effecting or enter
into an agreement to issue Common Stock or anyr atheurities that are at any time convertible imogexercisable or exchangeable fol
otherwise entitle the holder thereof to receivem@mwn Stock to the extent such issuance or saldviesaertain variable conversion, exer
or exchange prices or such agreement providesafera securities at a price to be determined énftiture. This offering was made pursual
the Company’s previously filed and effective regisbn statement on Form S-3 (File No. 3B83286), the base prospectus dated Septe
14, 2012 filed as part of such registration stat@mand the prospectus supplement filed by Celsiith the Securities and Exchar
Commission on January 21, 2014.
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17. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited)

(in thousands, except per share data)

Quarters Ended

September
March 31 June 30 30 December 3:
2013
Total revenue $ 128 $ 128 $ 128 $ 12t
Net loss (657) 421 (4,072) (3,949
Non-cash deemed dividend from beneficial conver&aiture on
convertible preferred stock (4,607 — — -
Basic and diluted net loss available to commonedi@ders per share (0.4¢) 0.0z (0.30) (0.29
2012
Total revenue $ - 3 - $ - $ -
Net loss (6,186 (6,109 (6,01%) (8,260
Basic and diluted net loss per share (0.19 (0.1¢) (0.1¢) (0.23)
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EXHIBIT 10.28

LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

THIS LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT is made and dated of November 25, 2013 and is entered into by lzatd/ee!
CELSION CORPORATION , a Delaware corporation (“Borrower”), attERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC. , &
Maryland corporation (“Lender”).

RECITALS

A. Borrower has requested Lender to make dvlaileo Borrower term loans (each &érm Loan Advance” and collectively, the “
Term Loan Advances”) in an aggregate principal amount of up to TweMillion Dollars ($20,000,000) (the Maximum Term Loan
Amount "); and

B. Lender is willing to make the Term Loan Adeas on the terms and conditions set forth inAlgieement.

AGREEMENT
NOW, THEREFORE, Borrower and Lender agree as fatow

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS AND RULES OF CONSTRUCTION

1.1 Unless otherwise defined herein, the foltmcapitalized terms shall have the following mags:

“ Account Control Agreement(s)” means any agreement entered into by and amongetheek, Borrower and a third party banl
other institution (including a Securities Intermagi) in which Borrower maintains a Deposit Accoumtan account holding Investm
Property and which grants Lender a perfected fiisirity security interest in the subject accounaocounts.

“ ACH Authorization ” means the ACH Debit Authorization Agreement imstantially the form of Exhibit H.

“ Advance(s)” means a Term Loan Advance.

“ Advance Date” means the funding date of any Advance.

“ Advance Request means a request for an Advance submitted by Bardo Lender in substantially the form of ExhiBit

“ Agreement” means this Loan and Security Agreement, as antefrden time to time.

“ Amortization Date " means January 2, 2015.

“ Assignee’ has the meaning given to it in Section 11.13.

“ Borrower " has the meaning given to it in the preamble te greement.

“ Borrower Products " means all products, software, service offeringshnécal data or technology currently being desig
manufactured or sold by Borrower or which Borrovigtiends to sell, license, or distribute in the fetuncluding any products or serv
offerings under development, collectively, togethdth all products, software, service offerings;hteical data or technology that have t
sold, licensed or distributed by Borrower sincdntorporation.




“ Business Day’ means any day excluding Saturday, Sunday and apyvtich is a legal holiday under the laws of that&to
California or is a day on which banking institutiolocated in such state are required by law orr@beernmental action to close.

“ Cash” means all cash and liquid funds.

“ Change in Control” means any reorganization, recapitalization, codatibn or merger (or similar transaction or senéselatet
transactions) of Borrower, sale or exchange oftanting shares (or similar transaction or serieselafted transactions) of Borrower in wt
the holders of Borrowes’ outstanding voting shares immediately before wamsation of such transaction or series of relatadstactions ¢
not, immediately after consummation of such tratisa®r series of related transactions, retainehagpresenting more than fortine percer
(49%) of the voting power of the surviving entitf such transaction or series of related transast{on the parent of such surviving entit
such surviving entity is wholly owned by such pdyeim each case without regard to whether Borrawéhe surviving entity (other than by
sale of Borrower’s equity securities in a publiaegistered offering or a private placement of pubguity).

“ Claims " has the meaning given to it in Section 11.10.

“ Closing Date” means the date of this Agreement.

“ Collaboration Transaction ” means any transaction in the ordinary course ofnkas pursuant to which Borrower or any
Borrower’'s Subsidiaries (a) provides an exclusivean-exclusive license or exclusive or nexclusive sublicense of its Intellectual Prop
(in any case not constituting a transfer of titteoarnership in such Intellectual Property), (b)lwiespect to its Intellectual Property, provid
right of reference to regulatory filings and apptions with governmental health authorities, and@r provides customary rights to 1
Borrower’s preelinical and clinical data, in the case of each(@f (b) and (c) to one or more third parties imroection with the resear:
clinical development, regulation, manufacturingmeoercialization and/or marketing of one or moreBmfrrower’s or any of Borrowes’
Subsidiary’s drugs or drug candidates, in each ttesecould not result in a legal transfer of tifethe property.

“ Collateral " means the property described in Section 3.
“ Confidential Information " has the meaning given to it in Section 11.12.

“ Contingent Obligation ” means, as applied to any Person, any direct oreicdiability, contingent or otherwise, of thatrBen witt
respect to (i) any indebtedness, lease, divideztterlof credit or other similar obligation of ahet, including any such obligation directly
indirectly guaranteed, endorsed, made or discounted or sold with recourse by thasd?e or in respect of which that Person is othsx
directly or indirectly liable; (ii) any obligationsith respect to undrawn letters of credit, corp@reredit cards or merchant services issue
the account of that Person; and (iii) all obligataarising under any interest rate, currency ormodity swap agreement, interest rate
agreement, interest rate collar agreement, or @berement or arrangement designated to proteetso® against fluctuation in interest re
currency exchange rates or commodity prices; pexljichowever, that the term “Contingent Obligati@fiall not include endorsements
collection or deposit in the ordinary course ofibhass. The amount of any Contingent Obligation|dimldeemed to be an amount equal t
stated or determined amount of the primary oblagatn respect of which such Contingent Obligatismiade or, if not stated or determins
the maximum reasonably anticipated liability inpest thereof as determined by such Person in gaithd provided, however, that such amc
shall not in any event exceed the maximum amoutite@bbligations under the guarantee or other stigpangement.

“ Copyright License” means any written agreement granting any rightseoany Copyright or Copyright registration, now edro
hereafter acquired by Borrower or in which Borrowew holds or hereafter acquires any interest.

“ Copyrights " means all copyrights, whether registered or untegid, held pursuant to the laws of the UnitedeStahny Sta
thereof, or of any other country.




“ Deposit Accounts” means any “deposit account®s such term is defined in the UCC, and includgsclwecking account, savir
account, or certificate of deposit.

“ Draw Period ” means the period commencing upon the first BusiDegsfollowing the Closing Date and ending on tlaglier tc
occur of (i) June 30, 2014 (which date may be edgdnby Lender in its sole discretion), and (ii)Erent of Default that has occurred an
continuing.

“ End of Term Charge” is defined in Section 2.5.
“ ERISA " is the Employee Retirement Income Security Ac1874, and its regulations.
“ Event of Default” has the meaning given to it in Section 9.

“ Excluded Accounts” are Deposit Accounts exclusively used for payrplyroll taxes and other employee wage and b
payments to or for the benefit of Borrower’s, oy afi its Subsidiaries'employees, and identified to Lender by Borrowesiash; provided the
at no time shall Borrower or any Subsidiary maimti&i any such Deposit Accounts an amount in exoéshe equivalent of two (2) payr
periods of Borrower.

“ Facility Charge " means one percent (1.0%) of the Maximum Term LAarount.
“ Financial Statements’ has the meaning given to it in Section 7.1.
“ GAAP " means generally accepted accounting principlébénUnited States of America, as in effect frometito time.

“ Hisun Agreement” is that certain Technology Development AgreemenbragnBorrower, Zhejian Hisun Pharmaceutical Co.
and Hisun Pharmaceutical USA Inc., dated as of K|&8012, as in effect on the Closing Date.

“ Hisun Consulting Fees’ are the fees due Zhejiang Hisun Pharmaceutical tdoand Hisun Pharmaceutical USA Inc. under Sa
2.2.3 of the Hisun Agreement.

“ Indebtedness” means any of (a) all indebtedness for borrowed marethe deferred purchase price of property owises
(excluding trade credit entered into in the ordineourse of business due within one hundred twét?Q) days), including reimbursement
other obligations with respect to surety bonds &etters of credit, (b) all obligations evidenced bgtes, bonds, debentures or sin
instruments, (c) all capital lease obligations, &dall Contingent Obligations.

“ Insolvency Proceeding” is any proceeding by or against any Person underUhited States Bankruptcy Code, or any ¢
bankruptcy or insolvency law, including assignmefus the benefit of creditors, compositions, extens generally with its creditors,
proceedings seeking reorganization, arrangemeuther relief.

“ Intellectual Property " means all of Borrowes Copyrights; Trademarks; Patents; Licenses; tsmieets and inventions; mi
works; Borrower’s applications therefor and reissuextensions, or renewals thereof; and Borrosvgbodwill associated with any of -
foregoing, together with Borrowex’rights to sue for past, present and future igéinent of any of the foregoing and the goodwillbaszer
therewith.

“ Investment” means any beneficial ownership (including stocktr@aship or limited liability company interestd)ar in any Perso
or any loan, advance or capital contribution to Beyson or the acquisition of all, or substantially of the assets of another Person.

“ Joinder Agreements” means for each Subsidiary, a completed and exedateder Agreement in substantially the form atéa
hereto as Exhibit G.

“ Lender ” has the meaning given to it in the preamble te fgreement.




“ License” means any Copyright License, Patent License, Tradelxricense or other license of rights or intera@ster to Intellectue
Property.

“ Lien ” means any mortgage, deed of trust, pledge, hypatiloec assignment for security, security interesgumbrance, levy, lien
charge of any kind, whether voluntarily incurredasising by operation of law or otherwise, agaensy property, any conditional sale or o
title retention agreement, and any lease in thereadf a security interest.

“ Loan " means the Advances made under this Agreement.

“ Loan Documents” means this Agreement, the Notes (if any), the AQkhArization, the Account Control Agreements, tbimde!
Agreements, all UCC Financing Statements, the Wiaimad any other documents executed in connectitinthhe Secured Obligations or
transactions contemplated hereby, as the samenoraytime to time be amended, modified, supplemeateéstated.

“ Material Adverse Effect” means a material adverse effect upon: (i) the lessinoperations, properties, assets or financralition
of Borrower, taken as a whole; or (ii) the abilitfyBorrower, taken as a whole, to perform the Sed@@bligations in accordance with the te
of the Loan Documents, or the ability of Lenderetdforce any of its rights or remedies with resgecthe Secured Obligations; or (iii) 1
Collateral, taken as a whole, or Lender’s LienshenCollateral, taken as a whole, or the priorftguch Liens.

“ Maximum Term Loan Amount ” shall have the meaning assigned to such ternmeiit® A of this Agreement.
“ Maximum Rate " shall have the meaning assigned to such terneatiéh 2.2.
“ Note(s)” means a promissory note or promissory notes imeexe Lender’s Loans.

“ Patent License” means any written agreement granting any right vaipect to any invention on which a Patent isxistence or
Patent application is pending, in which agreemart@®ver now holds or hereafter acquires any interes

“ Patents” means all letters patent of, or rights correspapdirereto, in the United States or in any othemtiyu all registrations at
recordings thereof, and all applications for letteatent of, or rights corresponding thereto, eimited States or any other country.

“ Permitted Acquisition " means any acquisition by Borrower, whether by paseh merger or otherwise, of all or substantidllpf
the assets of, all of the equity interests of, busainess line or unit or a division of, any Pergmovided, that, in each case, Lender has pro
its prior written consent to such acquisition msble and absolute discretion.

“ Permitted Indebtedness’ means: (i) Indebtedness of Borrower in favor of demarising under this Agreement or any other |
Document; (ii) Indebtedness existing on the Cloddage which is disclosed in Schedule 1A; (iii) Ibtlsdness consisting of capitalized le
obligations and purchase money Indebtedness fedfor capital assets, in each case incurred byoeiror any of its Subsidiaries to fina
the acquisition, repair, improvement or construttid fixed or capital assets of such person, predithat the aggregate outstanding prin
amount of all such Indebtedness does not exceadyatime the lesser of (A) $1,250,000 or (B) thedo of the cost or fair market value of
property so acquired or constructed or of suchirega improvements financed with such Indebtedriessh measured at the time of ¢
acquisition, repair, improvement or constructionmade); (iv) Indebtedness to trade creditors irexliin the ordinary course of busin
including Indebtedness incurred in the ordinaryrsewf business with corporate credit cards; (debiedness that also constitutes a Pern
Investment; (vi) Subordinated Indebtedness; (@ijnbursement obligations in connection with lettegfrsredit that are secured by cash or
equivalents and issued on behalf of the Borrowea Gubsidiary thereof in an amount not to exced@DF®0 at any time outstanding; (v
Indebtedness of Borrower or any Subsidiary themmfsisting of interest rate, currency or commodityap agreements, interest rate
agreements, interest rate collar agreements, amer @igreements or arrangements designed to pragednst fluctuation in interest rat
currency exchange rates or commodity prices andanapeculative purposes; (ix) Indebtedness ipaesof performance bonds, bid boi
appeal bonds, surety bonds and completion guaarsed similar obligations, in each case providedhm ordinary course of busine
including those incurred to secure health, safaty environmental obligations in the ordinary couws§éusiness; (x) Indebtedness arising 1
the honoring or dishonoring by a bank or otherriirial institution of a check, draft or similar instnent drawn against insufficient funds in
ordinary course of business; (xi) Collaboration rigactions, to the extent involving the incurrendelrmlebtedness, provided that s
Indebtedness is unsecured and that the aggregatenamof such Indebtedness shall not exceed TwoidviilDollars ($2,000,000.00) at &
time; (xii) Indebtedness of a Subsidiary acquirégrathe Closing Date or of an entity merged intoconsolidated with Borrower or a
Subsidiary of Borrower acquired after the Closingtéand Indebtedness assumed in connection witadgeisition of assets, in each c
solely in connection with a Permitted Acquisitidriii) Indebtedness incurred as a result of endaysiegotiable instruments received in
ordinary course of Borrowes’business; (xiv) Indebtedness of Borrower to amlys®liary of Borrower, and Indebtedness of any Blidny tc
Borrower, provided in each case that any such 8i#rgiis a cdborrower or secured Guarantor hereunder; (xv) unsecindebtedness uni
the Hisun Agreement, other than the Hisun Consulfees (which Hisun Consulting Fees may not be pdm to the termination of tr
Agreement without the prior written consent of Lerj (xvi) unsecured Indebtedness incurred witlpeesto financing insurance premiul



provided that the aggregate outstanding princigdérce of such Indebtedness shall not exceed D@D any time; (xvii) oth
Indebtedness in an amount not to exceed $100,088yatime outstanding, and (xviii) extensions, maficings and renewals of any item
Permitted Indebtedness, provided that the princgmabunt is not increased (except by the amountngfraasonable fees and expense
connection with such extension, refinancing or vesdehat are not disguised as additional principalhe terms modified to impose materi
more burdensome terms upon Borrower or its Subgidés the case may be.




“ Permitted Investment” means: (i) Investments existing on the Closing Detéich are disclosed in Schedule 1B; (ii) (a) Cd$l)
marketable direct obligations issued or uncondéiynguaranteed by the United States of Americargr agency or any State thereof matt
within one year from the date of acquisition théréo) commercial paper maturing no more than os&r yrom the date of creation thereof
currently having a rating of at least A-2 or P-@nfr either Standard & Poor’s Corporation or Moadinvestors Service, (d) certificates
deposit issued by any bank with assets of at B860,000,000 maturing no more than one year frardtte of investment therein, (e) mo
market accounts and (f) any Investments permittedBbrrower’s investment policy, as amended from time to tipmvided that suc
investment policy (and any such amendment thetes)been approved in writing by Lender, it beingamtood that the investment po
delivered to Lender on or around November 19, 2048 been approved by Lender by virtue of Lersderecution of this Agreement; (
repurchases of stock from former employees, dirsctar consultants of Borrower under the termspyfliaable repurchase agreements a
original issuance price of such securities in agregate amount not to exceed $250,000 in any fiezal, provided that no Event of Default
occurred, is continuing or would exist after givieffect to the repurchases; (iv) Investments aetkpis consideration in connection \
Permitted Transfers and Investments in connectidim Rermitted Transfers; (v) Investments (includdept obligations) received in connec
with the bankruptcy or reorganization of customerssuppliers and in settlement of delinquent otiiagyes of, and other disputes w
customers or suppliers arising in the ordinary seunf Borrowers business; (vi) Investments consisting of notegivable of, or prepa
royalties and other credit extensions, to custora@is suppliers who are not affiliates, in the oatincourse of business, provided that
subparagraph (vi) shall not apply to Investment8ofrower in any Subsidiary; (vii) Investments cisting of (a) loans not involving the 1
transfer on a substantially contemporaneous bésiash proceeds to employees, officers and direcitbBorrower relating to the purchast
capital stock of Borrower pursuant to an employteelspurchase or incentive plan or other similareagient approved by BorrowsrBoard ¢
Directors (or its delegate) and (b) the retainihgmy of its capital stock by Borrower, or the rgaisition of any such stock by Borrower fr
an employee, officer or director of Borrower, inckacase as full or partial payment in connectiothveiny award under an employee s
purchase or incentive plan or other similar agregnapproved by Borrowes’ Board of Directors (or its delegate), or to $atithe ta
withholding obligations related to any such awadii) Investments consisting of travel advancestlie ordinary course of business;
Investments consisting of employee relocation laanguarantees of such loans granted by a thirty pareach case in the ordinary cours
business, not to exceed at any time $250,000 ineggte outstanding principal amount; (x) Investragnirsuant to interest rate, currenc
commodity swap agreements, interest rate cap agmsminterest rate collar agreements, and othereatents or arrangements designe
protect against fluctuation in interest rates, ency exchange rates or commodity prices and nospeculative purposes; (xi) Investme
consisting of the merger or consolidation of a &libsy of Borrower into another Subsidiary of Bomrer or into Borrower; (xii) Collaboratic
Transactions, to the extent constituting Investsie(tiii) Investments consisting of Permitted Acgjtions; (xiv) Investments consisting
endorsement of negotiable instruments for depasitotlection or similar transactions in the ordinaourse of business; (xv) Investme
consisting of Deposit Accounts and accounts holdivgstment Property, in each case (other than iggpect to Excluded Accounts) in wk
Lender has a first priority perfected security ietg pursuant to a Control Agreement; (xvi) Investis in newlyformed Subsidiaries organiz
in the United States, provided that such Subsigaenter into a Joinder Agreement promptly afteirtformation by Borrower and exec
such other documents as shall be reasonably reglbgt Lender; (xvii) Investments in subsidiariegastized outside of the United St
approved in advance in writing by Lender; (xviifjvestments in joint ventures or strategic allianiceshe ordinary course of Borrower’
business consisting of the nonexclusive licensintpchnology, the development of technology or phaviding of technical support, provic
that any cash Investments by Borrower do not ex&2&@,000 in the aggregate in any fiscal year; @ngd additional Investments that do
exceed $250,000 in the aggregate.




“ Permitted Licenses’ are licenses (under which Borrower is the licen)s#f over-thesounter software that is commercially avail:
to the public.

“ Permitted Liens” means any and all of the following: (i) Liens irvéa of Lender; (ii) Liens existing on the Closing which ar
disclosed in Schedule 1C; (iii) Liens for taxesedeassessments or other governmental chargewies,leither not delinquent or be
contested in good faith by appropriate proceedipg®yided, that Borrower maintains adequate resaitverefor in accordance with GAAP; |
Liens securing claims or demands of materialmelisaars, mechanics, carriers, warehousemen, larsllomd other like Persons arising in
ordinary course of Borrowes’business and imposed without action of suchgsrpirovided, that the payment thereof is not gquired o
which is being contested in good faith and by appate proceedings which proceedings have the teffiepreventing the forfeiture or sale
the property subject thereto; (v) Liens arisingrrijudgments, decrees or attachments in circumssawbéch do not constitute an Even
Default hereunder; (vi) the following deposits,th@ extent made in the ordinary course of busingsposits under workey’compensatio
unemployment insurance, social security and othmeilas laws, or to secure the performance of bidsders or contracts (other than for
repayment of borrowed money) or to secure indemmigyformance or other similar bonds for the penfance of bids, tenders or contr:
(other than for the repayment of borrowed moneyjoosecure statutory obligations (other than liarising under ERISA or environmer
liens) or surety or appeal bonds, or to securenmly, performance or other similar bonds; (viiehs securing Indebtedness permitted L
clause (iii) of the definition of “Permitted Indeliiness” provided that (a) such Liens exist prior to theasijon of, or attach substantia
simultaneously with (or within twenty (20) dayseajtthe acquisition, lease, repair, improvementanstruction of, such property financet
leased by such Indebtedness and (b) such Liensotlextend to any property of Borrower other thae floperty (and proceeds ther:
acquired, leased or built, or the improvementsepairs financed by such Indebtedness; (viii) Ligmsirred in connection with Subordina
Indebtedness; (ix) leasehold interests in leasesibleases and licenses granted in the ordinamsemf business and not interfering in
material respect with the business of the licenégr;Liens in favor of customs and revenue authesifrising as a matter of law to se«
payment of custom duties that are promptly paicbobefore the date they become due; (xi) Liensnsaiiance policies and proceeds the
(including, unearned premiums, returned premiunigidend payments and loss payments) securing theneat of financed insuran
premiums that are promptly paid on or before thte daey become due (provided that such Liens extemylto such insurance proceeds
not to any other property or assets); (xii) statptnd common law rights of seff and other similar rights as to deposits of castl securitie
in favor of banks, other depository institutionsdabrokerage firms; (xiii) easements, zoning resbies, rights-ofway and simile
encumbrances on real property imposed by law smayin the ordinary course of business so lontheg do not materially impair the value
marketability of the related property; (xiv) Liean cash or cash equivalents securing obligationsifted under clause (vii) of the definition
Permitted Indebtedness; (xv) Liens consisting afebhses granted in connection with Collaboratiomn3aations permitted hereunder; (
Liens securing Indebtedness permitted in clausg ¢kithe definition of “Permitted Indebtednesstirsuant to a subordination agreemel
form and substance acceptable to Lender in its andeabsolute discretion; (xvii) Liens that are tcactual rights of set off (a) relating to
establishment of depository relations with banky rélating to pooled deposit or sweep accounBasfower or any Subsidiary of Borrowetr
permit satisfaction of overdraft or similar obligats incurred in the ordinary course of busines®8ofrower or any such Subsidiary or
relating to purchase orders and other similar ages¢s entered into with customers of Borrower or &absidiary of Borrower in the ordin:
course of business; (xviii) Liens of financial iiistions (solely in their capacity as such) on Barer’s Deposit Accounts arising solely
virtue of any statutory or common law provisionatalg to bankes liens, rights of set off or similar rights; (xidgposits made in the ordin
course of business to secure liability for premidmsisurance carriers; provided any such Liefnigtéd to the insurance proceeds and se:
liability in the aggregate amount not to exceed®Q00; (xx) Liens arising out of conditional satitle retention, consignment or simi
arrangements for the sale of goods in the ordicaryse of business in accordance with the pastipeac (xxi) the filing of UCC financir
statements solely as a precautionary measure imection with operating leases or consignment ofdgpo each case, arising in the ordir
course of business; (xxii) Liens consisting of Pigied Licenses, (xxiii) other Liens securing obligas in an aggregate principal amount ni
exceed $100,000 at any time outstanding; and ({@ns incurred in connection with the extensi@neawal or refinancing of the indebtedr
secured by Liens of the type described in claugdabrpough (xxiii) above; provided, that any extems renewal or replacement Lien shal
limited to the property encumbered by the existirgn and the principal amount of the indebtednessdgextended, renewed or refinancec
may have been reduced by any payment thereon)nddéscrease.




“ Permitted Transfers ” means (i) cash payments to trade creditors, aresb s&#l Inventory, in each case in the normal cowoif
business, (ii) norxclusive licenses and similar arrangements fougeeof Intellectual Property in the ordinary c@uo$ business and licen:
that could not result in a legal transfer of titlethe licensed property but that may be exclugivieespects other than territory and that ma
exclusive as to territory only as to discreet gapbical areas outside of the United States in tmary course of business, (iii) disposition
worn-out, obsolete or surplus Equipment at fair markatue in the ordinary course of business, (iv) Tienss consisting of Permitt
Investments and Permitted Liens, (v) Transfersoimection with Permitted Acquisitions, (vi) salEsases or other dispositions of Inventor
Borrower and its Subsidiaries determined by theagament of Borrower to be no longer useful or nemgsin the operation of the busines
Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries for fair marketue, (vii) Collaboration Transactions to the extent constitufTransfers, and (viii) oth
Transfers of assets having a fair market valueobfmore than $250,000 in the aggregate in any|fiszar.

“ Person” means any individual, sole proprietorship, parthigrsjoint venture, trust, unincorporated orgari@at associatiol
corporation, limited liability company, institutipother entity or government.

“ Preferred Stock” means at any given time any equity security issaedorrower that has any rights, preferences orilpges
senior to Borrower’'s common stock.

“ Prepayment Charge” shall have the meaning assigned to such terneatié 2.4.

“ Prime Rate” means the “prime rate” as reportedTihe Wall Street Journaland if not reported, then the prime rate moseéméy
reported inThe Wall Street Journal

“ Receivables’ means (i) all of Borrowes Accounts, Instruments, Documents, Chattel P&grporting Obligations, letters of cre
proceeds of any letter of credit, and Letter ofditrRights, and (ii) all customer lists, softwaamd business records related thereto.

“ Secured Obligations” means Borrowes obligations under this Agreement and any Loanub@nt, including any obligation to
any amount now owing or later arising hereundehereunder.

“ Subordinated Indebtedness’ means Indebtedness subordinated to the Securedafbiis in amounts and on terms and condi
satisfactory to Lender in its sole discretion.

“ Subsequent Financing” means any sale and issuance by Borrower on or @i¢edate hereof and prior to expiration or ee
termination of this Agreement, in a single trangactor series of related transactions not registereder the Securities Act of 1933,
amended, of shares of its preferred stock, comnek ©or other equity security, or of any instrumesercisable for or convertible into
otherwise representing the right to acquire shafdorrower preferred stock, common stock or otguity security, to one or more inves
for cash for financing purposes (including, withéiatitation, any scealled PIPE transaction), which offering by Borrovwsebroadly markete
to multiple investors, resulting in aggregate pestseto Borrower of at least $20,000,000.




“ Subsidiary " means an entity, whether corporate, partnershipitdd liability company, joint venture or otherwjsien whict
Borrower owns or controls 50% or more of the outdbag voting securities, including each entitydston Schedule 1 hereto.

“ Term Loan Advance” and “ Term Loan Advances” are each defined in Recital A of this Agreement.

“ Term Loan Interest Rate” means for any day, a floating per annum rate keguthe greater of either (i) eleven and anerter o
one percent (11.25%), or (ii) the sum of (A) elewmmd one-quarter of one percent (11.25%), plustliB)Prime Rate minus three and one
guarter of one percent (3.25%). The Term Loan &seRate will change from time to time on the da/Prime Rate changes, if applicable.

“ Term Loan Maturity Date " means June 1, 2017.

“ Trademark License” means any written agreement granting any rightsmany Trademark or Trademark registration, nowex
or hereafter acquired by Borrower or in which Bereo now holds or hereafter acquires any interest.

“ Trademarks " means all trademarks (registered, common law agratise) and any applications in connection thetewitcluding
registrations, recordings and applications in theteédl States Patent and Trademark Office or in @imjilar office or agency of the Unit
States, any State thereof or any other countrypipalitical subdivision thereof.

“ Transfer ” means, with respect to any property or asset, tontarily or involuntarily transfer, sell, leasécdnse, lend or in ai
other manner convey any equitable, beneficial gallinterest in such property or asset.

“ UCC " means the Uniform Commercial Code as the sameois) fime to time, in effect in the State of Califa; provided, that i
the event that, by reason of mandatory provisidnew, any or all of the attachment, perfectionpoiority of, or remedies with respect
Lenders Lien on any Collateral is governed by the Unif@@ammercial Code as the same is, from time to timeffect in a jurisdiction oth
than the State of California, then the term “UC&iall mean the Uniform Commercial Code as in effédom time to time, in such ott
jurisdiction solely for purposes of the provisiothereof relating to such attachment, perfectiongrity or remedies and for purposes
definitions related to such provisions.

“ Warrant " means the warrant entered into in connection wWighLoan.

Unless otherwise specified, all references in Agseement or any Annex or Schedule hereto to ati@g¢ “subsection,” “Exhibit,
“Annex,” or “Schedule”shall refer to the corresponding Section, subsectitxhibit, Annex, or Schedule in or to this Agremrh Unles
otherwise specifically provided herein, any accomgtterm used in this Agreement or the other Loatnents shall have the mear
customarily given such term in accordance with GAARd all financial computations hereunder shalkttmputed in accordance with GA/
consistently applied. Unless otherwise definedihesein the other Loan Documents, terms that aeitherein or in the other Loan Docum
and defined in the UCC shall have the meaningsgiee¢hem in the UCC.

SECTION 2. THE LOAN
2.1 Term Loan

(a) _AdvancesSubiject to the terms and conditions of this Agreet, Lender will make, and Borrower agrees to dieaw
initial Term Loan Advance in the amount of Five hMih Dollars ($5,000,000) on the Closing Date. ®abjo the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, during the Draw Period, Borrower mayes, but, notwithstanding any provision of thiségment, Lender shall have no
obligation to make (and any such advance will beenanly in Lender’s sole discretion), up to thr@eddditional Term Loan Advances in an
aggregate amount of up to Fifteen Million Dolla$4%,000,000) in minimum increments of Five MilliBollars ($5,000,000). The aggregate
outstanding Term Loan Advances shall not exceed/ld@mum Term Loan Amount. Proceeds of any Advesttal be deposited into an
account that is subject to a perfected securigrast in favor of Lender perfected by a controkagnent.




(b) _Advance Requesio obtain a Term Loan Advance, Borrower shall ptate, sign and deliver to Lender an Advance
Request (at least thirty (30) days before the Adeddate (or such shorter time period as Lenderimég sole discretion agree to in writing),
or, with respect to the initial Term Loan Advanc#yp at least two (2) Business Days before the AdeaDate (or such shorter time period as
Lender may in its sole discretion agree to in wg)). Lender shall fund the Term Loan Advance mitienner requested by the Advance
Request provided that each of the conditions prateid such Term Loan Advance is satisfied as @fdguested Advance Date.

(c) nterest The principal balance of each Term Loan Advaradl $ear interest thereon from such Advance Dateea
Term Loan Interest Rate based on a year consistiB§0 days, with interest computed daily basetheractual number of days elapsed. The
Term Loan Interest Rate will float and change andhy the Prime Rate changes from time to timapficable.

(d) _PaymentBorrower will pay interest on each Term Loan Ade on the first (3 ) Business Day of each month,
beginning the month after the Advance Date. Comingnen the Amortization Date, and continuing on fingt (15t) Business Day of each
month thereafter, Borrower shall repay the aggeegeancipal balance of Term Loan Advances thatatstanding on the Amortization Date in
equal monthly installments of principal and intéi@sortgage style) based upon an amortization sdbestjual to thirty (30) consecutive
months. The entire principal balance of the TerrariAdvances and all accrued but unpaid interestumeler, and all other Secured
Obligations then outstanding with respect to thenTeoan Advances, shall be due and payable on ¢nen Toan Maturity Date. Borrower
shall make all payments under this Agreement witlsetoff, recoupment or deduction and regardlessgfcounterclaim or defense. Lender
will initiate debit entries to the Borrower's acedlas authorized on the ACH Authorization on eaaynpent date of all periodic obligations
payable to Lender under each Term Loan Advancee@amaid, a Term Loan Advance or any portion themey not be reborrowed.

2.2 _Maximum InterestNotwithstanding any provision in this Agreementay other Loan Document, it is the parties’ inteot to
contract for, charge or receive interest at atteeis greater than the maximum rate permissipliw that a court of competent jurisdiction
shall deem applicable hereto (which under the lafitbe State of California shall be deemed to leeldiws relating to permissible rates of
interest on commercial loans) (thdtaximum Rate ). If a court of competent jurisdiction shall fihadetermine that Borrower has actually
paid to Lender an amount of interest in excest®fBimount that would have been payable if all efSkcured Obligations had at all times
borne interest at the Maximum Rate, then such exogsrest actually paid by Borrower shall be agubhs follows: first, to the payment of the
Secured Obligations consisting of the outstandiigcpal of the Term Loan Advances; second, aftieprancipal is repaid, to the payment of
Lender’s accrued interest, costs, expenses, piofedgees and any other Secured Obligations; hind, tafter all Secured Obligations are
repaid, the excess (if any) shall be refunded todweer.

2.3 _Default Interestin the event any payment is not paid on the sdleeldpayment date (after giving effect to any aggille cure
periods therefor), an amount equal to three per@8a) of the past due amount shall be payable amedd. In addition, upon the occurrence
and during the continuation of an Event of Deféugiteunder, at Lender’s election all Secured Ohtigat including principal, interest,
compounded interest, and professional fees, shall interest at a rate per annum equal to thesett®drth in Section 2.1(c), plus four percent
(4%) per annum. In the event any interest is nat pdien due hereunder, delinquent interest shadiduked to principal and shall bear interest
on interest, compounded at the rate set forth ati@e2.1(c).

2.4 _PrepaymentAt its option upon at least seven (7) Businesgsaior notice to Lender, Borrower may prepay @llany portior
of the outstanding Advances by paying the entinecpal balance or a portion thereof, all accrued anpaid interest on the portion prepaid
unpaid Lender’s fees and expenses accrued to thefithe repayment (including the End of Term @eartogether with a prepayment charge
on the portion prepaid equal to the following patege of the Advance amount being prepaid: if Shdtance amounts are prepaid in any of
the first twelve (12) months following the Closibgte, three percent (3%); after twelve (12) motuhisprior to twenty four (24) months, two
percent (2%); and after twenty four (24) monthsgrigr to the Term Loan Maturity Date, one perdds®) (each, a Prepayment Charge”).
Borrower agrees that the Prepayment Charge issamahle calculation of Lender’s lost profits inwief the difficulties and impracticality of
determining actual damages resulting from an eapayment of the Advances. Upon the occurrenceGifange in Control, Borrower shall
prepay the outstanding amount of all principal andrued interest through the prepayment date dnchgdid Lender’s fees and expenses
accrued to the date of the repayment (includinggihe of Term Charge) together with any applicalskpByment Charge.




2.5 _End of Term ChargeOn the earliest to occur of (i) the Term Loan ay Date, (ii) the date that Borrower prepays the
outstanding Secured Obligations in full, or (ihetdate that the Secured Obligations become dupayable in full, Borrower shall pay Lender
a charge equal to three and one-half of one pe(8e51%) of the aggregate original principal amonindll Term Loan Advances made by
Lender (the ‘End of Term Charge”). Notwithstanding the required payment date of su@rge, it shall be deemed earned by Lender as
Closing Date.

2.6 _Notes If so requested by Lender by written notice tarBaver, then Borrower shall execute and delivereader (and/or, if
applicable and if so specified in such notice,ng person who is an assignee of Lender pursug®¢ttion 11.13) (promptly after the
Borrower’s receipt of such notice) a Note or Ndtesvidence Lender’s Loans.

SECTION 3. SECURITY INTEREST

3.1 As security for the prompt, complete andefieasible payment when due (whether on the paydadas or otherwise) of all the
Secured Obligations, Borrower grants to Lendercais®y interest in all of Borrower’s right, titlend interest in and to the following personal
property whether now owned or hereafter acquiretidctively, the “Collateral *): (a) Receivables; (b) Equipment; (c) Fixtured} General
Intangibles (except as noted below); (e) Inventéfjytnvestment Property (except as noted belog)) eposit Accounts; (h) Cash; (i) Goods;
and all other tangible and intangible personal priypof Borrower whether now or hereafter owne@xisting, leased, consigned by or to, or
acquired by, Borrower and wherever located, andadBorrower’s property in the possession or urttercontrol of Lender; and, to the extent
not otherwise included, all Proceeds of each ofdihegoing and all accessions to, substitutionsrapthcements for, and rents, profits and
products of each of the foregoing. Notwithstandamgthing in this Agreement or any other Loan Docutie the contrary, in no event shall
Collateral include, and Borrower shall not be degteehave granted a security interest in: (i) llettlial Property; provided, however, that the
Collateral shall include all Accounts and Genenghhgibles that consist of rights to payment amt@eds from the sale, licensing or
disposition of all or any part, or rights in, thadllectual Property (theRights to Payment”); (ii) more than sixty-five percent (65%) of the
issued and outstanding voting capital stock of @nlsidiary of Borrower that is incorporated or arigad in a jurisdiction other than the Uni
States or any state or territory thereof; or @iy of the Borrower’s rights or interests in or andany license, contract, permit, instrument,
security or franchise to which the Borrower is atypar any of its rights or interests thereundethi® extent, but only to the extent, that such a
grant would, under the terms of such license, eabtpermit, instrument, security or franchiseuleis a breach of the terms of, or constitute a
default under, such license, contract, permitrimsent, security or franchise (other than to theemixthat any such term would be rendered
ineffective pursuant to the UCC or any other agtile law (including the United States Bankruptcyd€oor principles of equity); provided,
that immediately upon the ineffectiveness, lapseiomination of any such provision the Collatetalsinclude, and the Borrower shall be
deemed to have granted a security interest ithaltights and interests described in the foregolagse (iii) as if such provision had never
been in effect. Notwithstanding the foregoing, jtidicial authority (including a U.S. Bankruptcy @) holds that a security interest in the
underlying Intellectual Property is necessary teeha security interest in the Rights to Paymemn ttne Collateral shall automatically, and
effective as of the Closing Date, include the lietegtlial Property to the extent necessary to peerfiection of Lender’s security interest in the
Rights to Payment.

SECTION 4. _CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO LOAN

The obligation of Lender to make the Term Loan Awb&s hereunder is subject to Section 2.1(a) andatisfaction by Borrower
the following conditions:

4.1 _Initial Advance On or prior to the Closing Date, Borrower shal/é delivered to Lender the following:
(8) executed copies of the Loan Documentsga kepinion of Borrower’s counsel, and all othecdments and instruments

reasonably required by Lender to effectuate thestietions contemplated hereby or to create anégidtfe Liens of Lender with respect to all
Collateral, in all cases in form and substancearaisly acceptable to Lender;
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(b) certified copy of resolutions of Borrowelbisard of directors evidencing approval of (i) thean and other transactions
evidenced by the Loan Documents; and (ii) the Waraad transactions evidenced thereby;

(c) certified copies of the Certificate of Imporation and the Bylaws, as amended through thei@j Date, of Borrower;

(d) a certificate of good standing for Borroviteim its state of incorporation and similar cecates from all other
jurisdictions in which it does business and whaeefailure to be qualified would have a Materiav@dse Effect

(e) a payoff letter from (i) Horizon Fundingubt 2013-1, and (ii) Oxford Finance LLC;

() evidence that (i) the Liens securing Indeltess owed by Borrower to Horizon Funding Trudt320 and Oxford
Finance LLC will be terminated concurrently wittetiitial Term Loan Advance and (ii) the documeantsl/or filings evidencing such Liens,
including without limitation any financing statenterand/or control agreements, have or will, corenily with (or, in the case of the Account
Control Agreement with UBS Financial Services Iftke “UBS Account Control Agreement”), immediatébflowing) the initial Term Loan
Advance, be terminated;

(g) payment of the Facility Charge and reimbuarent of Lender’s current expenses reimbursableupnt to this
Agreement, which amounts may be deducted fromrtitialiAdvance; and

(h)  such other documents as Lender may realoreduest.
4.2 _All Advances On each Advance Date:

(@) Lender shall have received (i) an Advanegurest for the relevant Advance as required byi@e2t1(b), duly execute
by Borrower’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief FinaalcOfficer, President, Chief Accounting Officer any other duly authorized officer of
Borrower, and (ii) any other documents Lender neasonably request.

(b) The representations and warranties set farthis Agreement and in Section 5 and in thefafgrshall be true and
correct in all material respects on and as of thealhce Date with the same effect as though madmdras of such date, except to the extent
such representations and warranties expressherelatn earlier date.

(c) Borrower shall be in compliance with akétterms and provisions set forth herein and in ediclr Loan Document on
its part to be observed or performed, and at the tif and immediately after such Advance no Evémtefault shall have occurred and be
continuing.

(d) Each Advance Request shall be deemed tstibae a representation and warranty by Borrowethe relevant
Advance Date as to the matters specified in papdgréb) and (c) of this Section 4.2 and as to thdaers set forth in the Advance Request.

4.3 _No Default As of the Closing Date and each Advance Datey(ilact or condition exists that constitutes (@uwd, with the

passage of time, the giving of notice, or both,stibate) an Event of Default and (i) no event thas had or could reasonably be expected to
have a Material Adverse Effect has occurred amaiginuing.

11




SECTION 5. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BORROWER

Borrower represents and warrants that:

5.1 _Corporate Statusorrower is a corporation duly organized, legaiysting and in good standing under the laws efSkate of
Delaware, and is duly qualified as a foreign cogpion in all jurisdictions in which the nature ¢ business or location of its properties require
such gqualification, except where the failure tagbelified could not reasonably be expected to tzaMeaterial Adverse Effect. Borrower’s
present name, former names (if any), locations;eptd formation, tax identification number, orgaatianal identification number and other
information are correctly set forth in Schedule, 4 may be updated by Borrower in a written ndficeluding any Compliance Certificate)
provided to Lender after the Closing Date.

5.2 _Collateral Subject to Section 4.1(f), Borrower owns the &tglfal and the Intellectual Property, free of adirls, except for
Permitted Liens. Borrower has the power and authtwigrant to Lender a Lien in the Collateral aswsity for the Secured Obligations.

5.3 _ConsentsBorrower’s execution, delivery and performancehef Notes (if any), this Agreement and all otheah Documents
to which it is a party, and Borrower’s executiortiod Warrant, (i) have been duly authorized byhattessary corporate action or other
organizational action, as applicable, of Borrowy will not result in the creation or impositiaf any Lien upon the Collateral, other than
Permitted Liens and the Liens created by this Ages# and the other Loan Documents, (iii) do notatmany provisions of Borrower’s
Certificate or Articles of Incorporation (as appliie), bylaws, or any law, regulation, order, imgtion, judgment, decree or writ to which
Borrower is subject and (iv) except as describe®admedule 5.3, do not violate any contract or agese or require the consent or approval of
any other Person. The individual or individuals@xeng the Loan Documents and the Warrant on betidbrrower are duly authorized to do
So.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoin@)(Borrower’s execution, delivery and performantthe Notes (if any), this
Agreement and all other Loan Documents to whidh & party, and Borrower’s execution of the Warrdotnot and will not require the
separate vote or consent of, or waiver by, anysaaseries of Borrower’s capital stock, and (bdpfthe Closing Date, there are no shares of
8% Series A Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stb8orrower issued and outstanding, and no shdr8%0Series A Redeemable
Convertible Preferred Stock shall be issued ortanting under that certain Certificate of Desigmafior 8% Series A Redeemable Convert
Preferred Stock filed by Borrower with the Delaw&ecretary of State on January 14, 2011 at anyditee the Closing Date, accordingly, the
restrictions set forth in Section 13 of that cert@ertificate of Designation for 8% Series A Redabla Convertible Preferred Stock filed by
Borrower with the Delaware Secretary of State aruday 14, 2011 are now, and hereafter shall béowitforce or effect.

5.4 _Material Adverse EffeciNo event that has had or could reasonably beotagé¢o have a Material Adverse Effect has occurre
and is continuing. Borrower is not aware of anyrigely to occur that is reasonably expectedesutt in a Material Adverse Effect.

5.5 _Actions Before Governmental Authoriti€sxcept as described on Schedule 5.5 (which maypbated from time to time,
provided that any new information or disclosurellshat be deemed to be included in such schedulesarconsented to by Lender in writing
pursuant to the terms and conditions hereof), taegeno actions, suits or proceedings at law eqinty or by or before any governmental
authority now pending or, to the knowledge of Bareo, threatened in writing against or affecting ®arer or its property which, if adversely
determined against Borrower or its property, waela@sonably be expected to result in liability iress of $250,000.

5.6 _Laws Borrower is not in violation of any law, rule gulation, or in default with respect to any judgr) writ, injunction or
decree of any governmental authority, where suglation or default is reasonably expected to rdsudt Material Adverse Effect. Borrower is
not in default in any material respect under argvizion of any agreement or instrument evidencimgbtedness, or any other material
agreement to which it is a party or by which ib@aund.
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5.7 _Information Correct and Curreio information, report, Advance Request, finahstatement, exhibit or schedule furnished,
by or on behalf of Borrower to Lender in connectwith any Loan Document or included therein ordaied pursuant thereto, when taken
together with all such information, contained, @ms or will contain any material misstatementasftfor omitted, omits or will omit to state
any material fact necessary to make the statertleersin, in the light of the circumstances undeicithey were, are or will be made, not
misleading at the time such statement was madeemdd made (it being recognized by Lender thabéiiahor business projections and other
forward looking information provided in good faiéimd based on the then most current data and infanmavailable to Borrower are not to be
viewed as facts and that actual results duringpdred or periods covered by any such projectioag differ from the projected results).
Additionally, any and all financial or business jedions provided by Borrower to Lender shall bevided in good faith and based on the ther
most current data and information available to Baer, it being recognized by Lender that such mtajas are not to be viewed as facts and
that actual results during the period or periodseced by any such projections may differ from thejgcted results.

5.8 _Tax MattersExcept as described on Schedule 5.8 (which maypbated from time to time, provided that any nefeimation
or disclosure shall not be deemed to be includesiath schedule unless consented to by Lender tmg/pursuant to the terms and conditions
hereof), (a) Borrower has filed all federal, stael material local tax returns that it is requitedile, (b) Borrower has duly paid or fully
reserved for all taxes or installments thereofl(iding any interest or penalties) as and when aitigh have or may become due pursuant to
such returns, and (c) Borrower has paid or fulberged for any tax assessment received by Borrfawéhe three (3) years preceding the
Closing Date, if any (including any taxes beingtested in good faith and by appropriate proceedlings

5.9 _Intellectual Property Claim&orrower is the sole owner of, or otherwise Heesright to use, the Intellectual Property. Exceg
described on Schedule 5.9A (which may be updated fime to time, provided that any new informat@rdisclosure shall not be deemed to
be included in such schedule unless consented t@hger in writing pursuant to the terms and caadg hereof), (i) to the knowledge of
Borrower, each of the material issued or regist&epyrights, Trademarks and Patents is valid aficresable, (i) no material part of the
Intellectual Property owned by Borrower has be@yg@d invalid or unenforceable, in whole or in pather than a rejection by the United
States Patent and Trademark Office or any corrapgrioreign office or agency with respect to apgtlions for any Patents or Trademarks
where such rejection would not have a material es#veffect on Borrower’s business, and (iii) notten claim has been made to Borrower tha
any material part of the Intellectual Property aiek the rights of any third party which claimadfversely determined against Borrower, would
reasonably be expected to result in liability itess of $250,000. Schedule 5.9B is a true, coamticomplete list of each of Borrower’s
Patents, registered Trademarks, registered Copgrighd material agreements under which Borrowenbes intellectual property from third
parties (other than shrink-wrap software licensesather licenses for over-the-counter softwagether with application or registration
numbers, as applicable, owned by Borrower or aysiliary, in each case as of the Closing Date.deegr is not in material breach of, nor
Borrower failed to perform any material obligatiamsder, any of the foregoing contracts, licenseagoeements and, to BorroweKnowledge
no third party to any such contract, license oeagrent is in material breach thereof or has fadgaerform any material obligations
thereunder.

5.10 _Intellectual PropertyExcept as described on Schedule 5.10 (which reaypblated from time to time, provided that any new
information or disclosure shall not be deemed tinbkided in such schedule unless consented tcebgér in writing pursuant to the terms :
conditions hereof), Borrower has, or in the casanyf proposed business, to the knowledge of Bomravilehave, all material rights with
respect to the Intellectual Property necessarkieénoperation or conduct of Borrower's businessuaigeatly conducted and proposed to be
conducted by Borrower. Without limiting the genéyabf the foregoing, and in the case of Licensesept for restrictions that are
unenforceable under Division 9 of the UCC, BorroWwas the right, to the extent required to operated@ver’s business, to freely transfer,
license or assign the Intellectual Property withmortdition, restriction or payment of any kind (@tlthan license payments in the ordinary
course of business) to any third party, and, tdtimvledge of Borrower, Borrower owns or has tlghtito use, pursuant to valid licenses, all
software development tools, library functions, cderg and all other third-party software and otitems that are used in the design,
development, promotion, sale, license, manufactomeort, export, use or distribution of BorroweoBucts.
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5.11 _Borrower ProductExcept as described on Schedule 5.11 (which reaypbated from time to time, provided that any new
information or disclosure shall not be deemed tinbkided in such schedule unless consented tcebgér in writing pursuant to the terms :
conditions hereof), no Intellectual Property owthgdBorrower or Borrower Product is subject to antual or, to the knowledge of Borrower,
threatened litigation, proceeding (except for argcpeding in the United States Patent and Tradef@#ite or any corresponding foreign
office or agency, in each case involving a pendipglication for any Patents, Trademarks or Copysigbr outstanding decree, order,
judgment, settlement agreement or stipulationrstricts in any material manner Borro’s use, transfer or licensing thereof or that may
materially affect the validity, use or enforcedithereof. There is no decree, order, judgmengeagent, stipulation, arbitral award or other
provision entered into in connection with any @ipn or proceeding that obligates Borrower to gl@enses or ownership interest in any
future Intellectual Property related to the op@matr conduct of the business of Borrower or BoepRroducts. Borrower has not received an
written notice or claim, or, to the knowledge ofrBawer, oral notice or claim, challenging or quesing Borrower’s ownership in any of the
Intellectual Property purportedly owned by Borrower written notice of any claim challenging or gtiening the ownership in any licensed
Intellectual Property of the owner thereof) or segfing that any third party has any claim of lemabeneficial ownership with respect thereto,
which, if adversely determined against Borroweit®property, would reasonably be expected to tésuiability in excess of $250,000, nor,
Borrower’s knowledge, is there a reasonable basiarfy such claim. To the knowledge of Borrowerth®e Borrower’s use of its Intellectual
Property nor the production and sale of BorrowedBcts infringes the intellectual property or othights of others.

5.12 _Financial AccountsSchedule 5.12, as may be updated by the Borrimnaewritten notice provided to Lender after the<bhg
Date, is a true, correct and complete list of (Bhanks and other financial institutions at whBbrrower or any Subsidiary maintains Deposit
Accounts and (b) all institutions at which Borrovegrany Subsidiary maintains an account holding&tment Property, and such exhibit
correctly identifies the name, address and telepmmber of each bank or other institution, the e@@&mwhich the account is held, a
description of the purpose of the account, anctimeplete account number therefor.

5.13 _Employee LoanExcept as set forth in Schedule 5.13 (which nayidated from time to time, provided that any new
information or disclosure shall not be deemed tinbkided in such schedule unless consented tcebgér in writing pursuant to the terms :
conditions hereof), Borrower has no outstanding$a@ any employee, officer or director of the Barer nor has Borrower guaranteed the
payment of any loan made to an employee, officelirector of the Borrower by a third party.

5.14 _Capitalization and Subsidiari€Borrower does not own any stock, partnershipr@steor other securities of any Person, ex
for Permitted Investments. Attached as Schedulé, &4 may be updated by Borrower in a written egpiovided after the Closing Date, is a
true, correct and complete list of each Subsidiary.

SECTION 6. INSURANCE; INDEMNIFICATION

6.1 _CoverageBorrower shall cause to be carried and maintainggrance, including directors’ and officers’ insace and
commercial general liability insurance, on an ocence form, against risks customarily insured agfamBorrower’s line of business and in
amounts standard for companies in Borrower’s imguetd location. Such risks shall include the riskbodily injury, including death,
property damage, personal injury, advertising injand contractual liability per the terms of thdeémnification agreement found in Section
6.3. So long as there are any Secured Obligatiotssanding, Borrower shall also cause to be caaf@imaintained insurance upon the
Collateral, insuring against all risks of physitds or damage howsoever caused, in an amoungs®than the full replacement cost of the
Collateral, provided that such insurance may bgestibo standard exceptions and deductibles.

6.2 _Certificates Borrower shall deliver to Lender certificatesrmgurance that evidence Borrower’s compliance wélnsurance
obligations in Section 6.1 and the obligations aord in this Section 6.2. Borrower’s insurancdifieaite shall state Lender is an additional
insured for commercial general liability, a losygea for all risk property damage insurance, sulifetite insurer’s approval, a loss payee for
fidelity insurance, and a loss payee for proparsurance and additional insured for liability iresace for any future insurance that Borrower
may acquire from such insurer. Attached to theifteates of insurance will be additional insuredlersements for liability and lender’s loss
payable endorsements for all risk property damagerance and fidelity. All certificates of insuraneill provide that the insurer shall endee
to provide a minimum of thirty (30) days advancétt@n notice to Lender of cancellation. Any faillwELender to scrutinize such insurance
certificates for compliance is not a waiver of arfiy_ender’s rights, all of which are reserved.
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6.3 _Indemnity Borrower agrees to indemnify and hold Lender ismdfficers, directors, employees, agents, in-eattorneys,
representatives and shareholders harmless fromagaidst any and all claims, costs, expenses, dan@amgkliabilities (including such claims,
costs, expenses, damages and liabilities basadhlity in tort, including strict liability in tot), including reasonable attorneys’ fees and
disbursements and other costs of investigatioreerge (including those incurred upon any appta},may be instituted or asserted again
incurred by Lender or any such Person as the rekatedit having been extended, suspended or tatend under this Agreement and the othe
Loan Documents or the administration of such creditn connection with or arising out of the traoions contemplated hereunder and
thereunder, or any actions or failures to act innaztion therewith, or arising out of the dispasitor utilization of the Collateral, excluding in
all cases claims, costs, expenses, damages ailifiéiabesulting from Lendes gross negligence or willful misconduct. Borrowgrees to pa
and to save Lender harmless from, any and alllilieglsi with respect to, or resulting from any delaypaying, any and all excise, sales or other
similar taxes (excluding taxes imposed on or messby the net income of Lender) that may be payabtktermined to be payable with
respect to any of the Collateral or this Agreement.

SECTION 7. _COVENANTS OF BORROWER

Borrower agrees as follows:

7.1 _Financial ReportBorrower shall furnish to Lender the financialtsments and reports listed hereinafter (the “Fiizdn
Statements”):

(&) as soon as practicable (and in any evaehimB0 days) after the end of each month, unaddiiteerim and year-to-date
financial statements as of the end of such monpgred on a consolidated and consolidating bidsipplicable), including balance sheet and
related statements of income and cash flows accoiegbéy a report detailing any material contingeadincluding the commencement of any
material litigation by or against Borrower) or amtyer occurrence that would reasonably be expdotbdve a Material Adverse Effect, all
certified by Borrower’s Chief Executive Officer, & Financial Officer, President or Chief Accourfi@fficer to the effect that they have beer
prepared in accordance with GAAP, except (i) far élvsence of footnotes, (ii) that they are sultgeabrmal year-end and quarter-end
adjustments, and (iii) they do not contain certen-cash items that are customarily included irrtguly and annual financial statements;

(b) as soon as practicable (and in any evethiiné5 days) after the end of each fiscal quatteaudited interim and year-
to-date financial statements as of the end of sadndar quarter (prepared on a consolidated amsbtidating basis, if applicable), including
balance sheet and related statements of incomeaaidflows accompanied by a report detailing anteria contingencies (including the
commencement of any material litigation by or agaBorrower) or any other occurrence that wouldoaably be expected to have a Material
Adverse Effect, certified by Borrower’s Chief Exéize Officer, Chief Financial Officer, President@hief Accounting Officer to the effect
that they have been prepared in accordance with [3&Xcept (i) for the absence of footnotes, andh@t they are subject to normal year-end
adjustments;

(c) assoon as practicable (and in any evethinvone hundred fifty (150) days) after the en@ach fiscal year, unqualifi
audited financial statements as of the end of geel (prepared on a consolidated and consolidatsgs, if applicable), including balance
sheet and related statements of income and cash, flold setting forth in comparative form the cspanding figures for the preceding fiscal
year, together with an unqualified opinion on timafcial statements by a firm of independent dedipublic accountants selected by Borro
and reasonably acceptable to Lender (it being ddgirest Stegman & Company is acceptable to Lendecpmpanied by any management
report from such accountants;

(d) as soon as practicable (and in any evetim80 days) after the end of each month, a Canpé Certificate in the
form of Exhibit F;
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(e) promptly after the sending or filing thefieas the case may be, copies of any proxy statesymancial statements or
reports that Borrower has made available to holdeits capital stock and copies of all regularigéic and special reports or registration
statements that Borrower files with the Securitied Exchange Commission or any governmental adyhibvat may be substituted therefor, or
any national securities exchange (including, witHouitation, the NASDAQ exchange); and

(H annual financial and business projectigmemptly following their approval by Borrower’s Bahof Directors, as well
as budgets, operating plans and other financiatindition reasonably requested by Lender or geygvedivided to security holders.

Borrower shall not make any change in its (a) anting policies or reporting practices (except aguieed under GAAP), or (b) fisc
years or fiscal quarters. The fiscal year of Bowowshall end on December

The executed Compliance Certificate may be senfadsimile to Lender at (650) 473-9194 or vimail to BJadot@HTGC.com. /
Financial Statements required to be delivered m@nsuto clauses (a), (b) and (c) shall be sent vianag tc
financialstatements@herculestech.com with a cofyJadot@HTGC.com and BBang@HTGC.com provided, itheimail is not available «
sending such Financial Statements via e-mail ioossible, they shall be sent via facsimile to lesrat: (866) 468916, attention Chief Cre:
Officer.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, documents requiredbé delivered pursuant to the terms of this Secfid (to the extent any st
documents are included in materials otherwise filéth the SEC) may be delivered electronically #ngb delivered, shall be deemed to
been delivered on the date on which both of thiofiohg occur (a) Borrower posts such document, rwvigdes a working link thereto,
Borrower’s website on the internet (at Borrovganebsite address) or files such documents witls#@ provided they are publicly available
the SECS website and (b) Borrower provides an email todegrconfirming the circumstances in clause (a)leemtler acknowledges receip
such email.

7.2 _Management Right8orrower shall permit any representative thatdesrauthorizes, including its attorneys and accanist tc
inspect the Collateral and examine and make c@pidsabstracts of the books of account and recdrBsmower at reasonable times and upon
reasonable notice during normal business houraddiition, any such representative shall have tte to meet with management and officers
of Borrower to discuss such books of account andrds. In addition, subject to the confidentiafitpvisions in this Agreement, Lender shall
be entitled at reasonable times and intervals tswd with and advise the management and officEBoorower concerning significant busine
issues affecting Borrower. Such consultations shatllunreasonably interfere with Borrower’s busgeperations. The parties intend that the
rights granted Lender shall constitute “managemights” within the meaning of 29 C.F.R Section 25t001(d)(3)(ii), but that any advice,
recommendations or participation by Lender wittpees to any business issues shall not be deengiddd ender, nor be deemed an exercise
by Lender of, control over Borrower's managemenpalicies. Information provided or to be provided.ender or its representatives pursuant
to this Section 7.2 is subject to the confidertijghirovisions contained in this Agreement.

7.3 _Further AssuranceBorrower shall from time to time execute, deliaed file, alone or with Lender, any financing staénts,
security agreements, collateral assignments, rtemntrol agreements, or other documents to gesfegive the highest priority (subject to
Permitted Liens) to Lender’s Lien on the CollateBdrrower shall from time to time procure any mstents or documents as may be
reasonably requested by Lender, and take all fuetbtion that may be necessary or desirable, ol #tvader may reasonably request, to perfec
and protect the Liens granted hereby and therebgddition, and for such purposes only, Borroweehg authorizes Lender to execute and
deliver on behalf of Borrower and to file such fieang statements, collateral assignments, notam@grol agreements, security agreements an
other documents without the signature of Borrowiree in Lender’s name or in the name of Lendeagent and attorney-in-fact for Borrower.
Except as otherwise explicitly set forth hereinyBaer shall protect and defend Borrower's titldtie Collateral and Lender’s Lien thereon
against all Persons claiming any interest adver&otrower or Lender other than Permitted Liens.

7.4 _Indebtednes®orrower shall not create, incur, assume, guasaat be or remain liable with respect to any Ineldhess, or
permit any Subsidiary so to do, other than Pernhittelebtedness, or prepay any Indebtedness oatakactions which impose on Borrower
obligation to prepay any Indebtedness, exceptferconversion of Indebtedness into equity secaréie the payment of cash in lieu of
fractional shares in connection with such conversio
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7.5 _Collateral Borrower shall at all times keep the Collatetiad Intellectual Property and all other propertd assets used in
Borrower’s business or in which Borrower now ordadter holds any interest free and clear from aeypd whatsoever (except for Permitted
Liens), and shall give Lender prompt written notieny legal process affecting the Collateral,Ititellectual Property, such other property
and assets, or any Liens (other than Permitteds).igmereon. Borrower shall cause its Subsidiaogsdtect and defend such Subsidiary’s title
to its assets from and against all Persons claimimginterest adverse to such Subsidiary, and B@rshall cause its Subsidiaries at all times
to keep such Subsidiary’s property and assetsaindeclear from any Liens whatsoever (except fonfiteed Liens), and shall give Lender
prompt written notice of any legal process affegtiuch Subsidiary’s assets. Borrower shall noteagiigh any Person other than Lender not to
encumber its property.

7.6 _nvestmentsBorrower shall not directly or indirectly acquioe own, or make any Investment in or to any Persompermit any
of its Subsidiaries so to do, other than Permitegstments.

7.7 _Distributions Borrower shall not, and shall not allow any Sdlzsiy to, (a) repurchase or redeem any class oksipother
equity interest other than (i) pursuant to employector or consultant repurchase or stock oppians or employee restricted stock
agreements, stockholder rights plans or other amaigreements, provided that all such repurchastsealemptions do not exceed $100,00(
fiscal year in the aggregate, (ii) noncash repwebaf equity interests of Borrower deemed to oapain exercise of stock options if such
equity interests represent a portion of the exerpigce of such options or (iii) the retaining ofyaof its capital stock by Borrower, or the
reacquisition of any such stock by Borrower frony amployee, officer or director of Borrower, in azase as full or partial payment in
connection with any award under an employee stoc&hase or incentive plan or other similar agreegmapproved by Borrower’s board of
directors (or its delegate) or to satisfy the tathtwolding obligations related to any such awardyjgled that all such reacquisitions do not
exceed $100,000 per fiscal year in the aggregai@)aeclare or pay any cash dividend or makesa déstribution on any class of stock or
other equity interest, except that (i) a Subsidraay pay dividends or make distributions to Borroaed (ii) Borrower may make payments in
cash, in lieu of the issuance of fractional shaupsn the exercise of warrants or upon the conwersi exchange of equity interests of
Borrower, or (c) lend money to any employees, efficor directors or guarantee the payment of aoly kans granted by a third party, except
for transactions permitted under clauses (vii) @xdof the definition of “Permitted Investmentst (d) waive, release or forgive any
indebtedness owed by any employees, officers ectirs in excess of $100,000 in the aggregate.

7.8 _TransfersExcept for Permitted Transfers, Borrower shatl imnsfer any material portion of its assets.

7.9 _Mergers or AcquisitionBorrower shall not merge or consolidate, or peany of its Subsidiaries to merge or consolidate,
with or into any other business organization (othean mergers or consolidations of a Subsidiany amother Subsidiary or into Borrower), or
acquire, or permit any of its Subsidiaries to acgjuall or substantially all of the capital stoakpooperty of another Person (other than
Permitted Acquisitions).

7.10 _TaxesBorrower and its Subsidiaries shall pay whenaltaxes, fees or other similar charges of anymatvhatsoever
(together with any related interest or penaltiesy or hereafter imposed or assessed against Barrheeder or the Collateral or upon
Borrower’s ownership, possession, use, operatiatisposition thereof or upon Borrower’s rents, igptseor earnings arising therefrom.
Borrower shall file on or before the due date tfmrall personal property tax returns in respedhef Collateral. Notwithstanding the foregoi
Borrower may contest, in good faith and by appmtprproceedings, taxes for which Borrower maintaotequate reserves therefor in
accordance with GAAP.

7.11 _Corporate ChangeNeither Borrower nor any Subsidiary shall chaitgeorporate name, legal form or jurisdiction of
formation without fifteen (15) days’ prior writterotice to Lender. Neither Borrower nor any Subsid&hall relocate its chief executive office
or its principal place of business unless: (i)a@stprovided prior written notice to Lender; anjigiich relocation shall be within the continental
United States. Neither Borrower nor any Subsid&gll relocate any item of tangible Collateral étthan (x) sales of Inventory in the
ordinary course of business, (y) relocations ofipouent having an aggregate value of up to $150i0@MDy fiscal year, and (z) relocations of
Collateral from a location described on Schedulet®.another location described on Schedule 5.18ssr(i) it has provided prompt written
notice to Lender, (ii) such relocation is withiretbontinental United States and, (iii) with respgedCollateral with a fair market value in excess
of $150,000 individually or in the aggregate, i€suelocation is to a third party bailee, it hasdisommercially reasonable efforts to deliver a
bailee agreement in form and substance reasonatdptable to Lender.

17




7.12 _Deposit AccountsNeither Borrower nor any Subsidiary shall maimtany Deposit Accounts (other than Excluded Accsunt
or accounts holding Investment Property, except vaspect to which Lender has an Account ContraeAment (provided that the UBS
Account Control Agreement may be delivered withiBusiness Days of the Closing Date).

7.13 _SubsidiariesBorrower shall notify Lender of each Subsidiasynied subsequent to the Closing Date and, withidays of
formation (or such later date as Lender may agreeiting in its sole discretion), at the electiohLender, shall cause any such Subsidiary
organized under the laws of any State within théddinStates to execute and deliver to Lender addoiAgreement and such other documents
as shall be reasonably requested by Lender.

SECTION 8. RIGHT TO INVEST

8.1 Hercules Technology Growth Capital, Inciterassignee or nominee (which assignee or nonshak be an affiliate of Lender)
shall have the right, in its discretion, to papate in any one or more Subsequent Financings aggregate amount, for all such Subsequent
Financings in which Lender and/or its assignee(sjominee(s) participate, of up to One Million Caol ($1,000,000), on the same terms,
conditions and pricing afforded to others partitipgin any such Subsequent Financing; provideat, ttlender shall be afforded the same n«
period as other investors participating in suchsggiient Financing; provided further that, in therg\of any Subsequent Financing (a) that is
private placement under Section 4(2) of the Sdesriact of 1933, as amended (or otherwise exenopt the registration requirements of such
act), (b) that has an initial closing prior to thender receiving five Business Days’ advance writietice to accept or decline to participate in
such Subsequent Financing, and (c) in which Lesd®atticipation or potential participation wouldtwause stockholder consent of the
Borrower to be required under applicable NASDAQswhich consent would not be required but fordegts participation or potential
participation, then the Company shall allow the demto participate in an additional closing of 8iesequent Financing within 30 days of,
otherwise on the same, terms, conditions and gricinthe initial closing but no less than five B)siness Days after Lender has been pro\
advance written notice to accept or decline toigiggte in such Subsequent Financing.

SECTION 9. EVENTS OF DEFAULT

The occurrence of any one or more of the followergnts shall be an Event of Default:

9.1 _PaymentsBorrower fails to pay any amount due under thige®ment or any of the other Loan Documents onltieedate (or
within three (3) days of the due date, provided sheh late payment is due to an administrativerenr connection with the ACH
Authorization); or

9.2 _CovenantsBorrower breaches or defaults in the performari@ny covenant or Secured Obligation under thiss@ment or
any of the other Loan Documents, and (a) with resfwea default under any covenant under this Agese (other than under Sections 6, 7.4,
7.5,7.6,7.7, 7.8 or 7.9) such default continwesfore than ten (10) Business Days after theezaofithe date on which (i) Lender has given
notice of such default to Borrower and (ii) Borraviias actual knowledge of such default or (b) wétbpect to a default under any of Sections
6,7.4,7.5,7.6,7.7,7.8 or 7.9, the occurrerfcioh default; or

9.3 _Material Adverse EffectA circumstance has occurred that would reasoriablgxpected to have a Material Adverse Effect; ol

18




9.4 _Other Loan Document3he occurrence of any default under any Loan bt or any other agreement between Borrower
and Lender and such default continues for more thiaif10) Business Days after the earlier of (a)dsx has given notice of such default to
Borrower, or (b) Borrower has actual knowledgewaftsdefault; or

9.5 _Representationg\ny representation or warranty made by Borroweariy Loan Document shall have been false or nusiga
in any material respect when made; or

9.6 _Insolvency Borrower (A) (i) shall make an assignment for blemefit of creditors; or (ii) shall be unable @ygts debts as they
become due, or be unable to pay or perform undekdlan Documents, or shall become insolvent; drdfiiall file a voluntary petition in
bankruptcy; or (iv) shall file any petition, answer document seeking for itself any reorganizatamnangement, composition, readjustment,
liquidation, dissolution or similar relief underyapresent or future statute, law or regulationiperit to such circumstances; or (v) shall seek ¢
consent to or acquiesce in the appointment of arsgee, receiver, or liquidator of Borrower or #fax any substantial part (i.e., 33-1/3% or
more) of the assets or property of Borrower; oy ¢hiall cease operations of its business as itadsshas normally been conducted (provided
that the normal conduct of business shall inclirettusiness conducted by Borrower as of the dasmhand reasonable extensions thereo
businesses ancillary or complimentary theretojeaminate substantially all of its employees; ai) Borrower or its directors or majority
shareholders shall take any action initiating ahthe foregoing actions described in clauses @ugh (vi); or (B) either (i) fortyfive (45) day:
shall have expired after the commencement of anlimiary action against Borrower seeking reorgaiminaarrangement, composition,
readjustment, liquidation, dissolution or similalief under any present or future statute, lawegutation, without such action being dismissed
or all orders or proceedings thereunder affectirgdperations or the business of Borrower beingesteor (ii) a stay of any such order or
proceedings shall thereafter be set aside andcti@nasetting it aside shall not be timely appeatediii) Borrower shall file any answer
admitting or not contesting the material allegadioh a petition filed against Borrower in any sychceedings; or (iv) the court in which such
proceedings are pending shall enter a decree er grdnting the relief sought in any such procegstior (v) forty-five (45) days shall have
expired after the appointment, without the conseracquiescence of Borrower, of any trustee, rezeaiv liquidator of Borrower or of all or a
substantial part of the properties of Borrower withsuch appointment being vacated; or

9.7 _Attachments; Judgment&ny portion of Borrower’s assets is attachedeizad, or a levy is filed against any such assets,
judgment or judgments is/are entered for the paymmemoney, individually or in the aggregate, ofesst $250,000 (not covered
independent third party insurance as to which liigttas been accepted by such insurance camidih judgment or judgments is/are not
discharged or effectively waived or stayed for dqueof thirty (30) consecutive days, or Borrowgenjoined or in any way prevented by cour
order from conducting any part of its business; or

9.8 _Other ObligationsThe occurrence of any default under any agreemrenibligation of Borrower involving any Indebtedisean
excess of $150,000 which enables or permits theéehar holders of any such Indebtedness or antegus agent on its or their behalf to caus
any such Indebtedness to become due, or to retipginerepayment, repurchase, redemption or defeashareof, prior to its scheduled
maturity, whether or not exercised, or the occureenf any default under any agreement or obligatidBorrower that could reasonably be
expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

SECTION 10. _REMEDIES

10.1 _GeneralUpon and during the continuance of any one orenttwents of Default, (i) Lender may, at its optiancelerate and
demand payment of all or any part of the Securelig@®ions together with a Prepayment Charge anthdethem to be immediately due and
payable (provided, that upon the occurrence of\mnEof Default of the type described in Sectioh, @ll of the Secured Obligations shall
automatically be accelerated and made due and [gayaleach case without any further notice or,auty (ii) Lender may notify any of
Borrower’s account debtors to make payment dirdctlyender, compromise the amount of any such adamu Borrower’s behalf and endorse
Lender’s name without recourse on any such payifoemteposit directly to Lender’s account. Lendelyraaercise all rights and remedies with
respect to the Collateral under the Loan Documentgherwise available to it under the UCC and o#pplicable law, including the right to
release, hold, sell, lease, liquidate, collectlizeaupon, or otherwise dispose of all or any péthe Collateral and the right to occupy, utilize,
process and commingle the Collateral. All Lendeights and remedies shall be cumulative and ndusike.
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10.2 _Collection; ForeclosuréJpon the occurrence and during the continuan@mgfEvent of Default, Lender may, at any time or
from time to time, apply, collect, liquidate, s&llone or more sales, lease or otherwise dispgsangfor all of the Collateral, in its then
condition or following any commercially reasonapheparation or processing, in such order as Lemdgrelect. Any such sale may be made
either at public or private sale at its place ofibass or elsewhere. Borrower agrees that anymugic or private sale may occur upon ten (10
calendar days’ prior written notice to Borrowernider may require Borrower to assemble the Collatard make it available to Lender at a
place designated by Lender that is reasonably coereto Lender and Borrower. The proceeds of aty, slisposition or other realization u
all or any part of the Collateral shall be applisdLender in the following order of priorities:

First, to Lender in an amount sufficient to payutht Lender’s costs and professionals’ and advisi@ss and expenses as described in
Section 11.11;

Second, to Lender in an amount equal to the theaidramount of the Secured Obligations (includiriggipal, interest, and the
Default Rate interest), in such order and pricsigyl.ender may choose in its sole discretion; and

Finally, after the full, final, and indefeasibleypaent in Cash of all of the Secured Obligationsanig creditor holding a junior Lien on
the Collateral, or to Borrower or its representgior as a court of competent jurisdiction mayatire

Lender shall be deemed to have acted reasonalig ioustody, preservation and disposition of anghefCollateral if it complies wi
the obligations of a secured party under the UCC.

10.3 _No Waiver Lender shall be under no obligation to marshgla@the Collateral for the benefit of Borroweramy other
Person, and Borrower expressly waives all righitany, to require Lender to marshal any Collateral.

10.4 _Cumulative RemedieShe rights, powers and remedies of Lender hemusitall be in addition to all rights, powers and
remedies given by statute or rule of law and arawudative. The exercise of any one or more of tghats, powers and remedies provided hereil
shall not be construed as a waiver of or electforemedies with respect to any other rights, povesic remedies of Lender.

SECTION 11. _MISCELLANEOUS

11.1 _Severability Whenever possible, each provision of this Agregmsiall be interpreted in such manner as to et and
valid under applicable law, but if any provisiontbis Agreement shall be prohibited by or invalitar such law, such provision shall be
ineffective only to the extent and duration of spebhibition or invalidity, without invalidating thremainder of such provision or the
remaining provisions of this Agreement.

11.2 _Notice Except as otherwise provided herein, any notleejand, request, consent, approval, declaratioviceeof process or
other communication (including the delivery of Rig@l Statements) that is required, contemplate@eanmitted under the Loan Documents or
with respect to the subject matter hereof shalhberiting, and shall be deemed to have been wabkdrved, given, delivered, and received
the earlier of: (i) the day of transmission by faufe or hand delivery or delivery by an overnigixpress service or overnight mail delivery
service; or (ii) the third calendar day after depimsthe United States mails, with proper firshs$ postage prepaid, in each case addressec
party to be notified as follows:

If to Lender: HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITALNC.
Legal Department
Attention: Chief Legal Officer and Mr. Bryan Jadot
400 Hamilton Avenue, Suite 310
Palo Alto, California 94301
Facsimile: 650-473-9194
Telephone: 650-289-3060
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If to Borrower: CELSION CORPORATION
Attention: Jeffrey Church
997 Lenox Drive, Suite 100
Lawrenceville, New Jersey 08648
Facsimile: (609) 896-2000
Telephone: (609) 896-9100

With a copy to: O’Melveny & Myers LLP
Attention: Sam Zucker
2765 Sand Hill Road
Menlo Park, CA 94025
Facsimile: (650) 473-2601
Telephone: (650) 473-2638

or to such other address as each party may desitpratself by like notice.

11.3 _Entire Agreement; Amendmeni&his Agreement and the other Loan Documents tatesthe entire agreement and
understanding of the parties hereto in respedi@tubject matter hereof and thereof, and supeesatieeplace in their entirety any prior
proposals, term sheets, non-disclosure or confiaédgtagreements, letters, negotiations or otleumnents or agreements, whether written or
oral, with respect to the subject matter heredhereof (including Lender’s revised proposal lettated October 3, 2013). None of the terms o
this Agreement or any of the other Loan Documerdyg be amended except by an instrument executedbypBer and Lender.

11.4 _No Strict ConstructiarThe parties hereto have participated jointlyhi@ hegotiation and drafting of this Agreement.hHae t
event an ambiguity or question of intent or intetption arises, this Agreement shall be constreafidrafted jointly by the parties hereto and
no presumption or burden of proof shall arise fangor disfavoring any party by virtue of the autsltip of any provisions of this Agreement.

11.5 _No Waiver The powers conferred upon Lender by this Agred¢raensolely to protect its rights hereunder andeurthe other
Loan Documents and its interest in the Collatenal shall not impose any duty upon Lender to exeraigy such powers. No omission or delay
by Lender at any time to enforce any right or reynexberved to it, or to require performance of ahihe terms, covenants or provisions he
by Borrower at any time designated, shall be a gradf any such right or remedy to which Lendemisiteed, nor shall it in any way affect the
right of Lender to enforce such provisions thereraft

11.6 _Survival Except as provided below, all agreements, reptaiens and warranties contained in this Agreeraedtthe other
Loan Documents or in any document delivered purtsihiareto or thereto shall be for the benefit of demnand shall survive the execution and
delivery of this Agreement and the expiration dresttermination of this Agreement. Notwithstandarything in this Section 11.6 to the
contrary, all covenants contained in this Agreenatnér than those which expressly survive termamatif this Agreement by their terms and
Sections 6.3 and 11.12, shall terminate upon tlgepat in full of the Secured Obligations.

11.7 _Successors and Assigi$e provisions of this Agreement and the othearLBocuments shall inure to the benefit of and be
binding on Borrower and its permitted assignsfif)a Borrower shall not assign its obligations unttiés Agreement or any of the other Loan
Documents without Lender’s express prior writtengent, and any such attempted assignment shadiileand of no effect. Lender may
assign, transfer, or endorse its rights hereundemuader the other Loan Documents without priofagoto Borrower, and all of such rights sl
inure to the benefit of Lender’s successors angjiassNotwithstanding the foregoing, prior to theeorrence of an Event of Default, Lender
shall not assign its interest in the Loan Documémts direct competitor of Borrower.
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11.8 _Governing LawThis Agreement and the other Loan Documents baea negotiated and delivered to Lender in thesStiat
California, and shall have been accepted by Leimdigre State of California. Payment to Lender byrBaver of the Secured Obligations is due
in the State of California. This Agreement anddtieer Loan Documents (other than as expresshostt ih any other Loan Document) shal
governed by, and construed and enforced in accoedaith, the laws of the State of California, extihg conflict of laws principles that would
cause the application of laws of any other jurigdit

11.9 _Consent to Jurisdiction and Vendd! judicial proceedings (to the extent that tieéerence requirement of Section 11.10 i
applicable) arising in or under or related to thggeement or any of the other Loan Documents malyrbaght in any state or federal court
located in the State of California. By execution @elivery of this Agreement, each party heretoegalty and unconditionally: (a) consents to
nonexclusive personal jurisdiction in Santa Clacai@y, State of California; (b) waives any objentas to jurisdiction or venue in Santa Clara
County, State of California; (c) agrees not to esmey defense based on lack of jurisdiction orueeim the aforesaid courts; and (d) irrevocs
agrees to be bound by any judgment rendered thémetpnnection with this Agreement or the other ih@@cuments. Service of process on
any party hereto in any action arising out of dating to this Agreement shall be effective if givie@ accordance with the requirements for
notice set forth in Section 11.2, and shall be d=beffective and received as set forth in Sectib@.1Nothing herein shall affect the right to
serve process in any other manner permitted byolastall limit the right of either party to bringgzeedings in the courts of any other
jurisdiction.

11.10 Mutual Waiver of Jury Trial / Judiciagéference

(a) Because disputes arising in connection aatinplex financial transactions are most quicklgl anonomically resolved
by an experienced and expert person and the parsésapplicable state and federal laws to apg@th@r than arbitration rules), the parties
desire that their disputes be resolved by a juggdyang such applicable laws. EACH OF BORROWER ANENDER SPECIFICALLY
WAIVES ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO TRIAL BY JURY OF ANY CAUSE OF ACTION, CLAIM, CROSS-CLAIM,

COUNTERCLAIM, THIRD PARTY CLAIM OR ANY OTHER CLAIM(COLLECTIVELY, “CLAIMS”) ASSERTED BY BORROWER
AGAINST LENDER OR ITS ASSIGNEE OR BY LENDER OR ITASSIGNEE AGAINST BORROWER. This waiver extends licsach
Claims, including Claims that involve Persons ottii@n Borrower and Lender; Claims that arise oudrare in any way connected to the
relationship between Borrower and Lender; and aayn@ for damages, breach of contract, tort, sgepérformance, or any equitable or legal
relief of any kind, arising out of this Agreemeaty other Loan Document.

(b) If the waiver of jury trial set forth in 8&on 11.10(a) is ineffective or unenforceable, plaeties agree that all Claims
shall be resolved by reference to a private juditiag without a jury, pursuant to Code of Civild&edure Section 638, before a mutually
acceptable referee or, if the parties cannot agreeferee selected by the Presiding Judge ofdah&aSClara County, California. Such
proceeding shall be conducted in Santa Clara Co@dlfornia, with California rules of evidence adidcovery applicable to such proceeding.

(c) Inthe event Claims are to be resolvedudygial reference, either party may seek from atciolentified in Section 11.!
any prejudgment order, writ or other relief anddnauch prejudgment order, writ or other relief eodal to the fullest extent permitted by law
notwithstanding that all Claims are otherwise sabje resolution by judicial reference.

11.11 _Professional FeeBorrower promises to pay Lender's documented &gsexpenses necessary to finalize the loan
documentation, including but not limited to readueattorneys’ fees, UCC and other lien searchi@sy tosts, and other miscellaneous
expenses. In addition, Borrower promises to payaartyall reasonable attorneys’ and other profeatsofees and expenses (including fees
expenses of in-house counsel) incurred by Lender #ife Closing Date in connection with or related(a) the Loan; (b) the administration,
collection, or enforcement of the Loan; (c) the adment or modification of the Loan Documents; (ay svaiver, consent, release, or
termination under the Loan Documents; (e) the tian, preservation, sale, lease, liquidation,ispdsition of Collateral or the exercise of
remedies with respect to the Collateral; (f) argalelitigation, administrative, arbitration, ortoef court proceeding in connection with or
related to Borrower or the Collateral, and any appe review thereof; and (g) any bankruptcy, estiring, reorganization, assignment for the
benefit of creditors, workout, foreclosure, or athetion related to Borrower, the Collateral, theah Documents, including representing Lel
in any adversary proceeding or contested matten@@maed or continued by or on behalf of Borrowestw&, and any appeal or review
thereof.
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11.12 _Confidentiality Lender acknowledges that certain items of Caiddtgnd information provided to Lender by Borrowee
confidential and proprietary information of Borronve and to the extent such information eitheri§&jnarked as confidential by Borrower at
the time of disclosure, or (y) should reasonablybéderstood to be confidential (the “Confidentigiormation”). Accordingly, Lender agrees
that any Confidential Information it may obtaintire course of acquiring, administering, or perfegtiender’s security interest in the
Collateral, or otherwise pursuant to Section 7.12bk shall not be disclosed to any other persoentity in any manner whatsoever, in whol
in part, without the prior written consent of Bomrer, except that Lender may disclose any suchmdion: (a) to its own directors, officers,
employees, accountants, counsel and other profegsadvisors and to its affiliates if Lender instsle discretion determines that any such |
should have access to such information in conneetith such party’s responsibilities in connectigith the Loan or this Agreement and,
provided that such recipient of such Confidentiibtmation either (i) agrees to be bound by thdidentiality provisions of this paragraph or
(i) is otherwise subject to confidentiality restions that reasonably protect against the discéostiConfidential Information; (b) if such
information is generally available to the public) {f required or appropriate in any report, stadatror testimony submitted to any
governmental authority having or claiming to hawegdiction over Lender; (d) if required or appriape in response to any summons or
subpoena or in connection with any litigation,he extent permitted or deemed advisable by Lendetssel; (e) to comply with any legal
requirement or law applicable to Lender; (f) to éxtent reasonably necessary in connection witlexteecise of any right or remedy under any
Loan Document, including Lendersale, lease, or other disposition of Collateftaralefault; (g) to any participant or assigned.efder or an
prospective participant or assignee; provided, $hah participant or assignee or prospective ppatit or assignee agrees in writing to be
bound by this Section prior to such disclosurelhdrotherwise with the prior consent of Borrowerpyided, that any disclosure made in
violation of this Agreement shall not affect thdigations of Borrower or any of its affiliates omyaguarantor under this Agreement or the o
Loan Documents.

11.13 _Assignment of Right8orrower acknowledges and understands that (sutgjehe last sentence of Section 11.7) Lender
sell and assign all or part of its interest hereuwrathd under the Loan Documents to any persontity éan “Assignee”). After such assignment
the term “Lender” as used in the Loan Documentd siean and include such Assignee, and such Assighall be vested with all rights,
powers and remedies of Lender hereunder with réspdise interest so assigned; but with respeantosuch interest not so transferred, Lel
shall retain all rights, powers and remedies heggbgn. No such assignment by Lender shall rel@omower of any of its obligations
hereunder. Lender agrees that in the event oframgfer by it of the Note(s)(if any), it will endwr thereon a notation as to the portion of the
principal of the Note(s), which shall have beerdithe time of such transfer and as to the dewehich interest shall have been last paid
thereon.

11.14 _Revival of Secured Obligatiankhis Agreement and the Loan Documents shall nerimafull force and effect and continue
to be effective if any petition is filed by or agai Borrower for liquidation or reorganizationBbrrower becomes insolvent or makes an
assignment for the benefit of creditors, if a reeeior trustee is appointed for all or any sigrifit part of Borrower’s assets, or if any payment
or transfer of Collateral is recovered from Lenddre Loan Documents and the Secured ObligationsCafidteral security shall continue to be
effective, or shall be revived or reinstated, @&dhse may be, if at any time payment and perfocmahthe Secured Obligations or any trar
of Collateral to Lender, or any part thereof iscieded, avoided or avoidable, reduced in amountast otherwise be restored or returned by,
or is recovered from, Lender or by any obligeehef $ecured Obligations, whether as a “voidablespeeice,” “fraudulent conveyance,” or
otherwise, all as though such payment, performamceansfer of Collateral had not been made. énethent that any payment, or any part
thereof, is rescinded, reduced, avoided, avoidabstored, returned, or recovered, the Loan Doctsramd the Secured Obligations shall be
deemed, without any further action or documentatioftave been revived and reinstated except textent of the full, final, and indefeasible
payment to Lender in Cash.

11.15 _CounterpartsThis Agreement and any amendments, waivers, otsse supplements hereto may be executed in ampei
of counterparts, and by different parties heretsdparate counterparts, each of which when soatelivshall be deemed an original, but all of
which counterparts shall constitute but one andséimee instrument.
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11.16 _No Third Party Beneficiariedlo provisions of the Loan Documents are intended will be interpreted, to provide or create
any third-party beneficiary rights or any othethtig of any kind in any person other than LenderBodower unless specifically provided
otherwise herein, and, except as otherwise so gedyiall provisions of the Loan Documents will leegonal and solely between the Lender
and the Borrower.

11.17 _Publicity Lender may use Borrower's name and logo, andidech brief description of the relationship betwBenrower
and Lender, in Lender’'s marketing materials. (aBorrower consents to the publication and usednder and any of its member businesses
and affiliates of (i) Borrower's name (includindpidef description of the relationship between Bareo and Lender) and logo and a hyperlinl
Borrower’s web site, separately or together, irtten and oral presentations, advertising, promafiand marketing materials, client lists,
public relations materials or on its web site (thge, the “Lender Publicity Materials”); (ii) theames of officers of Borrower in the Lender
Publicity Materials; and (iii) Borrower’s name, éi@marks or servicemarks in any news release cangelender.

(b) Neither Borrower nor any of its member lesises and affiliates shall, without Lenderbnsent, publicize or use
Lender's name (including a brief description of tie¢ationship between Borrower and Lender), logohgperlink to Lendes web site
separately or together, in written and oral prest@nts, advertising, promotional and marketing malg, client lists, public relations materi
or on its web site (together, the “Borrower Pultyidviaterials”™); (i) the names of officers of Lender in the Borroviublicity Materials; an
(iii) Lender's name, trademarks, servicemarks ip aews release concerning Borrower; provitteat notwithstanding anything in the foregc
to the contrary, Borrower may use Lender’'s namedestribe the transactions contemplated by Loaudeats in the Borrowes’filings witt
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SB6d) may file such Loan Documents with the SEC.

(SIGNATURES TO FOLLOW)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower and Lender have dulgauted and delivered this Loan and Security Agesgras of the day al
year first above writter

BORROWER:
CELSION CORPORATION
Signature: _/s/ Michael H. Tardugno

Print Name: _Michael H. Tardugno
Title: President and Chief Executivificar

Accepted in Palo Alto, California:
LENDER:

HERCULES TECHNOLOGY GROWTH CAPITAL, INC.
By: /s/ Ben Bang

Name: _Ben Bang
Its: Senior Counsel




Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Celsion Corporation
Lawrenceville, New Jersey

We consent to the incorporation by reference ofreport dated March 13, 2014, with respect to i@rcial statements and the effectivene:
internal control over financial reporting of Celsi€orporation included in the Annual Report on FAi®rK for the year ended December 31,
2013.

[s/ Stegman & Company
Baltimore, Maryland
March 13, 2014




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUA NT TO
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 RULES 13a-14(a) AND15d-14(a)
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO § 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Michael H. Tardugno, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fkCelsion Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadomny untrue statement of a material fact ortdmnstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dainare responsible for establishing and maintgmlisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportireg @defined in Exchange Act Rule
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andéiav

€) Designed such disclosure controlsmmodedures, or caused such disclosure controlpremmdures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the etiin which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control oveaffcial reporting, or caused such internal corgr@r financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable arssareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thgsteants disclosure controls and procedures and preséntai report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyaport based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changéhie registrant’s internal control over finanaigporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrarfurth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabm® that has materially affected, or is reasopdikély
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal tmhover financial reporting; and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)daihhave disclosed, based on our most recent eti@tuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and mi@ééweaknesses in the design or operation of atiecontrol over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materialat involves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 13, 2014 /s/Michael H. Tardugno
Michael H. Tardugno
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUA NT TO
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 RULES 13a-14(a) AND15d-14(a)
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO § 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jeffrey W. Church, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fkCelsion Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadomny untrue statement of a material fact ortdmnstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dainare responsible for establishing and maintgmlisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportireg @defined in Exchange Act Rule
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant andéiav

€) Designed such disclosure controlsmmodedures, or caused such disclosure controlpremmdures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the etiin which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control oveaffcial reporting, or caused such internal corgr@r financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable arssareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thgsteants disclosure controls and procedures and preséntai report our conclusions ab
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyaport based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any changéhie registrant’s internal control over finanaigporting that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrarfurth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabm® that has materially affected, or is reasopdikély
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal tmhover financial reporting; and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)daihhave disclosed, based on our most recent eti@tuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and mi@ééweaknesses in the design or operation of atiecontrol over financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materialat involves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 13, 2014 /sl Jeffrey W. Church
Jeffrey W. Church
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 UNITED STATES CODE § 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
8 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Celsion @ganation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded December 31, 2013, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission orbougMarch 13, 2014 (the “Report”), I, Michael Harlugno, President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuanilO U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 9% Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that,
to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenitSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®Act of 1934, as amended; and

2.  The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

March 13, 2014 /sl Michael H. Tardugn
Michael H. Tardugno
President and Chief Executive Officer

This certification accompanies each Report pursteaB906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 andl siwd] except to the extent required by
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filethbyCompany for purposes of §18 of the SecuritiehBnge Act of 1934, as amended.

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y 8906 has been provided to the Company andwiietained by the Company and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commissidts staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 UNITED STATES CODE § 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
8 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Celsion @ganation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the yeaded December 31, 2013, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission orboutiMarch 13, 2014 (the “Report”), |, Jeffrey Whuch, Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 10 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursugh®@b of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that, to my knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenitSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exg®Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. Theinformation contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finana@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

March 13, 2014 /sl Jeffrey W. Churc
Jeffrey W. Church
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

This certification accompanies each Report pursteaB906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and| siwd] except to the extent required by
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be deemed filethbyCompany for purposes of §18 of the SecuritiehBnge Act of 1934, as amended.

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y 8906 has been provided to the Company andweiietained by the Company and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commissidts staff upon request.



